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Revenue

Gross profit

Profit for the year

Profit for the year
attributable to owners
of the Company

Earnings per Ordinary
Share

— Basic

— Diluted

Gross profit margin
(Note)

Profit margin for the year
(Note)
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FEMBE (L)

4,842,926
855,441
410,025

399,659

HK cents
B 7Lt

29.6
29.5

Percentage

Bk

17.7%

8.5%

3,653,866
603,415
360,859

354,904

HK cents
A

29.0
29.0

Percentage
Bk

16.5%

9.9%

33%
42%
14%

13%

Percentage
B 7%
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2%

Percentage
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Current assets RENEE 1,700,664 1,354,100 26%
Total assets BEE 8,179,625 7,094,864 15%
Total equity arEL 2,322,787 1,999,775 16%
Current liabilities mEAaE 3,400,294 3,833,553 -11%
Total liabilities BraE 5,856,838 5,095,089 15%
Percentage
Percentage Percentage point
B AL H 57 %
Average finance costs FHREKAR (Hat)
(Note) 4.4% 4.6% -0.2
Return on average equity FIIRRAN[EER (F75E)
(Note) 19.1% 21.8% -2.7
Note: Hret -
Definitions EE
o Gross profit margin o Average finance costs ° ERE ° FHMERE
Gross profit divided by Weighted average interest ERERAMA IHEFHFIB 3
Revenue expenses divided by Weighted HBR DA SN
average borrowings B
Profit margin for the year Return on average equity ~ *  FEFBX . $i€'ﬂ§¢@iﬁ
Profit for the year divided by Profit attributable to owners FEMNE FRRRARIES
Revenue of the Company during the B AU /\J@ﬁiﬁ”ﬁ%u
year divided by Average RATHER ANE
equity attributable to owners (CRRZL: £
of the Company
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Binhai
Investment Company Limited (the “Company”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$4.84 billion for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$3.65 billion), which represented
an approximately 33% increase compared with previous
year. Profit of the Group amounted to approximately HK$410
million for the year (2020: HK$361 million), representing an
increase of approximately 14% from previous year.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2021, as the impact of the pandemic gradually diminished,
China’s domestic economic activities steadily returned to
normal. The natural gas demand also rebounded driven by
the resumption of daily production activities. Benefiting from
the recovery of the domestic economy, the improvement
of the external economic environment and the continuous
implementation of strict environmental protection policies,
China’s natural gas industry has maintained its rapid
growth. According to statistics from the National Bureau
of Statistics of China and the General Administration of
Customs, the apparent consumption of natural gas in 2021
reached 367.06 billion cubic meters, up by 12.7% year-on-
year'. At the same time, the global natural gas price surged
during the year. In order to ensure the supply of natural
gas in winter, the pipeline inventory of the National Oil and
Gas Pipeline Network Group Corporation was maintained
at a high level, and a market operation model integrating
natural gas production, transportation, storage and sales
was implemented. The annual performance of the Group
has achieved breakthrough growth against the backdrop
of national “guarantee of gas supply” and the “dual carbon
goals” policies. In addition to maintaining daily operations,
the Group has developed multi-party strategic cooperation
to seize the growth opportunities in the post-pandemic era.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Since the summer of 2021, global natural gas prices have
been rising and remaining at a high level. As winter came,
natural gas was in short supply all over the world, especially
in Europe. Following the policy of the National Development
and Reform Commission to stabilize domestic natural gas
prices, the Group utilized its own advantages in multi-
gas source deployment to ensure the normal operation of
industrial and livelihood activities. In addition, the Group
adhered to the safety management concept of “put life and
safety first, prioritize low carbon and environmental friendly
development for harmonious coexistence (£ & £ &
F—  KHIRIR - M HE4A)”, developed a normalized safety
management mechanism and a systematic culture of gas
safety, realized the “industrial Internet + safe production (L
¥LE+Z 24 E) model by improving the construction
of its own safety information management system, and
achieved innovation and coordination of the development
and digitalization and automatization of safety issues.

For enterprise operation, during 2021, the number of the
regular customers from the construction and installation
of gas engineering works of the Group increased by
approximately 163 thousand, down by 12% year-on-year
to approximately 2,194 thousand. The recorded sales
volume of piped natural gas was 1.96 billion cubic metres,
up by 11% year-on-year, among which the sales volume of
pipeline gas accounted for 1.25 billion cubic metres, up by
23% year-on-year, and achieved 0.71 billion cubic metres of
natural gas pipeline transmission for the year, down by 4%
year-on-year. In 2021, the Group also continued to actively
explore new markets, and strived for new projects to inject
more growth momentum into its main business. During the
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRE

year, the Group obtained 2 operating regions and 7 coal-
to-gas coversion or natural gas supply projects. In the first
half of the year, the Group successfully obtained natural gas
supply projects from companies such as Ansteel Tiantie and
SEMCORP, which further extended the Group’s gas pipeline
network. In the second half of the year, the Group not only
resumed the natural gas supply project of Tianjin Pipe
Corporation, but also succefully secured projects such as
Zheng Yang coal-to-gas conversion and Dongli Lake heating
station. While following the implementation of environmental
protection management policies, the Group continued to
expanded the sales volume of piped natural gas with steady
increase of sales profits, and further strengthened and
expanded the market share of the Group in the domestic
gas business.

PROSPECTS

Since the beginning of 2022, affected by the rapid spread
of the Omicron variant, along with factors such as the
relaxation of restrictions for epidemic prevention around
the world, the pandemic has not been under control yet.
Fortunately, the probability of severe symptoms caused
by the variant is lower than that of its predecessors, and
the global vaccination rate has risen to a high level. The
world has begun to adapt to the new normal in which anti-
epidemic activities and economic and social activities are
proceeding simultaneously. The Group believes that the
impact of the epidemic on economic activities will gradually
diminish, which will lead the economic activities to return
to previous level. The resumption of domestic economic
activities will also drive natural gas demand back to rapid
growth. In addition, the national “Outline of the 14th Five-
Year Plan (Draft) (THRAREMEER)” proposed the
establishment of a “clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient
energy system” and realisation of the important instructions
of “peak carbon emissions by 2030” and “achieve carbon
neutrality by 2060”, showing that green and efficient
development is still the key direction of the future energy
transformation of China. In the new year, the Group will
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Chairman’s Statement
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continue to depend on the guidelines of the national clean
energy policies. While steadily advancing the development
strategy of the main business, it will also vigorously develop
value-added services, and actively explore comprehensive
technologies of energy research and development and
utilization. In accordance with the “14th Five-Year” strategic
development plan of the Company, we will unwaveringly
promote the rapid development of various businesses.

While developing our operations at multiple points, the
Group is also well aware of the necessity of realizing safe
and stable gas supply. According to the “National Gas
Accident Analysis Report (B R ER DT L) released
by the China Urban Gas Association (41 B 3 /1 ¥k & % &),
there was a upward trend in the number of gas accidents
reported by the national media in 2021, highlighting the
problem that some enterprises put efficiency over safety.
The Group has long attached great importance to safety
management, and will continue to improve the safety
construction and information management system in the
future. It will, as always, earnestly conduct regular publicity
activities to promote the safety concept from top to bottom
in daily operations.

On behalf of the Board, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude
to the shareholders, customers, staff, business partners
and other stakeholders for their strong support towards the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Binhai Investment Company Limited

Wang Zhiyong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 17 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of piped
natural gas, construction and gas pipeline installation
service, gas passing through service and sales of bottled
natural gas.

Sales of Piped Natural Gas

For the year ended 31 December 2021, consumption
of piped natural gas by domestic and industrial users
amounted to approximately 10,317 x 108 and 33,619 x
10% mega-joules respectively, as compared to 9,866 x
10% and 25,950 x 10% mega-joules respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2020. During the year, income
of the Group from sales of piped natural gas amounted
to HK$4,011,902,000, representing an increase of
HK$1,076,286,000 or approximately 37% compared to the
amount of HK$2,935,616,000 recorded for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Construction and Gas Pipeline Installation Service

The Group constructs gas pipelines for its clients and
connects such pipelines to the Group’s main gas pipeline
networks. The Group then charges construction and
gas pipeline installation service fees from industrial and
commercial customers, property developers and property
management companies. As at 31 December 2021, the
aggregate length of city medium-pressure gas pipeline
networks was approximately 3,574 kilometres, representing
an increase of 219 kilometres from the length of 3,355
kilometres as at 31 December 2020,while the aggregate
length of city high-pressure and sub-high-pressure gas
pipeline networks was approximately 636 kilometres,
representing an increase of 76 kilometres from the length
of 560 kilometres as at 31 December 2020. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, income of the Group from
construction and gas pipeline installation service amounted
to approximately HK$742,880,000, representing an increase
of HK$116,580,000 or approximately 19% compared to the
amount of HK$626,300,000 recorded for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Gas Passing Through Service

The Group transports gases for clients through gas pipeline
networks and charges passing through fees. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the volume of gases transported
by the Group for its clients amounted to 710,950,931
cubic metres and gas passing through service income
amounted to HK$60,167,000, representing a decrease of
HK$10,824,000 or approximately 15% compared to the
amount of HK$70,991,000 recorded for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Property Development

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held a piece of land
under development of approximately 15,899.6 square
metres located to the east of Central West Road, west of
Central Road, north of Xi San Road and south of Xi Er Road
in the Tianjin Airport Economic Area in the Binhai New Area
of the PRC, under land use rights for commercial use for a
term of 40 years from 31 December 2009.

In view of the Group’s current strategic direction which
focuses on the development of the gas business, the Group
plans to dispose of the above property under construction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately HK$855 million (2020: HK$603
million) and the gross profit margin for the Group was 18%
(2020: 17%). The gross profit margin was basically stable.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$306 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$26 million or
9% compared to approximately HK$280 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable to
an increase in research and development expenses.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to equity owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$400 million, as compared to approximately HK$355
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Profit
attributable to equity owners of the Company excluding
the net foreign exchange gain recorded in profit or loss
amounted to approximately HK$375 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
71% as compared to approximately HK$219 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Group recorded a net
exchange gain of HK$25 million caused by fluctuations in
RMB exchange rate in 2021 (2020: HK$136 million).

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December

2021 was HK$29.6 cents, as compared to HK$29 cents for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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EEENWED

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$3,124,749,000 (2020: HK$2,364,006,000
) and the cash and bank deposits of the Group amounted to
HK$897,261,000 (2020: HK$425,137,000), which included
cash and cash equivalents of HK$742,181,000 and pledged
bank deposits of HK$155,080,000. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had consolidated current assets of
HK$1,700,664,000 and its current ratio was approximately
0.50. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a gearing
ratio of approximately 135%, measured by the ratio of
total consolidated borrowings of HK$3,124,749,000 to
consolidated total equity of HK$2,322,787,000.

Borrowings Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$3,124,749,000 (2020: HK$2,364,006,000).
Syndicate borrowing was denominated in USD, carrying the
interest at the rate of 2.6% plus LIBOR per interest period.
Secured borrowings from PRC banks were denominated in
RMB, carrying interests at rates ranging from 3.7% to 5.6%
per annum. Other secured borrowings carry interests at the
rates calculated by 1-year loan prime rate plus 60 basis
point announced in the latest month on the withdraw date
per annum (the average of which is around 4.45%). As at
31 December 2021, short-term borrowings and the current
portion of long-term borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$885,765,000, while the remainder were long-term
borrowings falling due after one year or above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors’ Opinion on Sufficiency of Working Capital

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$1,699,630,000. The Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern largely depends on the sufficiency of financial
resources available to the Group. The Directors are of the
view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from 31 December 2021.

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entities.
Part of the deposits and bank borrowings of the Group are
denominated in HK Dollars and US Dollars which expose
the Group to certain foreign currency risks. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, net foreign exchange gain for
the financing activities amounted to HK$25 million. The
Group does not currently have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Company has been
monitoring foreign exchange risks and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Charge on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged bank
deposits of HK$155,080,000 (2020: HK$17,394,000).
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,674 employees
(2020: 1,718 employees). For the year ended 31 December
2021, the salaries and wages of the employees amounted
to approximately HK$210 million (2020: HK$208 million) and
among these, HK$38 million were recorded in research and
development expenses (2020: HK$28 million).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is
determined by reference to the market rates, and the
performance, qualification and experience of the relevant
staff. Also, a discretionary bonus based on individual
performance during the year is distributed to reward the
contributions of employees to the Group. The Group also
provides training opportunity and other benefits to its
employees, including pension insurance, unemployment
insurance, injury insurance, medical insurance, maternity
insurance and housing fund, etc. In addition, since the
share option scheme adopted by the Company in 2010
had expired, a new share option scheme was adopted after
obtaining the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting held on 13 January 2021 as
an incentive and award plan for senior management and
personnel of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is in charge of the management of the entire
business of the Group and assumes overall responsibility
for the leadership and control of the Group, collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group through
giving instructions and supervising its business. The Board
believes that good corporate governance practices would
strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the development
of the Group, and increase transparency of the operation
of the Group, all of which are in the long term interest
of the Group and the Shareholders. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company had fully complied with
the code provisions that were in force as set out in Appendix
14 (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report) (the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchang”) (the “Listing Rules”),
except for code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code which
provides that the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting. Due to conflict with other important
business engagement, Mr. WANG Zhiyong, the chairman of
the Board of the Company, was unable to attend the 2020
annual general meeting held on 14 May 2021 (the “2020
AGM”). Mr. GAO Liang, the executive Director and General
Manager of the Company who attended and acted as the
chairman of the 2020 AGM, together with other members
of the Board who attended the 2020 AGM were available
to answer questions at the 2020 AGM to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Trading of securities by Directors
shall be approved by the chairman of the Board and shall
be conducted in accordance with the time frame and the
number of securities approved.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by
the Company, that they complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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THE BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors including three executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Zhiyong (Chairman), Mr. ZUO Zhi Min (Vice Chairman)
and Mr. GAO Liang (General Manager), three non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. WANG Gang, Mr. SHEN Hong Liang
and Mr. YU Ke Xiang, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P., Mr. LAU Siu
Ki, Kevin and Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW. Detailed
information of the Directors is set out in the section titled
“BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” herein.

It is a principle under the Corporate Governance Code that
the Board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. It should ensure that changes to
its composition can be managed without undue disruption.
It should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. Non-executive directors should be of
sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationships among the Board members (including
between the Chairman and the General Manager).

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @

Exg

BEAHRER  ARREFSANEE
F EFENERBE=RNTESTES
BEE(XE) EEREE (BIER)
NEmit (BRHE)  ZRFNTES
FRIEE  BRERERTRELE
AR =B PTEETERNELEL
Fait  BIRETRERNEXERER - &
EFEeXRBEAFAEHBZL2RIEER
SRERAE[NT] -

RIECXERTH  EFQRREHET
AXBMERBEERMTXT ERLZ
BRBHEAR EFQRBARIMAEK
ABNEHGITEETHKTEENTE - E
EETHTESTAFNTES (BREB
MIFRMITES) NER ERRFGE
UEEEE EARANBIITE 65
BRIEL B HE - SEMTTESRRE
RATHMAE  UWEEBRAARE
5 o

ExgNEZH (BREIFEAKLIER)
BREEMME X KBIEMEX
MHRERRE -



Corporate Governance Report

TREGHRE

The Board is responsible for the overall management of
the Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and
administer and to promote the success of the Company
through providing direction and supervision. All the Directors
are bound by their duties to act in the interests of the
Company to make an objective decision. The Board is
responsible for the major affairs of the Company, including
the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (in particular transactions which
may involve a conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other material financial and
operational matters. The management is responsible for
the Group’s day-to-day management, administration and
operations. Material transactions to be entered into by the
Group are subject to approval of the Board.

A total of six Board meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to discuss and decide on the
Company’s major strategies, important business matters,
financial issues and other matters set forth in the Company’s
bye-laws. A summary of the Directors’ attendance at such
meetings is as follows:
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Mr. WANG Zhiyong (Chairman)
FTEBEE (£E)

Mr. ZUO Zhi Min (Vice Chairman)
LEREE (BIEE)

Mr. GAO Liang (General Manager)
DB (KRR )

3/6 50%
5/6 83%
6/6 100%
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Mr. WANG Gang 3/6 50%
EMIEE

Mr. SHEN Hong Liang 5/6 83%
Rt L

Mr. YU Ke Xiang 3/6 50%
TrRELE

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. 6/6 100%
BB S EAFHL

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin 6/6 100%
BIBE LA

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW 6/6 100%
G IT €
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Corporate Governance Code A.6.5 requires that all directors
should participate in continuing professional development,
develop and update their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that they contribute to the Board with comprehensive
information and as and when required. The issuer shall be
responsible for arranging and funding appropriate training,
placing appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
responsibilities of directors of the listed company.

Record of training received by each Director during the year
ended 31 December 2021 is summarized below:
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Mr. WANG Zhiyong
FTEBELEAE

Mr. ZUO Zhi Min
TERESE

Mr. GAO Liang
SEabita

Mr. WANG Gang
FHIl%E

Mr. SHEN Hong Liang
Bt et

Mr. YU Ke Xiang
TrREEEE

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.
BB SR F1
Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
BIBELE
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
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Attended 2021 First Half Forum on Analysis of
Economy

Attended 2021 Forum on Analysis of Production and
Economy provided by China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation Natural Gas Branch Company

Attended “The Winter Olympics Fully Powered by
Green Energy - Natural Gas Industry Development
Forum” organized by China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation Natural Gas Branch Company

Attended “China’s Gas Development Forum”

Attended a training in relation to Carbon Peak, Carbon
Neutrality Policy and Carbon Asset Management
provided by Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd

Attended “Forum on the latest developments of Hong
Kong’s Capital Markets” organized by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange

Attended a training in relation to Corporate Governance
of List Company provided by China Securities
Regulatory Commission, Tianjin Office

Attended “FinTech Regulations in Hong Kong” organize
by Lex Omnibus

Attended Independent Non-executive Director Forum
organized by KPMG

Attended Annual Conference organized by the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

Attended a training in relation to Equity Fundraising
Rules provided by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Study of “Enforcement Bulletin” provided by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
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CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND
GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. WANG Zhiyong is the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”)
and Mr. ZUO Zhi Min is the vice chairman (“Vice Chairman”).
Mr. GAO Liang is the General Manager (“General Manager”).
The Chairman and the Vice Chairman are primarily
responsible for leading the Board and ensuring the effective
operation of the Board, while the General Manager is
primarily responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company. Such distinction between the respective roles
and responsibilities of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and
the General Manager is set out in the Company’s bye-
laws and the “Regulation on Operation of the Board and its
Committees” of the Company.

TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

Independent non-executive Directors have a term of office of
two years and non-executive Directors have a term of office
of three years, both subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company held an annual general meeting and two
special general meetings in 2021.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
14 May 2021 (“2021 AGM”), a separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-election of each of Mr. GAO Liang,
Mr. YU Ke Xiang and Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. as a Director.
The representative of the external auditor of the Company
attended the 2021 AGM.

At the two special general meetings of the Company (the
“SGM”) held in 2021, independent non-executive Directors
were available to answer questions at two SGMs for
approval of the Share Option Scheme, continuing connected
transactions and re-election of directors.
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The chairman of the 2021 AGM and SGMs had explained
the procedures of conducting a poll during the aforesaid
meetings. All resolutions proposed at the 2021 AGM and
SGMs were voted by way of polls. All the votes cast at the
2021 AGM and SGMs were properly counted and recorded.

The following table sets out details of the Directors’
attendance of the general meetings of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021:

Mr. WANG Zhiyong 0/1
TEERE

Mr. ZUO Zhi Min 11
LERESE

Mr. GAO Liang 1/1
SEppita

Mr. WANG Gang 1/1
FHI%E

Mr. SHEN Hong Liang 1/1
Rt

Mr. YU Ke Xiang 0/1
TrREEgEE

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. 11
BEREREAFHL

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin 1/1
BIARESESE

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW 11
B SRR

“E_-FRRAFAERBRERRFRIA
ENTIFCHBEZSTASHRETR
ENRRX - MARTZ—FRRBEF
RERBERFHAE LREZMRERY
MEBEFTNETRR - RZTZ—FK
RBEFRERERFHIAE LR THA
EXBEKBEEHE R -

TRIBETEHE-_ZEZ-_—4F+_-A
Zt+—HIEFEESEHEARARBRREAKX

SHFE

1/2 33%
1/2 66%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 66%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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MINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) currently comprises three independent

non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

(Chairman), Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin and Professor Japhet
Sebastian LAW and an executive Director, Mr. GAO Liang.

The

Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee

approved by the Board are available on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The

main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee

include, but not limited to, the following:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, diversity, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy;

assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and proposed independent non-
executive Directors; and

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships for approval by
the Board.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 31 December 2018 which sets out the criteria and
procedures to be adopted when considering candidates to
be appointed or re-elected as directors of the Company.
The nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee
include identification and acknowledgement of qualified
individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review and
approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering
factors such as professional expertise, relevant experience,
personal ethics and integrity, as well as the board diversity
policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and any
measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 29 August 2013 which
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity in
the Board in order for the Board to maintain a competitive
advantage. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, age, gender and other
qualities. The Nomination Committee will consider and,
if appropriate, set measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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During the year, there was no change to the composition of
the Board. The Nomination Committee assessed the retiring
Directors (i.e. Mr. GAO Liang, Mr. YU Ke Xiang and Mr. IP
Shing Hing, J.P.) re-elected at the 2021 AGM on criteria
such as integrity, independence, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out their duties and
responsibilities effectively etc. and made recommendations
to the Board for approval of the appointment and re-
appointment respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a meeting
was held by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee mainly discussed the nomination of re-election
of directors and other matters relating to committee
responsibility and operating mechanism as well as areas to
further utilize its functions. Attendance of each member of
the Nomination Committee are set out as follows:

RAFE ESS7HEMBESZE - 12
HLEEERER T -_—FRRAFKX
e rESENREES (et
FRESERERBEAELFHL) 2
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REZEGZNBHEGZBELET :

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman)
BEXRBEREAFHL (F/E)

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

BIBERE

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
B SRR

Mr. GAO Liang

mooE

1/1 100%
1/1 100%
11 100%
1/1 100%
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor
Japhet Sebastian LAW (Chairman), Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.
and Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee
approved by the Board are available on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company. The main
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, but
not limited to, the following:

1. making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Director’s
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

2. reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; and

3. making recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings
were held by the Remuneration Committee. During the year,
the Remuneration Committee discussed and approved the
initial grant of share options, reviewed the remuneration
of senior management, as well as the director’s fees, and
made recommendations to the Board on the director’s fees
and remuneration of the Directors and senior management
respectively during the year. Attendance of each member of
the Remuneration Committee are set out as follows:

BHE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HULF
B ¥HZECERAMAEHE FA -
FHZEemkitEE X E R
T HEREBABZTMGHE - UK
EEZMe  ETHRES TR F A
ZANEZESEEaREBAENESHES
KEMRnEESRLER FHEES
EXEBHEERBERIOT

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW (Chairman)
BXHHEK (£E)

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

BEXREREALFHL

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

BIBERE

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%

The remuneration of senior management (including the
Executive Director and General Manager) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

BE_FT_—F+-_A=1+—"HILFE
B REABRBERMREEE (REH
TTERERAGE) MFMEIIIT -

Nil to HK$1,000,000
0-1,000,000 /7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
1,000,001-1,500,000 % 7T

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules are set out in [Note 12| and

Note 41]|to the financial statements.

FHREEMe R A& FES AR
BEMRARENE - FHBHNUK
4 20T 19 AT 411

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

33



34

Corporate Governance Report

TREGHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
approved by the Board are available on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company. The main
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to, the following:

1. primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor;

2. monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, the annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly report (if any); and

3. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
(Chairman), Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. and Professor Japhet
Sebastian LAW, where Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin is a qualified
accountant.

Three meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the

year ended 31 December 2021. At the meetings, the Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed the following matters:

1. the audited annual results and financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020;

2. the unaudited interim results of the Group for the 6
months ended 30 June 2021;

3. financial reporting system and internal control
procedures;
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4. relationship with the external auditor including
introducing and discussing the scope of services
it offers and the arrangements of work of external
auditory;

5. review of the risk management and internal control
systems; and

6. function of corporate governance, and disclosure policy
of the Company.

The following table sets out the details of attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee at the meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2021:

4. ESNEREZBENEEER - BREIEBEE
B 71 48 A0 R 5 L SR 4 B BR 7% [ e
BIETIEREE

5. ERERREELAIEZFE &

6. RAREXREABELAREMEE

B -

UTIIhEZZEEEKNEHE-F

S Ft-ACt-BLEEHERS
2

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin (Chairman)
BIBERE (&)

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
G AT s

3/3 100%
3/3 100%
3/3 100%

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee considered that:

1. The Group’s accounting and management system
and controls procedures have been maintained at a
generally satisfactory and acceptable standard; and

2. The interim and annual financial statements of the
Group for the relevant reporting periods are complete
and accurate in all respects.

ERZZBEETECENAKREEEZ_F
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Witam T AREERTEREEE - &
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RISK COMMITTEE

The Company established the Risk Committee (the “Risk
Committee”) in March 2016. The Risk Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman), Mr. LAU Siu
Ki, Kevin and Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW and an
executive Director, Mr. GAO Liang.

The main responsibilities of the Risk Committee include, but
not limited to, the following:

1. overseeing the development, implementation and
maintenance of the Company’s overall risk management
framework and its risk appetite, strategy, principles and
policies, to ensure that they are in line with relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules;

2. reviewing the scope and quality of the Company’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management system; and

3. considering or advising the Board on any other risk-
related matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting was
held by the Risk Committee. The Risk Committee mainly
discussed matters relating to the overview and assessment
of the Group’s principal risks. Attendance of each member
of the Risk Committee are set out as follows:
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Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman)
BEXRBERELAFHL (F/E)

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

ZIBERE

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
B SRR

Mr. GAO Liang

mooE

1/1 100%
1/1 100%
11 100%
1/1 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Company has not established a corporate governance
committee and the corporate governance functions are
performed by the Audit Committee as set out in its terms of
reference. The Audit Committee had considered the policies
and practices for corporate governance as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, and reviewed the compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and the disclosures in
this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company
with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”).
According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may from
time to time declare dividend to be paid to the Shareholders
up to the amount recommended by the Board. When the
Company determines whether to declare any dividend and
the amount of dividend to be declared, the Board will take
into account a number of factors, including but not limited
to:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

3. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on
equity and the relevant financial covenants;

4. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

5. the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;
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6. general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group; and

7. any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The declaration, recommendation and/
or payment of dividends of the Company shall be at the
discretion of the Board. The Board endeavors to maintain a
balance between meeting the Shareholders’ expectations
and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend

policy.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

The statement of responsibility to the financial statements by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Group,
is set out in the section of “INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT” on pages 153 to 165 of this Annual Report. The
remuneration for the audit services provided by the external
auditor of the Group in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to RMB3.15 million. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, there was no non-audit services
provided by the external auditor of the Group to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable standards.
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The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group adopts appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied, and that all applicable
accounting standards are followed. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring that the Group had kept the
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group, and facilitate
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors have made reasonable enquiries as to whether
the Group has adequate resources. The Directors are of the
view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from 31 December 2021, based on the
following considerations:

° the Group is expected to remain profitable and
continue to generate operating cash inflows from its
future business operations;

o the Group has access to undrawn bank borrowing
facilities of RMB231,551,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$283,382,000) as at 31 December
2021, which can be drawn at any point of time during
the year ending 31 December 2022 subject to the
continuance of satisfactory credit ratings;

° the Group has secured a financing facility from a
reputable financial leasing company (which is controlled
by a state-owned company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) in December 2021 upon execution
of which, the Group can draw down 3-year term
borrowings of up to RMB500 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$612 million) from the aforesaid
financial leasing company during the first half of the
year ending 31 December 2022; and

o the Group has further obtained a banking facility from
a reputable commercial bank (which is dual listed on
both the Main Board of HKEx and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) in March 2022 pursuant to which, the
Group can draw down a 1-year term bank borrowing of
RMB150 million (equivalent to approximately HK$184
million) from the aforesaid commercial bank at any time
before 9 March 2023.
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In view of the above, the Directors are confident that there
will be sufficient financial resources available to the Group
to enable it to continue as a going concern and hence have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The risk management and
internal control systems are to safeguard the assets of the
Group and the Shareholders’ investment and to ensure the
reliability of financial reporting as well as compliance with
the relevant requirements of the applicable rules of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the management
of the Company provided training to the internal audit team,
accounting team and operation team, so as to ensure
effective implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures. The Audit Committee paid
great attention to risk management and internal controls and
made efforts to improve the risk management and internal
control systems during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Since 2021, the Company has gradually constructed and
put forward a comprehensive risk management system that
spans from top to bottom with all-round control, pivotal
points, clear standards and effective implementation. The
Company has promoted deep reform in its internal control
and governance from the perspectives of both staff ideology
and responsibilities as well as system construction and
implementation, so as to facilitate and ensure the realization
of the objectives of establishing a first-class listed company
and high-quality development.
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In terms of internal control construction and risk
management, the Company successfully completed the
“Risk Management and Control Quality Work” project,
further optimized and improved its system management
and authorization management as well as carried out
systematic enhancement in internal control. Through the
implementation of “Risk Management and Control Quality
Work”, the Company has orderly arranged its entire business
processes, identified and assessed relevant risk factors,
established a set of scientific and systematic construction
methods and standards for the internal control system,
and also formulated the “Internal Control and Management
System”, which have provided guidance for the operation
and maintenance of the Company’s internal control system
and created a compliance culture of “Full-scale Internal
Control”. By applying the new system management process,
the Company has created a scientific, simple, pragmatic
and efficient system, so as to effectively safeguard its
scientific trait and enforceability. While promoting the
standardization and specialization of the approval process in
authorization management, the Company has improved the
internal control and legal management system for regional
companies, as well as studied the implementation plan of
classified authorization of subsidiaries and the optimization
plan of internal authorization, thus laying a sound foundation
of internal control for the Company’s group management
and control.

In terms of internal audit supervision and rectification,
the Company has optimized its audit work methods
and procedures with remarkable results, and it has also
promoted the problem-rectification cycle in the functional
departments of subsidiaries and headquarters. The
Company has continued to strengthen its effort in internal
audit supervision, and have completed 11 internal audit
projects during the year, which including 8 subsidiaries and
1 functional department; the Company has also optimized
and improved the methods of communication and feedback
on identifying problems in the process of auditing, and
organize special communication meetings on auditing
problems according to business aspects for common
problems, as well as to fully communicate and exchange
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with the functional departments from the headquarters to
promote the overall review and improvement of problems
from system design to implementation and supervision;
the Company has optimized the copying process of certain
content of the audit report, appointed the main responsible
department and the person responsible for rectification, and
optimized and improved the ledger with problems identified
in the process of auditing as well as promoted the closed-
loop management of rectification for problems identified in
the process of auditing.

In terms of compliance construction and legal services,
the Company has recorded steady progress in legal
management and has improved the level of legal risk
prevention and control. No major lawsuits occurred during
the year. The Company has been organizing and conducting
training seminars regarding gas safety regulations and
training on legal issues in employee relations to create a
good atmosphere of “respecting the law, learning the law,
abiding by the law, and applying the law”; the Company has
continued to provide high-quality legal services, followed
up on accounts receivable litigation, responded to legal
disputes and litigations in a timely and effective manner, and
protected the Company’s compliance development.

The Directors conducted annual review on the risk
management and internal control systems to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the systems. The Company
convened meetings regularly to review the finance, operation
and compliance controls and to consider the adequacy
of resources, staff qualification and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function. The Directors are of
the view that the existing risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate for the Group.

(@) The process used by the Group to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks is summarised as follows:

(1) Risk identification: identify risks that may pose
a potential impact on the Group’s business and
operations through the Risk Committee, the
management and the Internal Control and Legal
Department;
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(2) Risk evaluation: evaluate the identified risks based
on the likelihood of the occurrence and impact
level of the risk;

(3) Response to risk: according to the evaluation
results on the magnitude of the risk, risk
management strategies are determined by the
Internal Control and Legal Department, and
through appropriate mechanisms of the Company
to ensure the effective implementation of internal
control procedures to prevent and reduce the
risks.

The main features of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are the focus on
establishment of a sound internal control environment,
continuous improvement in risks evaluation, activities
control, information and communication, and internal
supervision so as to enhance the Company’s operating
efficiency and ensure the reliability of financial reporting
and effective compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, in order to avoid the Company’s assets
suffering from any losses as a result of fraud.

The Board is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. However, the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside
information in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has adopted measures
including raising awareness of confidentiality of inside
information of the Group, issuing notices regarding
“black-out” period and restrictions on dealings to
directors and employees on a regular basis, and
ensuring compliance when handling and disclosing
inside information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged and appointed Mr. YIP Wai Yin (“Mr.
YIP”), a Hong Kong practicing solicitor, as the company
secretary of the Company. The primary contact person at
the Company with Mr. YIP is Mr. YIN Fu Gang, the Deputy
General Manager of the Company and the secretary to the
Board. Mr. YIN had day-to-day involvement in the affairs of
the Company and handled the corporate secretarial matters
of the Company together with the company secretary.

The company secretary of the Company had duly complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training during the year.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

(@) Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at
general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company signed and deposited in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company, Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special general
meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 Shareholders may, at their expense, provide
a written request to the attention of the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.
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(c)

XEAWE

Communication with Shareholders and investors

General meetings of the Company provide a direct
forum of communication between Shareholders and
the Board. Shareholders are welcome to put forward
enquiries to the Board or the personnel at management
level, chairman of the Board (or in his absence, an
executive Director), the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Risk Committee (or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees) and
where applicable, the independent board committee,
will commonly be present and available to answer
questions. Shareholders may also contact the company
secretary of the Company to direct their written
enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing
communications and relationships with its investors.
Designated senior management maintains an open
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at www.
[binhaiinv.com, where updates on the Company’s
business development, operations, financial information
and news can always be found.

As regards shareholders’ communication policy,
please refer to the procedures made available under
the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s
website at Wwww.binhaiinv.com.|
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* For

XEAWE

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary of the Company whose contact details are as
follows:

Hong Kong

Address: Suites 3205-07, 32/F, Tower Two,
Times Square, 1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2572 9228

Fax: (852) 2572 9283

Email: [prd@binhaiinv.com|

Tianjin

Address: Suites 501-502, Block 6, East Area,
Airport Business Park, 80 Huanhe Road
North, Airport Industrial Park, Tianjin,
China

Tel: 86-22-5880 1800

Fax: 86-22-5880 1801

P.C.: 300308

E-mail: [wsg@binhaiinv.com]

The Memorandum of Association and New Bye-laws of
the Company have been posted on the website of the
Company at Wwww.binhaiinv.com| and the designated
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at www.
The authorized share capital of the
Company had been increased from HK$750,000,000
to HK$828,000,000 by the creation of an additional
780,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each; other
than that there was no change to the Memorandum of
Association and New Bye-laws of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

identification purposes only
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (this
“Report”) provides an up-to-date overview of Binhai
Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries’ (hereinafter collectively the “Group”
or “Binhai Investment”) sustainable development in
2021, mainly addressing material issues related to the
Group’s sustainability development that stakeholders
concern about. This Report aims to provide key
stakeholders with a better understanding of the Group’s
sustainability development concepts, measures, and
performance. This Report is intended to be read in
conjunction with this Annual Report (in particular the
“Corporate Governance Report” contained within),
providing a comprehensive overview of the Group’s
environmental, social, and governance performance.

1.1. Scope of this Report

The Group’s core businesses include the
construction of gas pipeline networks, gas
pipeline installation service, sales of piped natural
gas, gas passing through service and sales of
bottled natural gas, and these are primarily based
in Tianjin, Beijing, Hebei Province, Shandong
Province, Jiangsu Province, Hunan Province,
Hainan Province, and Zhejiang Province. Unless
remarked otherwise, this Report contains
information pertaining to the Group’s direct
operations in mainland of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), which includes the head office
in Tianjin and subsidiaries in various provinces and
cities. Unless otherwise stated, the information
and data disclosed in this Report covers the
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(the “Reporting Period”).
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1.2

1.3.

Binhai Investment Company Limited

Reporting Framework

The Group has prepared this Report in
accordance with the latest Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix
27 (the “Guide”) of the Main Board Listing Rules
(the “Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”). This Report adheres
to the reporting principles of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide,
and complies with the mandatory disclosure
requirements and “Comply or Explain” provisions
therein.

Reporting Principles

The following reporting principles have been
applied in the preparation of this Report:

— Materiality: The process for disclosing
material issues in this Report and how they
were assessed are described in Chapter 2.3

— Quantitative: Details of the methodologies of
emissions and energy consumption used in
this Report can be found in Chapter 7

— Consistency: The methodologies used
in this Report are generally consistent
with those used in previous years. Where
there are changes in relevant factors such
as methodologies or key performance
indicators, they are indicated in Chapter 7
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1.4. Reporting Statement

This Report introduces the Group’s concepts,
actions taken, and results achieved within the
Reporting Period. The information disclosed
within the Report is sourced from the Group’s
documents and statistics. The Board of the
Group is responsible for the reliability, accuracy,
objectiveness and completeness of the
information. This Report has been prepared in
Traditional Chinese and English. Should there be
any discrepancies between the two versions, the
Traditional Chinese version shall prevail.

1.5. Feedback

Thanks to various stakeholders’ participation
and support in the preparation of this Report,
the Group is able to better understand its
progress toward sustainable development. For
any further information on environmental, social
and governance aspects, please refer to the
Company’s website [www.binhaiinv.com]. The
Company looks forward to receiving your valuable
comments and feedback, and this may be
directed to:|prd@binhaiinv.com}

ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in investments and
operations of city gas pipeline networks, gas pipeline
installation service, sales of piped natural gas, gas
passing through service and sales of bottled natural
gas in mainland of the PRC. Binhai Investment has
always strived to expand the gas market in the PRC
and was one of the first foreign-funded enterprises in
the public utilities industry in the PRC. Over the last
decade or so, the Group has been aligning with the
national policy of the PRC as a priority, and provided
clean energy for industrial and commercial users, as
well as urban citizens, striving to be an advocate and
operator for integrated energy in China.
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2.1. Sustainable Development Management

A perfect internal control and risk management
system is an important factor in achieving the
sustainable development of an enterprise. The
Group deeply recognises the importance of
the internal control and risk management of
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”),
to establish a ESG Reporting Leading Group
and ESG Reporting Working Group to manage
and implement sustainability related matters
respectively, and report to the Board on a regular
basis. The Board of the Group assumes full
responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting content.

The Board participates in the oversight of ESG
issues by reviewing and confirming the material
ESG issues, regularly reviewing ESG-related
issues and reviewing annual ESG reports, etc.
In terms of the safety management, the Board
reviews the strategy and implementation of
safety management and determines the safety
management principles for next period at Board
meetings on a regular basis.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @

2.1.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREREKRSE

ARHEARREER

TENABEERFTEEVE
—EAxEESHRIESFRRE
BRHZ - AEBZRHR
%5 mgkEgls ([ESG)) &
SERETSINESYE - B
U ESGHEBEE/NHANAE
ER TIERTT/ B - DRIAER
EEEEMAREESENI
HABEEEAENSET
e WRZEFSTHER - K
SEEZTSHAEERESG
F RS LA N ESG 3R & 19 [E 7] A

RAZZHMERE -

AEBHEFTSREE 2 HEESG
HESENERNES 81
FEMNERESGEZ I HE -
EHRBRESGHBER &
B EESGHMESF - RL 2
EENE EFETHEBEE
FERRNAEAEENR
EEEMEERBNARERE
FAETTEE MR - WHEE T
—HENZE2EEERES
H AEEREETENRE
HRMEEER - REESGH
BEZ UEMETERER
EERE o



To better manage sustainability issues, the Group
has established the ESG Reporting Leading
Group which is led by the general manager
and comprises senior management. The ESG
Reporting Leading Group is responsible for
determining the ESG reporting work plan,
reviewing the reporting framework and content.
The Group has also established the ESG Reporting
Working Group which is led by the office of Board
of Directors and comprises key staff from relevant
departments. The ESG Reporting Working Group
is responsible for formulating the ESG reporting
work plan, preparing the reporting framework,
organising team members to compile and collate
information, and preparing ESG report.

To promote the sustainability development of
the Group and protect the interest of the Group
and its shareholders, the Group has established
a risk management and governance system
and incorporated ESG factors into the system,
focusing on nine categories of risks, namely
financial risk, safety risk, compliance risks market
risk, gas source risk, cost risk, engineering risk,
asset risk and human resources risk.

The management actively communicates with
various departments to identify material risks,
and assess the probability of occurrence and
degree of impacts of the material risks, and
formulate corresponding risk response strategies
and implantation plan. The Internal Control
and Legal Department of the Group submits
risk management reports annually to the Risk
Committee under the Board to report the Group’s
risk analysis and response. Additionally, the ESG
Reporting Leading Group and the ESG Reporting
Working Group regularly identify and assess the
ESG risks and make recommendations on risk
responses, and report to the Board in the form of
issue reports.
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2.2, Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is an important part
of ESG management and daily operation of
the Group, which help the Group to examine
potential ESG risks and opportunities. Through
understanding the stakeholders’ expectations
and ESG issue they concern, the Group is
able to formulate a targeted strategy and
response to stakeholders. The Group’s key
stakeholders include shareholders, government
and regulators, customers, employees, business
partners, suppliers, media, and the surrounding
communities. The Group communicates with
stakeholders mainly through the channels listed in
the below table.
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Key Stakeholders
FTEREMERES

Shareholders

PR

Government and Regulators

BT R B

Customers
=P

Employees

1

1 T

\

Business Partners and
Suppliers
EIERM Bt ERY

Media
e

Surrounding Communities

P4 [
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Communication Channels

BEARX

Annual Reports, Interim Reports, Public Announcements,
Press Releases, Annual General Meetings, Individual and
Group Meetings

Fi - PHmE  AF - HER FERRRE - BHAUK

AN

Government Meetings, Regulations, Assessments,
Questionnaire, Site Visits
BNg®% BT T #A5Hs  BER

Customer Meetings, Customer Satisfaction Surveys
BEFg® BETnEE#E

Company and Departmental Meetings, Annual Staff
Meetings, Questionnaires, Internal Mails
ARgEMNEMEeE  FEEIAE - AEMS - REPEH

Business Partner Meetings, Questionnaires, Seminars, Site
Visits
BERAER  FAEMRS  Hag  BEMER

Press Releases, Interviews and Announcements
R WM E

Media Conferences, Charitable Activities, Donations,

Interviews
BREeE Amad - B B
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2.3. Materiality Assessment
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2.3. ERMEENG

In the Reporting Period, considering the main
business, business environment, key stakeholders,
etc., and Board of the Group confirmed that the
result of ESG materiality assessment of 2020 is
still applicable to the Reporting Period. The list of
material ESG issues of the Reporting Period is as

follows:
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Establishing a Green Office
System
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Protection of Employee Rights
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Supply Chain Environmental
and Social Risk Management
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT

China has further made contribution to energy
transition which led to increasing demand for clean
energy in 2021, the first year of the 14th Five-year Plan.
China has also proposed the goals of achieving Carbon
Peak by 2030 and achieving Carbon Neutrality by
2060, and established national policies which promotes
market-oriented reform of natural gas. The Group has
leveraged the advantages of mixed ownership reforms
to further actively promote the supply, utilisation and
promotion of gas, and is committed to promoting
clean energy. Leveraging on its long experience in the
industry, its safe and trustworthy service quality, its
professional expertise as well as the close relationship
with the local government, the Group has a coverage
of gas businesses that encompasses seven provinces
and two municipalities across the PRC, and strives
to become a top integrated energy service provider
nationwide. At the same time, with the overall objective
of energy saving and emission reduction, the Group
ensures that energy consumption matches the Group’s
growth scientifically, while taking effective measures to
achieve efficient resource utilisation.

In its daily operations, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations of the PRC and the place of
operation relating to the emission of exhaust gases and
greenhouse gases, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
(Please refer to Chapter 8 for a detailed list of laws and
regulations). During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not have any non-compliance incidents relating to
the abovementioned aspects.

mERR

2021 FER TR AR ZE
Bl R — i AL R A - B IR AL
RFH KRR R - [ - &4 2030
& [ HREIE ] F20604F [ i & A
BEMNETE  BRBERITEXAR
MIH LR E T AR o A& BT
BREFMABBINENESD - JEEBER
B - BIREERAROMHRE X
BEER - AEBRERPNITE
K R ENRELEMEE
A AR BN BT R R )
R MRREBERESHE2ELSE
M- DFKABRA—REERE B
REER - B EHEEESD
RNEBINRTE T EEER B EEE B
B HE—RINEHEREE RS X
FA RERE TEEBULHEE
AEERRMAEIE-

AEBEAREETRTEREE
EEMARER SR EREBIN
RN EHEHS BENREEZRE
BMEE T EAERER (FAEHN
ERERBERFLRAENE) - K
BEMA - AEBYWEEF LM E
THARRMERER -

Annual Report 2021 —ZT - —F 4%

55



56

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREREKRSE

3.1.

3.2.

Promoting Clean Energy Use

The Group strives to promote the popularisation
of clean energy, and increase the utilisation rate
of pipeline networks in the service locations. In
addition to the construction of pipe network, the
Group undertakes projects such as “gas-fired
boilers”, “smart energy”, “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
coal to gas”, an provide compressed natural gas
(CNG) and liguefied natural gas (LNG), vehicle
gas refuelling, LNG ship refuelling, to promote the
popularisation and development of clean energy,
and reduce the greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
recorded sales volume of piped natural gas
of 1.962 billion cubic metres of natural gas,
equivalent to replacing 2.609 million tonnes of
coal, so as to reduce 2.786 million tonnes of
carbon dioxide (CO,) and 40.3 thousand tonnes
of sulphur dioxide (SO,).

Emissions Management

The Group’s air pollutant emissions are mainly
from vehicles combustion and natural gas usage,
including nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides
(SOx), and particulate matters (PM). During the
Reporting Period, emissions of the above air
pollutants were 4.93 tonnes, 0.006 tonnes and
0.04 tonnes.
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During the Reporting Period, the total GHG
emissions of the Group is 8,095.05 tCO.e. Direct
emissions (Scope 1) was 5,931.30 tCO.e, from
the consumption of natural gas for domestic
and operational use, the consumption of petrol
and diesel, and gas escaping during the working
process. Indirect emissions from the use of
purchased electricity (Scope 2) was 2,104.26
tCO,e. Indirect emissions (Scope 3) was 59.48
tCO,e, from the business trip and consumption of
waste paper. The Group is committed to reducing
GHG emissions by resources conservation. Please
refer to the section “Resources Management” for
more detailed practice.

To reduce the emissions of air pollutants
and GHG, the Group has strengthened the
management of vehicles, including actively
phasing out and replacing the old vehicles,
encouraging field employees to commute green
by taking public transportation. The Group has
also formulated Administrative Measures for
Business Travel, requiring drivers to maintain their
vehicles and drive scientifically. The Group also
strengthens drivers’ training, formulates annual
and monthly driver training plans. The Group
has promotes the driving inspection platform to
monitor travel trajectory and fuel consumption
levels of the Group’s vehicles, so as to avoid non-
essential use of vehicles.
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The Group generated hazardous waste during
its operation. During the Reporting Period, the
hazardous waste generated by the Group was
3.05 tonnes, including odorant waste drums,
electronic waste, used batteries, mercury-
containing light tubes and used ink cartridges.
The Group rationally disposes the hazardous
waste through a serious of practices. The
odorant waste drums will be handled by third-
party companies; the used ink cartridges will be
recycled by suppliers or handled by the garbage
cleaning units; the electronic waste, used
batteries, mercury-containing light tubes will be
handled by the garbage cleaning units. The Group
has tested the odorant content of natural gas
through intelligence equipment in real time so as
to add in an appropriate amount of odorant liquid
and then reduce the generation of the odorant
waste drums. The Group has set up hazardous
waste reduction targets and taken steps to
achieve targets.
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Continue to popularise the use of LED
lightings, and reduce the use of mercury
lamp
RHELERRFEALEDRARE - MAKER
EEAE
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Promote the use of LED lightings in the
renovation of office and gradually replace the
existing mercury lamp

RIS - BuE 4R (S(E A LED IR A
Rify - BEEMIBEKREE

Reduce the generation of electronic waste
from the old and useless office equipment

MAOBEFREERARBONEL

° Require those in charge to maintain
office equipment scientifically;

EREREEANBRER QRS

o Apply for approval of the disposal of
assets;

FHRUEERETN

o Promote the exchange of old office
equipment for new ones at a discount

RIBZEMRARBITEIAERF

° Launch a pilot project of rental of office
equipment
ABMARERE

Promote the use of rechargeable equipment
to reduce the use of batteries and the
generation of waste batteries
REGAATRERE  HAOEMEAEERES
L EYEE A4

Strictly approve the procurement of office
supplies to avoid the procurement of
disposable batteries
BEELEEH LA ARERE SEHREE—

IRMEES

Promote the unified supply and handling

of consumables by suppliers, and achieve
recycle scientifically

REREEM BHERR—HE  f—RIE
RHE [

Promote the unified management of printing
consumables, and recycle the waste
consumables scientifically

B HERITEIREM i —1{b - RS2 E R EEEREN
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The Group also generated non-hazardous waste
during the pipe-connection and operation. In
the Reporting Period., the Group generated
used waste metres and steel pipes with a total
of 399.19 tonnes. The used waste metres
will be drilled and be handled by third-party
companies. The remaining gas in the waste steel
pipes must be fully discharged with the use of
nitrogen or water, and treated properly alongside
with valve chambers and other objects. Where
necessary, this should be performed by sealing
and disassembling of wastes to ensure safety.
Additionally, the waste paper generated by the
Group was 7.99 tonnes during the Reporting
Period.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
installation of pipelines and earthworks are
involved in the construction of the gas pipeline
network, and therefore mechanical noise
pollution, small amount of residual soil waste
and air pollutants will be generated during the
construction. The Group carries out gas passing
through service through PipeChina, so that
multiple gas sources can be accessible from
a single source point, thereby reducing the
installation of pipelines and the environmental
impact from the source.
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Rk -HE8REREHS

The Group has formulated Safety Management
Regulations for Construction and Safety
Management Regulations for Engineering
Construction, which specify the environmental
protection requirements during construction and
are implemented by the engineers of the Group’s
subsidiaries and personnel from construction
units, so as to reduce the noise, residual soil
waste and air pollutants during the construction.
Relevant specific measures include:

— In order to reduce residual earthwork
generated during construction works of
gas pipeline connections, backfill methods
are used. For the earthwork generated
from other processes, it is handed over to
third parties authorised by local municipal
and environmental departments for further
processing. Vehicles transporting sand or
soil are required to seal loads to prevent
leakage and spillage, and dispose of them
at designated points in accordance with the
requirements of local authorities. Soil on
site which cannot be dumped or disposed
in a timely manner must be stockpiled and
covered;

— The Group strictly requires the use of
machinery with tail gas emissions that meet
environmental monitoring requirements and
encourages the use of equipment powered
by clean energy;
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— When constructions occur at night, the
equipment that generate noise pollution
is required to be placed to the side away
from residential areas. Under special
circumstances and progress requirements,
noise reduction and sound insulation
measures are taken. Where construction
sites are located near residential areas,
vehicles entering and exiting sites in the
evening are strictly prohibited from honking
their horns, and required to lightly onload
and offload cargo.

3.3. Resources Management

Electricity, natural gas, vehicles fuel are the major
types of energy consumption of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, the Group consumed a
total of 14,043.86 MWh of energy, with an energy
intensity of 8.39 MWh per employee. Natural
gas is the major source of energy consumption,
accounting for 47.72% of the total energy
consumption. In terms of water consumption,
the total water consumption of the Group was
27,525.32 m® with a water intensity of 16.44 m?®
per employee. During the Reporting Period, the
Group does not face any issues in water sourcing.

The Group aims to save energy during its
operation. To reduce the consumption of natural
gas for operational use, the Group strictly controls
the temperature of boilers and reasonably adjusts
the start-up and shutdown of boilers to reduce
the amount of gas used for operation while the
temperature of natural gas at the outlet of the
pressure regulator remains above the dew point.
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The Group has established a green office
system through formulating a series of internal
policies, striving to save the consumption of
vehicle fuel, electricity and water. The Group has
established the Guidance on the Standardisation
of Office Premises, which includes various
recommendations on energy saving and emission
reduction and promotes the use of green raw
materials in the construction and renovation of
office premises. At the same time, the Group
monitors the costs of water, electricity and fuel
through annual and monthly expense budgeting,
formulates annual and monthly expense plans
and strictly controls them, formulates assessment
measures and creates reward and punishment
system for relevant units based on the
achievement of the expenses.

In addition to the cost forecasting of resources
use to promote energy conservation, the Group
has implemented various practices referring to
the Guidance on the Standardisation of Office
Premises, so as to achieve the goal of saving
energy while meeting the needs in offices. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has further
promoted the use of energy-efficient equipment to
achieve the goal of scientific and efficient use of
energy and avoid wasting energy.
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° Prioritise the use of LED lightings and electrical equipment with low energy consumption
B E M LED Shat IRAAR be MUK e REE 23 Rk

° Require employees to switch off electronic equipment and office air-conditioning that
are not in use during non-working hours

MEBTRIETEEMRAERIFEARENETFRBENAETER

° Adopt a Central adopting a Central Control and Monitoring System (CCMS) and Building
Management System (BMS), and divide the office lighting into several zones, installing
automatic lighting control in different zones and used energy-efficient lighting devices
PR AR AR R B R R (CCMS) M FE IR R4 (BMS) » £ R RRAF (& 13 58 37 P 8 3L 15
il 7 IR AR B A

° In terms of heating, ventilation and air conditioning control, the Group installed variable
speed drives and pumps and fans that are adjustable to actual needs
BRIMZERIESI A E - RERr] S RESSFMNAIREER T KA HKR REM RS

° Promote the use of water saving devices such as water saving valves and taps
BEEAEKEPT - /KEERFEIKR

o Arrange a maintenance officer to conduct regular checks on water metre readings and
to carry out leakage tests of concealed water pipes
ZHHEE B TF B KR BB ETTRMKE 2 RAIR

° Strongly advocate for the use of water saving equipment by promoting water optimizing
facilities during construction, renovation and repair works

BERE - o - #ETEPERKRE

° Advocate water saving through emails, posters, intranet and memos placed in toilets

FRER  BW - ABBMNESAFRARMEESE T ALK
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3.4. Actively Tackling Climate Change

The Group understands the physical risks climate
change can bring, such as extreme weathers,
as well as transition risks brought by relevant
policy changes. Therefore, the Group evaluates
the impacts of climate change continuously and
formulates the prevention and risk response
policies and strategies, such as the Contingency
Plan for Natural Disaster Risks and Safety
Management Regulations for Engineering
Construction, devoted to continuously enhancing
the Group’s ability to respond to related risks and
to seize the climate-related opportunities, thus
better tackling climate change.

3.4. RERHRERE(L
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Physical Risks Climate change may bring
ERER potential risks to project
construction.
RIRE L PR HIR B R K
B R

For major projects, the Group employs
professional institutes to conduct
comprehensive assessments on its
hydrological, geological and climate
conditions of the projects during
preliminary stage and to publish
professional reports, so as to forecast
the potential risks brought by climate
change factors to projects, and
conducts targeted risk prevention
measures accordingly.
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HERER

Natural Disasters
E % <<<

wE

Natural disasters such as
typhoons, rainstorms, floods
and freezing weathers can
cause damages to gas
equipment and facilities and
affect gas supply.
BeR - BF - MK KRZEB
AKERRESHM AR BRI
m&ﬁmmkﬁ%'%gfﬁ

Before natural disasters, special
safety checks are conducted on
the fragile areas of gas equipment.
Gas equipment will be rectified,
reinforced, protected and repaired
when discovering any safety hazards,
to ensure it can withstand the risks of
natural disasters.
EBAKERGZA - stERRARER
MR ESSIRENETTEIR R iR E TE
%%ﬁmt%%$Lﬂ & Ml B
RS BRMRRRBRIEEEZS
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The Contingency Plan for Natural

Disaster Risks is formulated and

updated. Purchase of emergency

supplies is made annually.

HECERAKNERRESER)  BFE
ERSRRYE

The Group organises employees to
participate in natural disaster safety
trainings and drills. Their ability to
respond to natural disasters are
increased after continual trainings
and rehearsals, to ensure operational
and security work can be proceeded
normally under extremely cold
Weathers
ABETETEAAETREHEIIRES
ﬁE TETNET )15 3 A0 E & A AR
B REEALENEEEN  BREE
RARTET  “RIENEERR

The Group’s fixed assets are insured,
S0 as to minimise the potential damage
by natural disasters and transfer the
potential risks through insurances.
%$EIMIEﬁFﬁﬁ&% % B4
KEMREEHNERBRERE - BBER
Mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ&
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Extreme Weathers
BLRR

wE

Extreme weather can affect
construction quality and safety
and cause threats to employee
safety
BHRRBTERIEENS
2 HBEIZZ

The Group formulated and updates the
Safety Management Regulations for
Engineering Construction to enhance
the quality and safety of construction
and improve resilience to adverse
weather conditions.
AEEHE(IRERLEERERT)
REEILEENRZE  URSHELR
1% {6 14 6 P 7 B

In Safety Management Regulations
for Engineering Construction, it clearly
states not to carry out open-air work
at height in the event of fog, high
temperature, cloudy rain, thunder and
lightning or gale force 6 or above, and
to stop work in the event of heavy
rain, typhoon or continuous high
temperature.
E(IRERZZEBHRT) PHEE
KERIBETEAE =8 BN
EBHO6RALRBRENETERS
EmIEE  BFW  BE HESR
EIEmIIES

Weather Forecast

RREZ(CTER

Weather forecast can be
uncertain, which can cause
excess or shortage in gas
source indicators.
ARE(EAFETHEENL -
TR E X SRR HE AT B 3B TR 55 R ik

The Group formulates contingency
plans for heating seasons, and at

the same time actively liaise with the
upstream gas units to reasonably
deploy the gas volumes of subsidiaries,
to ensure a maximum efficiency in
using gas supply indicators.
HEREZRERSER - RKEGRY
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RIR - HERE

Warm Winters

BEWE

Warm winters can lead to a

Different comprehensive measures are

gas use by heat-seeking
consumers, which causes
significant pressure to maintain
contingency gas supply during
heating seasons.

LB REAFAREN
RIEFERS - ERBRANRE
FRERHEEN

TSN reduction in corporates’ winter implemented to increase income and
natural gas use, which reduces cut costs, such as improving the level
the overall profit of gas. of metering control, acquiring new
BERXeERMRILELXENH customers, treating hidden problems in
K[ERD MR mke pipeline network, thus to compensate
lpEgn] iy for the profit loss due to the reduction

of gas use in warm winters.
BPRSTEERKT  BEHAP
REERAESRARRERER B
AR L RE R AT ER A BB K
Cold Winters Cold winters can lead to o The ability to maintain contingency gas
BEXR a drastic increase in the supply is enhanced through connecting

with first-hand gas sources. In 2020, a
total of 4 first-hand gas sources were
connected and in service, effectively
ensuring the gas supply during heating
season.

BBER—TFRR - LRESRMEN

The construction of LNG storage and
peak shaving facilities is increased.

In 2020, there were a total of 3 LNG
storage and peak shaving stations in
operation, which has greatly enhanced
the ability of emergency gas supply
during special circumstances.

IRAR LNG 8 B R iE 2 R

Actively promote the signing of the
Natural Gas Storage and Peaking
Shaving Cooperation Agreement with
the upstream gas units, ensuring the
ability to maintain its supply and a safe
and stable gas usage for downstream
consumers during heating seasons.
TERREEE i RREMZRE CRAR
R ESIERZE)  RETREFH
REENRTHAFPNZ 2 FRAR
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While addressing climate-related risks, the Group
is also aware of the opportunities brought by
climate change. As the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment strengthens its governance on
the environmental pollution caused by coal and
domestic industrial enterprises gradually switch
to use gas, the Group predicts an increase in
natural gas demand. In 2021, the first year of
the 14th Five-year Plan, in line with the national
policies and the carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality goals, the Group has actively promoted
the energy transition and some projects, such as
the project of the connection between the natural
gas pipeline networks and first-hand gas sources,
and coal to gas projects, so as to increase the
utilisation rate of pipeline networks in the service
locations. The Group will shoulder its mission
and continue to service its commercial clients
and urban citizens by providing integrated energy
services.

4. CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group is committed to creating a favourable
working environment for its employees and acts in
accordance with national laws and regulations that
have had a significant impact on the Group which
relate to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, and standardised the implementation of the
Code of Conduct for Employees and other internal
policies related to human resources. In addition,
the Group strictly complies with national laws and
regulations regarding the prevention of child and forced
labour, resolutely eliminating the use of either practice.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
any non-compliance cases related to the above
aspects.
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4.1. Protection of Employee Rights

Following a “fair and just, right person for the right
job” recruitment concept, and the advocation
of a “impartially hiring competent persons”
recruitment and appointment policy, the Group
ensures that all job candidates are granted
equal opportunities and fair environment for
competition. The Group objects to any forms of
discrimination and encourages a diverse team.
The Group’s employees come from over 20
different provinces and municipalities in the PRC.
The Group also strictly complies with the relevant
regulations listed in the Labour Law and prohibits
the child labour and forced labour. Before the
official admission, the Group will strictly verify
the employees’ identity information, education
information and other relevant documents, and
conduct joint verification of employee information
with third-party auditing organisations to examine
the authenticity. The Group requires its employees
to provide accurate and reliable personal
information upon commencing their employment,
and if any falsified documents or resumes are
found, the Group reserves the right to terminate
employees’ probationary period or to dismiss the
employment contract of the employee concerned.
The Group and its employees have signed
employment contracts on an equal and voluntary
basis. If child labour is found to be misused,
the Group will immediately stop the child from
working, report to the local labour bureau in time
and arrange a health examination for him or her
as soon as possible. If the child is found to have a
medical condition, treatment should be arranged
first. In addition, the Group will promptly contact
the parent or legal guardian of the child to hand
over the child to his or her parent or guardian as
soon as possible.
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The Group implements three types of working
hour schemes including irregular, consolidated
and standardised working hour schemes
according to the business characteristics, safety
requirements and specific job requirements of the
Group’s subsidiaries, ensuring that employees
have reasonable working hours and durations.
Regarding leaves, employees are entitled to
sick leave, personal leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave, maternity leave, work injury
leave, annual leave and statutory holiday leave.

The Group has formulated the Litigation
Management Measures. Upon conclusion of the
arbitration or litigation of labour disputes, the
Group will summarise lessons learnt in a timely
manner in respect of the causes, handling process
and results of the cases, and based on the cases,
the Group will conduct a joint training with the
Internal Control and Legal Department for human
resource management staff from the Group’s
subsidiaries, to enhance employees’ awareness of
legal risks and strengthen the capability of human
resource management of the relevant staff.
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4.2. Diverse Welfare Policies

The Group has adopted a remuneration policy
for its employees based on their position,
performance, contribution and performance
bonus, and has established an internal salary
scale accordingly. The Group has formulated
the Remuneration Management Measures,
adopting a uniform position and salary scale
whilst considering employees’ specific conditions
such as job responsibilities, personal work
experience, education, qualifications and other
specific indicators relating to employees’ abilities,
track record, and work performance to set salary
standards. At the end of each year, the Group
evaluates the performance of its employees
in accordance with market trends, adjusts the
position and/or remuneration of outstanding
employees, and offers discretionary performance
bonuses as appropriate. The Group provides
reasonable and lawful salaries and welfare with
five social insurances (pension, unemployment
insurance, work injury insurance, medical
insurance and maternity insurance), bonuses and
other benefits and welfare.

During the Reporting Period, the General Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company formally
approved the adoption of the 10-year stock
option plan and the first grant plan to incentivize
the directors, senior executives, core technical
professionals and management backbones who
have a direct impact on the overall performance
and sustainability development of the Group,
which marks the beginning of the operation of the
Group’s long-term incentive system for attracting
talents.
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4.3. Training and Professional Development of 4.3. BT BREEEZI

Employees

The Group has formulated management systems
such as the Staff Training Management System,
Internal Trainers Management System and
Implementation Rules for Training Incentives
and Constraints, and has adopted the notion
of ‘Building Inter-disciplinary Teams, Training
Inter-disciplinary Talents’ as the Group’s talent
development strategy.

The Group formulates annual training plans based
on its business development and talent demand,
and carries out the training programs according
to the annual plan. The Group provides internal
and external trainings and further studies to
enhance the knowledge and skills of employees
and help them achieve career development. In
terms of internal training, based on the business
characteristics of different operating locations
and the characteristics of different positions,
various types of training (such as marketing,
operation, engineering, security, legal, financial,
personnel and administration and front-line staff
skills, etc.) are arranged for different positions in
the headquarters and subsidiaries to improve the
professional technical level and management skills
of employees.
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Case: Thematic training of “Personnel Law”

During the Reporting Period, the Group invited
lawyers from a law firm to provide training on
the topic of “Personnel Law” to colleagues in
the Group’s Human Resources Department and
Internal Control and Legal Department. In the
form of “Explaining the Law by Case”, the invited
lawyers analyzed the legal issues in eight major
aspects of labour relations and employment
relations, labour relationship establishment and
labour contract formation, probation period
management, formulation and application of rules
and regulations, training and service period, non-
compete restrictions, sick leave management and
employee departure.
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4.4, Occupational Health and Safety 44. BEIRERERZRZERE

The Group deeply recognises that safe operations
play an important role in safeguarding employees’
well-being and as its first-priority mission. To
provide a safe working environment and avoid
occupational hazards, the Group strictly complies
with national and regional laws and regulations
that have had a significant impact on the Group,
continuously improves the relevant management
structure of the Group and further implements
relevant management systems such as the
Graded Production Risk Control Procedures,
Safety Management System for Surveillance and
Measurement Facilities, Management Measures
for the Distribution of Personal Protective
Equipment, and Safety Inspection and Correction
of Defects System. In order to reduce accident
rates and ensure employees’ safety, the Group
has carried out hazard detection and correction,
safety training, safety protection, and regular
evaluation. Specific measures include:

° Regularly organise the investigation and
management of potential safety hazards,
eliminate potential safety hazards in the
working environment in a timely manner, and
ensure that employees are in a safe working
environment;

° Regularly carry out safety system and
emergency management training for existing
employees and new employees, practice
emergency procedures and rescue work for
various emergencies, and regularly conduct
fire escape drills and natural gas emergency
maintenance drills for subordinate units.
At the same time, provide employees with
safety protection equipment, establish a
safety early warning system, and clarify
corresponding emergency measures for
possible emergencies;
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° Provide labour protection products
for employees, organise employees to
conduct regular health examinations to
prevent occupational diseases, and issue
occupational health allowances to front-line
employees;

° Establish a clear safety reward and
punishment mechanism, and implement
relevant reward and punishment systems
to ensure that the safety inspections of
each subsidiary are in place through the
annual safety management assessment of
subsidiaries.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
no cases of non-compliance in relation to the
provision of a safe working environment and
the protection of employees from occupational
hazards, and no major safety incidents occurred.
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Case: Lectures on Health Examination
Knowledge

In order to enable employees to better
understand their own health status, strengthen
employee health management and prevent and
treat diseases in a timely manner, during the
Reporting Period, the Group specially invited
the chief physician of a physical examination
center to provide the employees with one-on-
one consultations and held a lecture on health
examination knowledge after providing employees
with annual physical examination benefits.
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Case: Thematic training of “cardiopulmonary
emergency first aid and automatic external
defibrillator practical operation”

In order to improve employees’ awareness of
safety and first aid, and to further enhance the
ability to deal with on-site first aid in the event
of an actual incident, the Group and the labour
union organised a training on the theme of
“cardiopulmonary resuscitation and practical
operation of automated external defibrillator”
during the Reporting Period. The Group invited
external experts to explain the emergency
rescue process to employees and provide live
demonstrations.
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Case: Safety training activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group organised
2 large-scale safety trainings, namely “Training for
Main Persons in Charge of Enterprises and Safety
Management Personnel” and “Technical Training
for Gas Testing Equipment”, with a total of 164
participants. Through these two safety trainings,
the safety management and technical operation
level of relevant employees have been further
improved.
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QUALITY CONTROL

The Group attaches great importance to communication
with customers, regards business ethics and corporate
social responsibility as the foundation of the company,
and is committed to providing customers with high-quality
products and services. The Group continues to improve
its service, adheres to the belief of “taking from the society
and giving back to the society”, abides by business ethics,
and promotes corporate social responsibility.

5.1. Supplier Management

The Group attaches great importance to supply
chain management and has formulated a series
of internal policies to ensure compliance and
efficiency in the tendering and procurement
process. The Group has established the
Management Measures for Tending, Management
Measure for Non-tending Procurement, which
respectively set out the scope of application and
specific procurement procedures for tending and
non-tending procurement.

For conventional projects, the Group mainly
engages suppliers of goods and construction
through shortlisted procurement. After being
shortlisted, suppliers must sign an annual
framework agreement with the Group to carry out
specific business on the basis of purchase orders
or special contracts. For shortlisted suppliers,
the Group will conduct regular assessments and
inspections. If there is any violation, they will be
blacklisted and permanently suspended. If its
violations cause related losses to the Group, the
Group will further pursue accountability through
legal means. For unconventional projects, the
Group will select special suppliers by means of
tending and non-tending procurement. During
the Reporting Period, in terms of conventional
projects, the Group applied the engaging
practices to a total of 128 suppliers; in terms of
non-conventional projects, the Group applied the
engaging practices to a total of 65 suppliers.
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The Group also integrates ESG factors into the
process of engaging suppliers and procurement
procedures, such as evaluating whether suppliers
have certifications in environmental management
system or in quality management system. The
Group also evaluates environmental management
measures of suppliers in the aspects of product
design, raw material selection, production,
processing and packaging, etc. and assesses
whether the suppliers comply with regulations
on emissions, etc. The Group has stated in its
internal procurement policy that under the same
conditions, priority of procurement will be given
to suppliers with environmental certification
qualifications or those who can provide
environmental protection services. In addition, the
Group will conduct special factory inspections
for suppliers whom the Group cooperate with
for the first time to assess the potential risks in
terms of environment and society. The contents of
the factory inspection include but are not limited
to supplier qualifications, financial performance,
financial situation, safety and environmental
protection and other matters.

For suppliers in cooperation, the Group will also
regularly organise unannounced inspections
to assess the suppliers’ ability to continuously
provide quality services or goods. In addition, the
Group conducts annual evaluation of suppliers
on a regular basis to review the compliance level
and service capabilities of suppliers to ensure the
stability of the supply chain.

During the reporting period, the Group had 193
long-term cooperative suppliers, of which 34 were
shortlisted construction suppliers, and 30 had
quality system certification and environmental
system certification, accounting for 88% of the
total construction suppliers.
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5.2, Safe and Stable Gas Supply 5.2. Z2BEMR

The Group strictly abides by relevant national
standards, strictly controls the quality of natural
gas products, and conducts product quality
inspections in accordance with relevant national
regulations to ensure the provision of safe and
high-quality products and services.

For products such as natural gas and liquefied
petroleum gas, the Group stipulates that each
subsidiary needs to request gas quality reports
from natural gas suppliers and liquefied gas
suppliers when purchasing gas sources. The
Group sets up online chromatographs to monitor
gas in real-time at gate stations with large
receiving volumes. If the gas quality is unqualified,
the online chromatograph will automatically alarm
immediately, and the Group will immediately
switch the gas source to avoid purchasing
unqualified gases. For the gate station with a
small reception volume, the Group collects the
Supplier’s Product Quality Certificate at least once
a quarter, and conducts air quality tracking of the
gas provided by the supplier from time to time.

For the products involved in the pipe network
laying project, the Group conducts regular quality
inspections on the engineering materials and
equipment in accordance with the Regulations
on the Administration of Procurement of Gas
Materials and Equipment. During the quality
inspection, the Group will sample the products
together with the suppliers and send them to the
inspection units with relevant qualifications for
inspection. The products that fail the inspection
results will all be returned to the suppliers.
For newly purchased meters and instruments,
the Group strictly implements local first-time
inspection and customization, and returns
substandard products to suppliers.
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5.3.

In addition, the Group is also committed to
building an intelligent management system to
ensure the safe and efficient deployment of
the pipeline network and the safe operation
of the stations. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the Group had built 89 SCADA' system
depots, and 7 SCADA system depots are under
construction. During the Reporting Period, the
Group completed the reconstruction of 33 SCADA
system stations, which effectively enhanced the
deployment capability of the pipeline network and
enhanced the safety guarantee capability of the
gas transmission system.

Improvement of Customer Satisfaction

The Group has established a complaint
management mechanism to resolve customer
complaints in a timely, effective, fair and
reasonable manner. The Group has set up the
Customer Complaint Management Measures
and requires all subsidiaries to handle customer
complaints in strict accordance with the
Measures. Customers can report their problems
and needs through the service hotline, and the
customer service will deal with and respond to
complaints in a timely manner. At the same time,
the headquarters of the Group will supervise the
relevant materials and follow-up implementation
of customer complaints, and conduct return
visits and spot checks on customers. If it is found
that customer complaints are not handled in
accordance with the requirements, false reports or
concealments are found, which have a significant
impact on the Group, the Group will impose
penalties in accordance with relevant rules and
regulations. For different types of complaints, the
Group will adopt different handling procedures.
The types of complaints and handling methods
are listed as follows:
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Each subsidiary will
assign maintenance
workers to contact
customers for
replacement testing
BEMBE AR BT IRAE
ETREPIMEETER
Loyl

Inform customers

to contact the
manufacturer by
themselves
EMEFBITHMERK
The customer service

is responsible for
explaining and issuing
rectification notices

for complaints about
users' self-decoration
and failure to ventilate
smoothly, and contact
relevant colleagues

to send promotional
materials to customers
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BEREIEHEIE
M- BBERBRESEE
BREEXGEEP

Subsidiaries confirm the
complaints and then
take actions
MEARAEERIEEST
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1

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system
is a data collection and monitoring control system

SCADA (Supervisory
Control and Data
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5.4.

The Group has acknowledged its subsidiary
Tianjin TEDA Binhai Clean Energy Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Tianjin Clean Energy”) as a pilot project
to establish a call center and put it into trial
operation. When Tianjin Clean Energy receives
a customer complaint, it will dispatch workers
through the cloud system of customer service
in the call center as soon as possible, requiring
relevant departments to communicate with
customers in a timely manner to deal with it, and
the customer service supervisor will supervise.
After the relevant units have completed the
processing, the system will give feedback, and the
customer service staff of the call center will return
to the customer to ask whether their demands are
resolved and investigate customer satisfaction.
In the entire complaint and handling process,
the Group conducts closed-loop processing to
achieve 100% return call rate.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
received a total of 614 complaints related to
products and services.

Ensuring Customer Privacy

The Group respects and strictly protects the
privacy of customers and has formulated a series
of measures to avoid information leakage and
put an end to the use of false and misleading
descriptions during product promotion and
transactions. Regarding the information system
involving consumer data, the Group strictly
controls the application and account authority
of relevant management accounts. The Group
requires employees involved in secrets to sign
a confidentiality agreement, and strictly protect
customer information when serving customers.
It is forbidden to disclose relevant information
to third parties except with the consent of both
parties. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had no violations related to the above aspects.
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5.5.

5.6.

Respect for Intellectual Property

In order to resolutely safeguard intellectual
property rights, the Group has formulated
the Management Regulations on Software
Legalization, which stipulates the main responsible
unit for protecting intellectual property rights,
and specifies the responsibilities of software
budgeting, purchasing and using units, to
enhance employees’ awareness of respecting and
protecting intellectual property rights, embody the
spirit of respecting knowledge and creation.

When the Group cooperates with universities,
scientific research institutes and other institutions,
it requires the other party to use genuine software
to process data, and the results provided to
the Group are original and cannot be copied or
infringed upon. The contract of the cooperation
projects should specifies the attribution of
intellectual property rights, the authorship right of
the first right holder, the first inventor and others,
and the subjects that can be used to apply for
high-tech enterprises.

Anti-corruption

The Group attaches great importance to anti-
corruption, corporate integrity and honesty. With
reference to laws and internal regulations, the
subsidiary company Binhai Investment (Tianjin)
Co. Ltd of the Group has developed Integrity Risk
Prevention and Control Checklist and updated
the Report Management. In addition, during the
Reporting Period, the Group has further specified
the reporting measures regarding corruption
and bribery and has improved the handling
effectiveness and efficiency of the reporting cases.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had no
non-compliance incidents relating to the aspects
above.

5.5.

5.6.
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For business areas with relatively high risks,
the Group strengthens its management through
measures such as authorization and approval
control, separation of incompatible duties, and
internal supervision. The Group attaches great
importance to the integrity management in the
procurement process, prohibits any form of
bribery from suppliers, and requires the suppliers
to sign a self-discipline letter of commitment to
integrity. In addition, the Group has taken a series
of measures to prevent possible corruption in the
procurement process, such as the participation
of supervisors in procurement activities during
the process, making video recordings of the
whole procurement reviewing process, etc., and
the tender office of the Group is also responsible
for supervising and inspecting the procurement
activities of subsidiaries.

The Group has set up the Whistleblowing
Management Measures, which sets out the
procedures for handling reported incidents.
Whistleblowers can make real-name or
anonymous reports through the dedicated email,
telephone or sending letter for reporting, and the
Group will seriously deal with verified violations of
laws and disciplines. To protect whistleblowers,
the Group will keep the whistleblower’s personal
information strictly confidential.

The Group advocates “law-abiding, loyal, clean
and responsible” behaviors of employees, and
requires employees to participate in the training
of the Code of Conduct for Employees to deepen
their understanding of professional ethics. In
addition, the Group continued to promote the
construction of a integrity culture. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has provided
employees with relevant trainings on integrity and
internal control and held internal meetings, such
as training on the System Management Measures,
communication meetings on internal audit issues,
etc., to enhance employees’ awareness of
integrity and strengthen internal control.
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6. CARING ACTION 6. BEOTE

The Group is committed to giving back to the society
with practical actions, actively participating in various
community activities, and establishing harmonious
relationships with local communities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group donated a total of
approximately RMB 425,000 for community services,
with a total community service time of 3,989 hours.

In order to further improve the company’s reputation,
ensure safe and sufficient supply, and standardize
services, the Group launched the 2021 “Five Good
Service Month” thematic activities. The Group invited
local media to report on the event for 29 times
in total, and vigorously promoted the “Five Good
Service” concept of the event. The Group established
cooperation with the Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau, the Gas Management Office
and other authorities, and organised a gas safety
knowledge contest for customers. The subsidiaries of
the Group also expressed condolences to the epidemic
prevention medical staff, poor households, and public
service households such as welfare homes, nursing
homes, hospitals, and schools. The subsidiaries
of the Group have received a total of 33 pennants
from customers, communities and the government.
Through a series of internal and external activities,
the Group has achieved the results of participation
from many sectors of the society, and has won the
trust and support of customers and the community.
The contributions to the community reflected the
Group’s responsibility as a state-owned gas. In this
series of thematic events, the Group donated a total of
approximately RMB 296,000 for community services,
with a total community service time of 1,802 hours
during the Reporting Period.

AEBRNORAERTHEEH
g ER2EZBUHREY HE
iR BANER - ARER
AmEHAHFBBO42658TA
REARLRRY - A4 EREE
fRIE 3,989 N\ ©

BTE-TRAGEHEIMNR R
Bz HEEE RERS -
AEBRAHRERAFHRE2021 F
BIRiFRSA] TEEE - L&
RS R B 1T R B ¥ AT 29
R ARNEBEEESN AR
BED - KR ETEERBF - KK
BEAEER MRRSEMREIE
#F - AEAPHARMRA L Z2AH
HERE - BB ARM—R&E
BEAR - IRP - @B -
B - Bt - BREJETEE - B
NARIRFHNERRP  HELRBAF
REIX 83 BE G333 W - BB EXT
MASNEREE  HBER2E &
BEPAHEBRNGEEESS - BR
MREENBEBEES - AREH
N AEBEZTEESHTHIEA
1,802/N - AR FEESEA
TREN296BTARE -
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Case: “Five Good Service Month” thematic R4 AEFRBEA
activities

Safety examination by Tangshan Subsidary Company
FILRRIZ2RIE

“Promotion and Publicity” activity by Zhuozhou Subsidary Company
FINRREFES
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“One-stop Convenient Service Point in Communities” activity by Liuyang Subsidary Company

NI 8 N R DR )

Safety knowledge contest by Dezhou Subsidary Company
EMAREBARANBHRE LY

Annual Report 2021 —ZT - —F 4%

89



In addition, during the reporting period, the Group
called on all subsidiaries to jointly carry out the “Send
Warmth” activity, providing services and donating
necessities to the relevant groups in the service area.
By donating daily necessities to special groups, we
have held special exchange meetings with stakeholders
to strengthen the communication and connection.
In “Send Warmth” activity, the total service time was
365 hours, and the total amount used for the activity
was about RMB 58,000. During the reporting period,
the subsidiaries of the Group also carried out various
community service activities in accordance with the
specific conditions of their locations to fulfill their
social responsibilities. During the reporting period, the
subsidiaries of the Group have invested a total of 1,822
hours in community services voluntarily, with a total
investment of approximately RMB 72,000.

Case: “Send Warmth” activity

Zibo Subsidary Company

Zibo Company organized
employees to send warmth
to military martyrs, retired
veteran cadres, and elderly
in the business area,
replaced hoses and alarms
for them in free of charge,
helped users with cleaning,
and publicized safety
knowledge about natural
gas use for users. During
the activity, Zibo Company
eliminated the hazards for
users in a timely manner,
and enhanced users’
awareness of safe gas use and explained to users the
knowledge of meter usage to help with users for a more
convenient use of natural gas.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Yishui Subsidary Company

Yishui Company organized employees in operation,
security inspection and charging to carry out the
activities to retired cadres, lonely elderly and other
users in the business area. During the activity, the
staff carried out security checks at the home, replaced
stainless steel bellows for free for retired cadres and
the elderly, and cleaned the kitchen for users. In
addition, Yishui Company delivered daily necessities
such as oil, rice and flour to users, and distributed
publicity materials about safety to users to improve
their awareness of safe gas use.

KD BRRREE

KR RIMEBETAR A
B WEBABSETITHKZEREA
BERgE - MBEEASAFPRAREZ
RmEEEE - HEARBT 0 TIEARE
TT AP & W RRKE IR
BEZARBEBAREIEAE B
RPETTHEERE - L H - ik
REIBMPAETH K L
mMFm FARABPERLZER
REEME ETRE2EIREHE
ReEAFPFZ2ARER  REAR
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7. THE GROUP’S ESG PERFORMANCE 7. ZX&£EMESGEMEE
DATA

Resource Consumption’
ER#EAE"
Purchased Electricity MWh
3,063.81 2.534.57 151.66

HNEE S KL
Purchased Natural Gas MWh 6.701.43 7 09710 4414
HNER AR JKELEF o B '
Diesel Mwh 44512 417.36
L5 {5 A JKFL B ' ' Not disclosed
Petrol MWh 3.093.50 2 66110 BERE
R A KBS T B
Total E C d MWh 14,043.86 12,640.12

otal Ene onsumption an N 1T ; :

, 9y umpt KEE Not disclosed
Intensity CERE
PO - ) B
RARAE MWh/Employee 8.39 7.36 .

KEr/GET
m3
27,525.32 25,602.13 38.45
Purchased Freshwater and T ¥
Intensity s
SN E A E R _m/Employee 16.44 14.94 0.02
MNAX/BET
Hazardous Waste Generation by Type?
REREINESEENEE?
Electronic Waste tonnes
1.425 288 10
BTEEY NIE
Batteries tonnes 0.04 4,083 (Pieces) 72 (Pieces)
it AlE ' 4,083 (@) 72 (f8)
Mercury-containing Light Tubes tonnes 0.01 14 (Tubes) 200 (Tubes)
SKRHEE N ' 14 (%) 200 (%)
Ink Cartridges tonnes 0.72 1,286 (Pieces) 20 (Pieces)
Ba N ' 1,286 (&) 20 (1)
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Odorant Waste Drums tonnes 0.86
IR BIEE N '
tonnes .05 Not disclosed Not disclosed

'I('aotal H?zardous Waste N . AT AT

eneration
EEGEYEE kg/Employee 180

Tr/88T
Non-hazardous Waste Generation by Type®
REREINEERENRE?
Z;;;rs t?ﬂggs 7.99 2.46 132
gNU
Waste Used Meters tonnes 63.54 197,337 (Pieces) | 79,982 (Pieces)
BEER N ' 197,337 (%) 79,982 (1)
Waste Used Pipes tonnes 335,65 48,567 (m) 43,683 (m)
BEEE N ' 48,567 () 43,683 (K)
tonnes
R 407.18

;otal N(t),n hazardous Waste N Not disclosed | Not disclosed

eneration . = N =
BEEEYEE kg/Employee 04324 RERE RERE
oo o Tr/BE8T '

! In the Report, the disclosure unit of “Purchased

Electricity”, “Purchased Natural Gas”, “Diesel”, and
“Petrol” is unified as “MWh”, and the disclosure unit of
density is unified as “MWh/Employee”.

The unit of hazardous waste disclosure in 2021 is
unified as “tonnes”, and the disclosure data of relevant
hazardous wastes have undergone certain forms of
estimation.

The unit of non-hazardous waste disclosure in 2021 is
unified as “tonnes”, and the disclosure data of relevant
hazardous wastes have undergone certain forms of
estimation.

ABEPHIIBED] T4
RAR] - T8mER] - [ E
RINERENREEUSR R
kR BmEMRESLLE—
RIKEK/SET]-

2021 FM B EEEMHESEMNL
—RIHE]  HEEEEEYHE
EHETVBRBHEEMSG -

2021 FRMEZSEEYHESEMNL
—AB[W| HEEEEEMHE
EHETVBRBHEEMSG -

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

93



94

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRSE

Air Pollutant Emissions’

FTHE R

b=
2

RRISRMBEHE"
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) tonnes
4.93 2.20 4.75x 10
REAl(NO) NI}
Sulphur Oxides (SO,)? tonnes
0.006 0.05 1.72 x 103

FRAE) (SO, )2 NI
Particulate Matter (PM) tonnes 0.04 Not disclosed Not disclosed
FRZ B (PM) N ' RERE RERE
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BEREHENE
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions
HE— — EEHINE

Tonnes CO e*
Fuel Combustion Emissions® /‘umﬁ—ﬁ{ljﬁ;* 0 996,60 5 170 07 03,16
HRRHIR I HE B e

====R

Tonnes CO.e
Methane Emission® 2 Not disclosed

Nt 3,704.70 9,398.02

RENE

The calculation of air pollutant emissions for 2021
and 2020 include the use of vehicle and natural gas
(including natural gas used in production and daily
operation). The air pollution emissions from power
generators are not included in the calculation due
to their low fuel usage. Vehicles that are calculated
include the vehicles owned and used by the Group. The
calculation method and related emission coefficients of
air pollution emissions for natural gas are formulated
in accordance with the First National Pollution Source
Survey: Urban Living Source Production Pollution
Coefficient Manual and The First National Pollution
Source Survey: Industrial Pollution Source Production
Pollutant Coefficient Manual issued by the State
Council. The calculation method of air pollutant
emissions and the calculation of relevant emission
coefficients for vehicles are formulated in accordance
with the Technical Guidelines for Compiling Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory of Road Motor Vehicles (Trial) issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission
of the People’s Republic of China.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A A
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The natural gas used by the Group has all been
desulfurized, and the amount of sulfur oxides produced
is extremely small, so the calculation scope of sulfur
oxides only includes the use of vehicles.

The Group’s fossil fuel combustion emissions in 2021
and 2020 mainly come from vehicle use and natural gas
use (including natural gas used in production and daily
operation). The emission form power generators are not
included in the calculation due to their low fuel usage.
The calculation method of greenhouse gas emissions
and the calculation of relevant emission coefficients
for vehicles are formulated in accordance with the
Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Land Transportation
Enterprises (Trial) issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of
China. The calculation method of greenhouse gas
emissions from natural gas and the calculation of
relevant emission coefficients are formulated according
to the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting
of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Chinese Petroleum
and Natural Gas Production Enterprises (Trial) issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission
of the People’s Republic of China. The scope of fuel
combustion emissions in 2019 includes the use of
vehicles and natural gas for domestic use (cooking in
the canteen) of the Group’s headquarters.

The greenhouse gas emissions from the use of natural
gas only include the emissions of carbon dioxide due to
the calculation method.

The greenhouse gas emissions calculation includes
methane emissions from the Group’s production
process. The calculation of the relevant emission
coefficients is formulated in accordance with the
Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Chinese Petroleum and
Natural Gas Production Enterprises (Trial) issued by the
National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China.
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AEBEFERORARIBBHR
BRI EANTRELDER)
AmmatmntEaEEes
EEEM -

K& B R 2021 F 2020 F 1k
BB E B RRNER
R - RARER (BEEEHR
RMETFER) - AEEEHM
REAERD  FIAKRMAGE
HE-- BHFERNEEREBIER
WETE AR BB EREE
TREREARLMBEBERER
MAEZESBRHN(ELRB
BERCERETREERZERE
MR EER (R17)) F$lEl - X
ARERNREREHENNTE
FERABBERREEGTE TR E
AREMBEEREEMNEERZ S
SEGN(RBRABMMRATE
ErEREREHNZE AR
HwEER (A7) BIEATHIET -
2019 F MR BB E B 5
RNEEBIH B EHEHFERME
ERRAR (REER) °

Hpf RAREARR =R
EARFERIZRRA REET
ZAACHEV R E -

HRAEREBHMNERRAE
B B0 T 2 7 A B B bt R IR
B - AEME B EREF
EARKMBEBERERMAESR
Begmu(PEABMRAR
FECERERBHRZEN X
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RE - B RERRE

Scope 1 Total Emissions

Tonnes CO,e

N oo YN k=R g4 5,931.30 11,570.29 23.16
BE—BHRE PR
B2
Scope 2 — Indirect Emissions
BE_— —HEHERE
Purchased Electricity Tonnes CO, 5 104.96 1 546.34 134.11
SNBE ST YN Tl 7 o T '
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions
#E= — HthREEHERE
Wastepaper Disposed at Landfill Tonnes CO,e
Sites? YN/ F 7 38.33 11.80 3.94
REIHERANER? 28
Tonnes CO.e
Business Travel® 2
, N I=p 7 21.15 10.92 7.23
B R e
[==RE=S
Tonnes CO.e
Scope 3 Total Emissions =
o YN kY |7 59.48 22.72 11.17
HE=mHnE e
B2
Tonnes CO,e
NIt g i7d 8,095.05 13,162.07 168.44
Total Emissions of Greenhouse B8
Gas and Intensity Tonnes CO,e/
BERRGHNEREE
" . Employee 4.84 7.66 0.01
N R | rd
E8/8BET
Total Number of Employees
. Persons 1,674 1,718 1,809
ETHH
Number of Employees by Employment Type
REREZEASNEIAY
Contract Employees Persons
1,674 1,718 1,798
aREET A
Dispatched Employees Persons 0 0 11
BHIKEAR A
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Number of Employees by Region

BRuBEINETAY

Hebei, Beijing, Tianjin Person

s e 1 1o B
ﬁ?;?dong Pej?ns 977 088 087
Zhejiang, Hunan, Jiangxi Persons 999 037 031
AN [z RN A

Jiangsu, Anhui Persons 168 174 177
TE - ZH A

Other areas Persons

i A ° ° ’

The calculation method and related emission factor
calculation method for the greenhouse gas emissions of
purchased electricity in 2021 are based on the power
grid emission factors in the Guidelines for Accounting
Methods and Reporting of Enterprise Greenhouse
Gas Emissions for Power Generation Facilities (2021
Revised Edition) issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

The calculation method of greenhouse gas emissions
and the calculation of the relevant emission factors
are based on the Guidelines for Accounting and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals
from Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Public) in
Hong Kong (2010 Edition) issued by the Hong Kong
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the
Environmental Protection Department.

The calculation method of greenhouse gas emissions
is based on the calculation method of carbon dioxide
emissions from air travel by the International Civil
Aviation Organization, a United Nations specialised
agency.

2021 FHNBE 1B E REEHE A
FTE A ERABBERABETE T
REFEAREMBEERLIRED
BHM(EEREREERZE
HEE G B ER (2021
FIEETHR) ) R ERPERE T AT
I

SR EREHEMAET B ITA R
BHMEBGTEDREREHRE
ITEERREREZEMHN(E
BEEY (B FEROHMA
) IR R RS B IR R BR MY X
BN E 5120105 ) FAGIRT ©

R EREHMAE AR
BEHABEBETHEBERERAMZE
ABOMERIZESE 2 — S Lk
BEMGET BT LR HIRT ©

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

97



98

Number of Employees by Gender?
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BRSSP HET AE!
Male Persons
1,141 67.3 (% 67.2 (%
. X (%) (%)
Female Persons
533 32.7 (% 32.8 (%
gts A ) )
Number of Employees by Age Group
RERABEINETIAE
Under 25 Persons
. 125 9.4 (% 9.0 (%
25 BT A ) )
26-35 Persons
684 41.0 (% 39.1 (%
26 5% 35 5% A %) %)
36-50 Persons
716 41.4 (% 438.0 (%
36HE50%5 A ) %)
51 or Above Persons
X 149 8.3 (% 8.9 (%
51530 b A %) %)
Number of Employees by Academic Qualification
REREINEIAY
Bachelor’s Degree or Above Persons
5283 28.2 (% 26.8 (%
KR B A ) )
College Diploma Persons
o 516 29.7 (% 29.7 (%
KB A vl vl
Senior High School or Technical
Persons
Secondary School X 463 30.4 (%) 31.5 (%)
aFs+E
Junior High School or Below Persons
, 172 11.7 (% 11.9 (%
DR KT A v )
Percentage of Employee Turnover by Employment Type
REREHIASNETIRAE
Contract Employees 0
ARSIET % 7.10 6.32 6.56
Dispatched Employees 0
N % 0 0 0
LHREAS ’

Binhai Investment Company Limited
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Percentage of Employee Turnover by Gender
BMRBSNEIRAE

Male

%
Ex]

6.70

6.54

5.96

Female

%
it

7.94

5.87

8.06

Percentage of Employee Turnover by Age Group

BRERBINBEIRAER

Under 25

%
05 EFH AT °

5.30

10.56

8.99

26-35

. . %
26 ;L2 3573%

7.69

5.26

8.05

36-50

i " %
36 5% £ 50 5%

6.28

5.70

5.70

51 or Above

%
5188 L °

9.70

9.55

2.42

! Employee data by gender, age and educational
background in 2020 and 2019 is the percentage of the
number of employees in each specific category, and the

unit of disclosure is %.

20204 K 2019F LRI & 5

BERE D

RBEESMET

BEAZABIEOAREREA
BETASMB L WEBMN

"% e
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Percentage of Employee Turnover by Region
RHBEINEIRAE

Hebei, Beijing, Tianjin

T % \gﬁi : % 6.67 4.79 5.29
ih;ndong % 6.73 5.57 8.60
;glénj%%ﬁl{n;aln,ﬁmangm % 8.76 7.78 7.60
Jiangsu, Anhu % 8.20 13.43 10.61
TE -~ ZH

Other Areas % 0 14.29 0
H i@

Training and Development of Employees'

BT

Total Number of Training Hours Hours

rocelved by Fmployees B 65,999 7,739 1017
B8 TR ¥

Average Training Hours Received by Gender

BR8P IR I B

Male Hours 43 43 16
B N ' '
Female Hours 31 41 13
gy N3 ' '

Average Training Hours Received by Employment Level

BRI 82 19353 B B

Senior Management Hours
s e . 2 4.1 1.4

BREIERE /N

Middle Management Hours
P . 12 4.1 1.4

HRERE N

General Employee Hours
40 4.3 1.6

L@ET /B
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Percentage of Employees (by Gender) that Received Training?
BURIESHNZHNET?
Male
% 68.20 67.3 67.2
S °
Female % 31.80 32.7 32.8
0 . . .
g
Percentage of Employees (by Employment Level) that Received Training
BRRNEINZIET
Senior Management % 0.36 0.4 0.4
— (0] . . .
mREEE
Middle Management % 130 15 13
— (0] . . .
hRERE
G | Empl
;nezrla mployee % 98.32 98.1 98.3
EEET
Number of Suppliers by Region
Rt EE S NHtEREE
N f
Hebei, Beijing, Tianjin Stmblzrz " . -
Wi R - K2 P
28
Number of
Shandong um (?r ©
L= suppliers 33 18 33
2H
N f
Zhejiang, Hunan, Jiangxi umb(ler ©
N . suppliers 35 31 25
WL #E Il
28
Number of
Jiangsu, Anhui um (?r ©
TEE - B suppliers 18 29 14
- 2H
N f
Other Areas stmbf;rz 26 87 13
Hip i E b
2R
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Number and Ratio of Work-related Fatalities
RIEBEMETHARREER
N fP P

umber of Persons ersons 0 0 0
AE A
Ratio

% 0 0 0

P ’
Number of Working Days Lost Due to Work-related Injuries
EIGBAXIERE
Number of working Days Days 399 751 042
TERE RE

The large changes in the employee training data in
2021 compared to previous years are due to changes in
calculation methods. The statistical method of employee
training hours in 2021 is the sum of the total training
hours of all trained employees. The statistical method
of employee training hours in previous years is the total
training hours of all training sessions.

The calculation method of the employee training rate is:
the employee training rate of the relevant category = the
number of employees trained by the relevant category/
the total number of trained employees.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS WHICH
HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON
THE GROUP

During the Reporting Period, the Group abided by the
following laws and regulations and has strengthened
its compliance management through the following
measures,

— Strengthen legal training to enhance relevant
personnel’s legal knowledge and raise their
awareness on legal compliance;

— Establish internal rules and policies that comply
with laws and regulations and to consolidate
systems and processes through information
system so as to reduce the possibility of human
manipulation;

— Law-related matters in daily business activities
shall be reviewed by legal personnel and the
participation of legal personnel is required in major
business decisions, external investments and
cooperation projects;

— Strengthen the enforcement of supervision and
accountability

8.

HASEEAEARTLENE
BESAEIER

REBEEA » AEBEST T8
RYERER - WiBB N TR
ARER

— A EREV - (REEBAR
BILERAE - R’IABEER

=roauh .
SN

—  ABREHEMRIFAER
ERE - RIS RGE
(EHIERIZ - B A BB

e

— E%%fﬂqﬂﬂﬁi/‘:i%E*EW
ﬁl\&,éfﬂ/\f’ﬁ £I8 B B 2R
ABE2H8

—  IERBMITEEMEMLIER
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Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC

Environmental Impact Assessment Law
of the PRC

Environmental Noise Emission
Standards for Construction Sites (GB
12523-2011)

Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste

Standards for Pollution Control of
Hazardous Waste Storage National
Hazardous Waste List

Clean Production Promotion Law of the
PRC

Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

Soil Pollution Control Law of the PRC

(P EA BRFIERFIREZ)

(FEANRRFENIRE 7 27 E %)

(B L5 RIRERBHIRE)

(GB 12523-2011)
(HEANRRFE B REY) T RIRE G
B A JED
(BBREYRT 7T RIFFIEE)

\C eV 33k

(P EARERFIEDE R FE(E#Z)

(P EAERFIEIETAIEERZE D

(A RRFE] +2)5208%)

Relating to compensation and dismissal, Mainland Labour Law of the PRC

recruitment and promotion, working China Labour Contract Law of the PRC

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

Relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and Mainland
land, and generation of hazardous and China

non-hazardous waste

BRABERIOREREBYN - MKELH
PSS UREEREEZERVNESL

diversity, antidiscrimination, and other Hong.Kong Employment Ordinance

. China
benefits and welfare
BN RE  BREEEA - THER B P (PEARFAFE 8% )
B TEHE Zab RER (FPEARRFE L E)E F)E)
VA K EL A 155 38 N A2 A hEREE | (EEEA)
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Mainland Regulation Prohibiting the Use of Child
) . China Labour
Preventing child and forced labour v K
ong Kon
g. 9 Regulations of Child Employment
China
o hEANM | (FEFETLRE)
Pl T RIS T —— =
WEEE |((ERFLZEHR)
Regulations on the Safety Management
Relating to providing a safe workin of Construction Projects
environinenfan d r?)tectin om Iogees Mainland | Administrative Measures for Emergency
from occu ationa:)hazardsg pioy China Plans for Production Safety Accidents
P Fire Protection Law of the PRC
Safe Production Law of the PRC
(BRIEL T EEEZIFD)
ERRBLZE2TIERERRERERER R o B o (LEL T FULESTAREENE)
BxMREE (P ZEA B FIEE %)
(PEARRFE L EEZE)
Advertising L f the PRC
Relating to health and safety, verising Law orine
. . ) ) Trademark Law of the PRC
advertising, labelling and privacy matters Mainland ) i
i ) ) Protection of Consumer Rights and
relating to products and services China
rovided and methods of redress Interests Law of the PRC
P Electronic Commerce Law of the PRC
(PEARRFE EESZ)
BRI EERMRBHREREZ S - B P (P EARRFEFIZZ)

BE  BEIALEBEERALMBRITE

(FPEANRHRFEEEZ # i (RE%)
(FEANRHAFHEEFEFZ)

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

105



106

g

Binhai Investment Company Limited

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
=I5 HERERHE

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering

Mainland
China

Criminal Law of the PRC

Supervision Law of the PRC

Anti Unfair-competition Law of the PRC

Anti Money-laundering Law of the PRC

Interim Provisions on Prohibition of
Commercial Bribery

Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC

Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Administrative Discipline for Public
Officials

Hong Kong
China

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

B - $R - MEFRRRE

PEAM

(FEARRFE T Z)
(FEANRHNEEEOZ)
(FEANRRFE R IEZHF L)
(FEANRKNEREEZ)
(BERZIL B EREETT R ETTHE)
(FEARHAHEIIERIEZ)
(FEANRHKFE BN BB ISR 705D

TEEE

(B 1L 5 151D

BEREAR AT



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBERSE

9. HKEX’S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

9. BBEBXz (RIR 4
gRERW|ERES) Rl

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBmEA1: XY

General
Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BEERNAEREHN KR OEES B EREEZEENNE

HEEH

(a) BE: R

(b) BTFTHBETABEATZENRMERZLAHNOER

3,3.2,8

KPI A1.1

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERUiE S M AR BB

KPI A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (B8E1) ReREE (BE2) REREHERE (ABEETE) &k (1@
) BE (A SESEMN - §EKRHBEE)

KPI A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEAESEEYEE (AEAHE) k (ER) BE (WAEEE8
i ~ BIERMETHE)

KPI A1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEARZEEYESE (AEAE) X (ER) BE (WAEESE
i ~ BIERMETE)

KPI A1.5

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

PRSI BE I E B 1R R A E R E L& B IR TR 2 5

3,332,338

KPI A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HEIEEERESEEYMNE - REMMIZARERERAES
B L B AR ATEREL Y 2P B

3.2
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Aspect A2: Use o
BHEA2: ERER

f Resources

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 3.2,33,8
Disclosure other raw materials.
—RIKE BRERER (BRIEER  KREMERME) BBER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas 7
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RENESMEER/IREZERR (NE - fsoh) #FEE UTETR
et HE) REE (A ESEA - FHERETE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production 7
volume, per facility).
BRKERZE (MAEGESEN - BHEREAE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to 3,3.2,83.3
achieve them.
PR AT SZ BB IR A e B AR K iE 25 Lk B AR PR SRR B 22 5
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 3.3
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
FRHCSKEUE KR ER B AR ERE - ARPIET SR AR BIE R AE
FiE L B R EREN A P B
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if Not applicable’
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. iE A
X MTABEMHNEE (UBEETE) kR (WER) BEEEMULE
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : BERRXAER
General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the 3.2
Disclosure environment and natural resources.
—MRIEE BUR AT AR R RABE RIERERN T ENER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 3.2
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
M EBRDHRBRARAAERNERZERERNEEEBATENTY
Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4 : RIFEL
General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 3.4
Disclosure issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—RIRE BAIREHD K RAIREHBETAESYENERRIFEBEEH TR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 3.4

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
BB A RAEGHETAEEZENERRBEEFREE - EHTH

! As the Group does not use packaging materials, this
KPl is not applicable.

7 -

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A A

' HRAKEEXB RS RERNE
KMEHER - WRARERUERET



Employment and Labour Practices

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBERSE

EREEREZEIER
Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EfE
General Information on: 4,41.4.2,8
Disclosure (@)  The policies; and
—RIEE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRF R E  BEREST  TERE - RE - FERS - 2t
P ISR DA 2 A 455738 R 4@ A B
(a BE: &
(b) BTFHBETABEATZENHBEZRRONNER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- 7
time), age group and geographical region.
IR EEER (NEBEFER) - FRERN R E D EEAH
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 7
RIER - FEARI R E S DB IR B MK L E
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: REHEZE
General Information on: 4.4, 8
Disclosure (@)  The policies; and
—RIHE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FHRfZ2TERERREESREBELEEN
(@) BE: R
(b) BTFTHBITABEATZENRBEERRONER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past 7
three years including the Reporting Period.
BE=ZF (BREERFE) BAITHOABRLE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 7
FHIGERTIEAS
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and 4.4
how they are implemented and monitored.
TR AR B R R 26 - ARBARNITRERF
Annual Report 2021 —Z - —FFiR
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[EE B3 : #ERIE
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suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

MG AR EEENEN - MERTEABMNMHEREE UEE
FIEBBITRER A

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 4.3
Disclosure duties at work. Description of training activities.
—RIEE BRRAERE BT BB MH R EEMBER - S 7E)
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 7
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
RUERNEESER (WaRERE  HPREEES) BAoNXIIEERS
t
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 7
employee category.
R M EBERIE D - BEESTRE I TR S
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEmB4 : T EH|
General Information on: 4,41,8
Disclosure (@)  The policies; and
—RIEE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
Relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRABTLEE ToaR sl TH -
(& BEX: X
(b) BETFTHBITABEATENHEMEEEZRBRANER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 4.1
and forced labour.
MR BB ENNE R RET R4 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 4.1
TR B TR E AR IS U ERR A B IS 00 BT ERER B 22 BR
Operating Practices
EEEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : ftEHEE
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 5.1
Disclosure chain.
—RIKE BB ERAIRIE Rt g R ECR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 7
i B SR HERER
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 5.1

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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KPI B5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
M BREERNHERGERGNRERESRBNED - L RABREHT
MBS ITE

5.1

KPI B5.4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M ERGEEERRRELARRERRREAIED - AREEHITR
BERIA

5.1

[EmEB6 : EmEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

General
Disclosure

—RiIE

Information on:

(@  The policies; and

(o)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods and redress.

BHRHEEMNBRBEOERRZS BE  REILBEEAREK

FER]

(a BEE: X

(b) HETFTHBITABERZENEBERKANEER

53,54

, 8

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
EERDERERABTEZ 2 BEREHMADWN T DT

No relevant
incident

EREENS

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
FRENE D MRGORFHE A REE A

5.3

KPI B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
i ot B A o I (R B AN E MR AR 1B 1

5.5

KPI B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
S BT A2 I A fn B WOR e

5.2

KPI B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

BE B EERRERALBBRE - ARBERTRERTE

5.4
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BmEB7 : RES
General Information on: 5.6, 8
Disclosure (@)  The policies; and
—RIEE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI LA - $R - BRFREREN ¢

(&) BX: &
(b) BTFTHBITABEATENEBEERRANER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought No relevant
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the incident
outcomes of the cases. AR RN
RERBAANLHITASEEEREWEBRENESHFARGOE R KK
EA

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 5.6

and how they are implemented and monitored.
By S MR RIZ T - AR AR IT RER A
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 5.6
MmERERE TRENREFH
Community

HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[BEBS: #HtERE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 6
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
—RIEE into consideration the communities’ interests.
BN RSLEABBEEMEHRFENRRAER THEEELR
MERE R
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, 6

labour needs, health, culture, sport).
SIER®E (HE  BEFE  SIHFR - @F b 8B5F)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 6

EEIHBMBHAER (NEEAER)
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Biographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management

EERSHEEAEEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zhiyong, aged 50, has been the Chairman and
an executive Director of the Company since 17 October
2020. Mr. WANG graduated from Nankai University in 1994
with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He also obtained
a Master’s Degree in Economics from Nankai University in
2009 and a Doctorate Degree in Economics from Nankai
University in 2020. Mr. WANG was the head of transactions
of the International Department of Northern International
Trust and Investment Company Limited* ( it 77 & B 15 5%
& B A R Aa)) prior to joining Tsinlien Group (Tianjin)
Asset Management Company Limited* (ZE&EE (X&) &
EEEARAR) (“Tsinlien Group (Tianjin) Asset”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Tsinlien Group Company Limited ( &
% &£ B B B 2 &) (“Tsinlien”) in 1998. He was formerly
the manager of the Finance Department, deputy general
manager and general manager of Tsinlien Group (Tianjin)
Asset. Mr. WANG was formerly the chairman of the board
of directors of Tsinlien and Tianjin TEDA Industrial Group
Co., Ltd* (REREBEEXEEAR AR (“TEDA Industrial
Group”) (formerly known as Tianjin Tsinlein Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd.), both being controlling shareholders
of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited ( X 3 2 & 12 i%
B B A 7)) (“Tianjin Development”) (a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange — Stock Code: 882). He
also served as the chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of Tianjin Development. Mr. WANG
currently serves as the chairman of the board of directors of
Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (“TEDA”), a state-
owned company established in the PRC and the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

B
HTES

IXEBRE S50 BZZE_ZTFTAH
THtHRBRETARREREATES -
TRAER—NNUFEXRERAE
WESEEBELEN - FHRRTT
NERESEMARSBLEESELTS4A - I
RZEZTFREEAABLESE L
B o THRAER—NNANFEMAEEE
(R2E) BEEEBERAR ([FHE
(R2)BED (EBEBAR QA
([EE]) WEEWBAR) AT BiLH
B SR ERMDAERARMHRE IR
SEE - HHEEHRER (X2) BESD
BREPACIE - BB AL o ThE
BEEBEEREREEXEEBR AT
((REBEEEH)]) (ABAKREEHIEE
TRAERAR) (MAREERERIERER
AR ([ RFER]) (— KRB BB
Emz AR — RO : 882) AUIER
BRR) EEEEF - BAEEREER
EECIFRATES - TAERMEX
EREREERERAR ([FE]) (—
FRFRKZIARE AR RARBER
BRER) EESEE -
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Senior Management
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Mr. ZUO Zhi Min, aged 59, has been the Vice Chairman
and an executive Director of the Company since 16 October
2020. Mr. ZUQO is a PRC senior economist graduated from
Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce in 1987 with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics. He also obtained a Professional
Master’s Degree in Management Science and Engineering
from China University of Petroleum (Huadong) in 2006.
Mr. ZUO has served various positions in Sinopec Marketing
Co., Ltd.* (FFEIA{LEERR2AT), Sinopec Assets
Management Corporation* (F Bl A{t EEEELLEIE N F])
and the Yunan and Shandong crude oil branches of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation ("Sinopec") (Stock Code:
386) since August 1987. From August 2018 to date, he
serves as the deputy general manager of China Petroleum
& Chemical Corporation Natural Gas Branch Company* (&
Bl AR{E TG ERRRRARSAF) (“Sinopec Gas”),
the deputy general manager of Sinopec Natural Gas Limited
Company* (FEIA{LRAREREEALF) and an executive
director and the general manager of Sinopec Great Wall
Energy Investment Company Limited (“Great Wall Energy”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. GAO Liang, aged 54, has been the General Manager
and an executive Director of the Company since 4 August
2009. He has been the Compliance Officer of the Company
since February 2010. He is also the general manager of
Binhai Investment (Tianjin) Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the PRC
since April 2009. Mr. GAO is a senior engineer. He graduated
from Wuhan Urban Construction Institute (2 HE& 2
B ) with a major in environment hygiene engineering in 1988,
and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Nankai University (FBFAZ) in 2005. He was the
deputy director of the Science Promotion Center of Urban
and Rural Development Administrative Committee of Tianjin
Municipa (KEMIRMPEREERZT ESRFHES L) for the
period from 1993 to 1995 and the deputy director of the
Tianjin Municipal Environmental and Hygienic Engineering
Design Counci (KEMRFELEEZEFT) for the period from
1995 to 2001.

Mr. GAO is a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Risk Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management

EERSHEEAEEN

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Gang, aged 56, has been a non-executive
Director since 9 February 2010. Mr. WANG worked as an
executive Director from 2004, Mr. WANG was responsible
for the day-to-day operation of the Group from May 2004
to July 2007. He was re-designated as a non-executive
Director in February 2010. Mr. WANG graduated from the
thermal engineering branch of Tianjin University (K3#X
E) with a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering in July 1990
and acquired a Postgraduate Degree at Tianjin University of
Finance & Economics in July 2001. He is a senior engineer.
He is currently assistant general manager of TEDA. From
August 2003 to May 2004, he was the chairman and general
manager of Tianjin TEDA Gas Company Limited (K;EZZsiE
MRAREELF) (“TEDA Gas”) (which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TEDA. Mr. WANG was the vice manager of
TEDA Heat and Power Company (ZZEZRE A A]), a wholly
owned subsidiary of TEDA, the vice general manager of
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Power Company Limited (Z&
SRR EE N AF]), a subsidiary of Tianjin Development,
and the general manager of Guohua Energy Development
(Tianjin) Company Limited (BZEfERZERE (XE) BRAFR)
from August 1997 to August 2003. He was the chairman of
Tianjin TEDA Ocean Development Co., Ltd. (KEZE & F
2B R AF]) and Tianjin Eco-city TEDA Ocean Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (KZBEEMFE G FHIMAZEER
2 E]). Mr. WANG has been appointed as the chairman and
an executive director of Tianjin Development since 7 January
2022.

FHTEE

FRILE  BFS6m BT —FF=
ANBERBARRTBIFNTES - T4
TEENFERARRIHITES - N
TENFRAE_EELFLA " £XL
SEEAEBEZEREE RZZE—F
FZARERARRIFANITES - £5&
ER—NMNEFELAEERKRERES
MEGETIREZER  BISIEZE L 24
WHR-ZZEZT-—FELAEREMEKRERE
SEBHRESZRE - BASHRIEZA -
WIRARERKENE R_TT=F
NAZE-ZTTWNFRA  FARERE
MREBREELA ([REMR]) (RiE
ZEEMBRR) cEFERBKE - F
EER—NMNEFNAZZZEZT=FN
REIE - AREZZENBRAAIRER
BERAIBIKE  REERIMBARSR
EFBHATNAGELCEREERLRER
(RZE) BRARIBKIE - HING L&D
FREREBFREERATIRREE
R RESFRMNBAEERRAIZCES
EeFAAR-_E-_—F—HFtHEH
FREBERZEFELRHITES -
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Senior Management
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Mr. SHEN Hong Liang, aged 51, has been a non-
executive Director since 16 October 2020. Mr. SHEN is
a PRC senior economist graduated from the labour and
social security profession of Jilin University in 2011. Mr.
SHEN has served various positions in Qilfield Natural Gas
Application Technology Research Institute Office* ( # & i
K 2R & A 32000 5 B2 52 9% /2 =) and Sinopec Gas since
July 1989. From July 2018 to November 2020, Mr. SHEN
served as the manager of the natural gas sales centre of
Sinopec Gas in Northern China and the deputy general
manager of Great Wall Energy, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Since November 2020, Mr. SHEN has served
as the manager of the terminal market development centre
of Sinopec Gas.

Mr. YU Ke Xiang, aged 51, has been as a non-executive
Director since 26 July 2018. He graduated from The Tianjin
University of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics in 1993 and a Master’s Degree in
Economics in 1999. Mr. YU has been in financial asset
investment management (foreign and domestic capital
markets) and fund operations for many years. He joined
Tianjin Development since 2010 and has served in various
roles including deputy general manager and general
manager of Tianjin Development Assets Management
Company Limited (RKEZEEEEEEAMR AR, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Tianjin Development. Prior to joining
Tianjin Development, Mr. YU was an assistant to manager
of investment banking division and manager of securities
division of Northern International Trust and Investment
Company Limited (I 7 BIBRERKERGK BRAF), head
of operations of Tianjin Guoneng Investment Company
Limited (XZB g% & B R A A]), senior project manager
of fund utilization department of Bohai Property Insurance
Company Limited (2188 ERBR KR (D B R QA F), etc. He
is currently the head of capital operation department of
Tianjin Development, general manager of Tsinlien (Tianjin)
Asset Management Company Limited (28t (X2) EEE
A R A &) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tsinlien), vice
president of capital business department of TEDA Industrial
Group (both Tsinlien and TEDA Industrial Group being the
controlling shareholders of Tianjin Development), as well as
a director of certain subsidiaries of Tianjin Development,
Tsinlien and Tsinlien Investment Holdings.
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Senior Management
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Mr. YU has been appointed as a director of Tianjin Lisheng
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange — Stock Code 002393) since 25 February
2022.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. IP Shing Hing J.P., aged 66, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 23 March 2009. He holds a
Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) Degree from the University of
Hong Kong and a Master of Arts: Arbitration and Alternative
Dispute Resolution from the City University of Hong Kong.
He is a solicitor and Notary Public, Hong Kong SAR and
China-Appointed Attesting Officer, and Justice of Peace,
and has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong for more
than 30 years. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of Far East Hotels and Entertainment
Limited and PC Partner Group Limited (both listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange). He was an independent non-
executive director of Quam Limited (listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) during the period from 1 October 2006
to 30 September 2008. He is enthusiastic in community
activities which include serving as the president of The Law
Society of Hong Kong (2002-2004), vice-president of The
Law Society of Hong Kong (1999-2002), part-time member
of Central Policy Unit (2004-2005), deputy chairman of the
Council of Lingnan University (2014-2020), council member
of the Association of China-Appointed Attesting Officers
Limited (since 2002), director of Hong Kong Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce (since 1997), and manager of The
Chinese Club (since 2021).

Mr. IP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and the
Risk Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

FhREBZE_F A=+ HHE "
PERENEHEROHBRAR (—XK
RAEYEEFR S EMAAR — BRHOK
% 002893) ZEE °

BAFGITES

ERBEEAF#HL  BHF66H B
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Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin, aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 23 March 2009. He is currently
running his own management consultancy firm, Hin Yan
Consultants Limited. Mr. LAU has previously worked at Ernst
& Young for over 15 years. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1981. Mr. LAU is a Fellow
Member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants ("ACCA") as well as the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU was a member of
the World Council of ACCA from May 2002 to September
2011 and the chairman of ACCA Hong Kong in 2000/2001.
Mr. LAU is currently the company secretary of Yeebo
(International Holdings) Limited and Hung Fook Tong Group
Holdings Limited. He has been appointed an independent
non-executive director of Comba Telecom Systems Holdings
Limited, Embry Holdings Limited, FIH Mobile Limited,
Samson Holdings Ltd, TCL Electronics Holdings Limited and
IVD Medical Holding Limited respectively and the shares of
these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. LAU has also been appointed
the company secretary of Expert Systems Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

According to the press release of the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) of 31 October 2019, proceedings
were commenced involving China Medical & Healthcare
Group Limited (formerly known as COL Capital Limited)
(“COL”) and six individuals who were directors of COL at the
relevant time, including Mr. LAU. The SFC alleged that COL
failed to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably
practicable, and that the six individuals had engaged in
“reckless or negligent conduct causing” COL’s alleged
breach. On 12 May 2021, the SFC published another press
release which stated, inter alia, that the Market Misconduct
Tribunal had made orders against Mr. LAU following such
proceedings. Further details of the above were disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 5 November 2019
and 13 May 2021.

Mr. LAU is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Committee of the Company.
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Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW, aged 70, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 23 March 2009.
He obtained his Ph.D. in Mechanical/Industrial Engineering
from the University of Texas at Austin in 1976. He joined
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986. He was the
Associate Dean and subsequently the Dean of the Faculty of
Business Administration of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong from 1993 until 2002. Professor LAW has acted as
a consultant with various corporations in Hong Kong and
overseas and is currently an independent non-executive
director of the following companies listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange: Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited,
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited, Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited and Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group)
Corporation Limited. He also serves as an independent
supervisor of Beijing Capital International Airport Company
Limited. He was an independent non-executive director of
Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited from December
2011 to July 2013. He is also active in public services,
having served as member of the Provisional Regional
Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government, and various
Government and charitable boards and committees.

Professor LAW is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Committee of the
Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIN Fu Gang, aged 48, was appointed as a Deputy
General Manager of the Company and the secretary to the
Board on 13 January 2021. Mr. YIN holds a Master’s degree
in Laws granted by the Nankai University (FBIAZ) of
the PRC and a Master’s degree in Business Administration
in Finance granted by the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. YIN is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and also
has the professional qualifications as a judge, company
lawyer, a senior corporate legal adviser and an intermediate
economist in the PRC. During the period from 1997 to 2002,
Mr. YIN was a former court judge of the People’s Court
of Jinnan District, Tianjin. During the period from 2005 to
2009, he was a corporate counsel section chief in TEDA.
He served successively as the Routine Deputy General
Manager, the Company Secretary and the Chief Finance
Officer of the Company since 2009. Thereafter, from 2019
to 2020, he held several senior managerial positions within
Jiangsu Gaoli Group Co., Ltd. (m h =R & E B R A &)
and its subsidiaries. He has extensive work experience in
law, finance, audit, risk control, strategic investment, and
governance of listed companies.

Mr. XI Ming, aged 41, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager and the Chief Finance Officer of the Company on
16 October 2020. Mr. Xl is a PRC intermediate accountant
and PRC senior economist graduated from China University
of Petroleum (Huadong) in 2006 with a bachelor’s degree
in accounting. He also obtained a master’s degree in crude
oil and natural gas engineering from Xi’an Shiyou University
in 2017. Mr. Xl has work experience in various aspects,
including asset and investment management, accounting,
audit and report management, and tax management, in
Sinopec Gas since 2006.
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Mr. GAO Feng, aged 53, joined the Group in May 2002. He
is currently the Deputy General Manager of the Group. Mr.
GAO obtained his qualification in Business Administration
from the Tianjin University (XEAXZ) in 1996, and is
qualified as an Assistant Economist of the PRC. From
2002 to 2020, Mr. GAO held positions in the Group’s
Operations and Safety Management Department and
Engineering Department, and has served as the Operations
Director and Assistant General Manager of the Group.
He has accumulated extensive experience in operation
management.

Ms. ZHANG Wen, aged 44, joined the Group in February
2010. She is currently the Deputy General Manager of the
Group. Ms. ZHANG is qualified as a Senior Economist of the
PRC. Ms. ZHANG obtained her qualification in Computer
Software and Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from the
Tianjin University of Technology ( X & ¥ T A £) in 1999.
Ms. ZHANG graduated from the Nankai University (FF
KE) with a Master’s Degree in Business Management in
2010. From 2010 to 2020, Ms. ZHANG held positions in the
Group’s General Manager Office and Tender Management
Office, and has served as the Administrative Director and
Assistant General Manager of the Group.

* For identification purposes only
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
OPERATION ANALYSIS

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in to the financial statements. The analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year by business segments
is set out in Note 7 |to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the sections headed
“Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 8 to 9,
pages 10 to 13, pages 14 to 19 respectively of this Annual
Report.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it engages.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to identify and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Details of which are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 47 to 112 of this
Annual Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Driven by economic recovery, extreme weather, energy
transformation and other factors, as well as against a
backdrop of global economic recovery, industrial production
and consumption demands have strongly rebounded and the
natural gas market has regained growth since 2021. With
the goal of “‘30-60’ carbon peak, carbon neutral” being set
in the dual-carbon era where opportunities and challenges
coexist, the “Dual Carbon Targets” will lead China into the
acceleration of energy transformation. As a clean, efficient
and low-carbon energy, natural gas will be prominent during
the energy transformation phase and will have integrated
development with new energies such as photovoltaic and
wind power, thereby reconstructing a new energy landscape.
In short-to-medium term, it is expected that the global trend
of both carbon and emission reductions will provide more
room for growth in the field of natural gas consumption.

Since Sinopec became the Company’s second largest
shareholder, the Company has actively promoted its
respective subsidiaries to connect with Sinopec’s natural
gas source. In 2021, as pricing for stock and incremental
level of upstream resource unit varies, the incremental gas
ratio and procurement prices for certain subsidiaries, upon
replacement of Sinopec’s natural gas source, increased due
to the decrease in stock level, despite the gas supply volume
being relatively sufficient. Therefore, there is an uncertainty
risk in the gas procurement costs.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The financial results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 166.

According to the dividend policy of the Company, the Board
recommended a final dividend of HK$0.090 per ordinary
share (the “Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$0.079 per
ordinary share).

The Final Dividend is subject to approval by holders of
the ordinary shares of the Company at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on 13 May
2022 and is expected to be paid on or about 10 June 2022.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM

Shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
13 May 2022 will be eligible to attend and, in relation
to holders of ordinary shares, to vote at the AGM. The
register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 10 May 2022 to Friday, 13 May 2022
(both days inclusive). All completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
6 May 2022.
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(b) For determining the entitlement to the Final
Dividend

The Final Dividend will be payable to the holders of
ordinary shares whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Tuesday, 24 May
2022 and the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 20 May 2022 to Tuesday,
24 May 2022 (both days inclusive). In order to qualify
for the Final Dividend, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
19 May 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the financial results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended
31 December 2021 is set out on page 340.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in Note 18[to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 1,352,025,133
ordinary shares at par value of HK$0.10 each (“Ordinary
Share(s)”) and 6,040,000 redeemable preference shares
at par value of HK$50.00 each (“Redeemable Preference
Share(s)”) in issue.
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Redemption of Redeemable Preference Shares

8,600,000 Redeemable Preference Shares were issued to
Cavalier Asia Limited for the consideration of HK$430 million
on 4 May 2009, all of which were subsequently transferred
to TEDA Hong Kong Property Company Limited (“TEDA
HK”) in August 2011. The Redeemable Preference Shares
are redeemable at the discretion of the Company at their
par value of HK$50.00 per Redeemable Preference Share as
from the fifth anniversary of the date of resumption of trading
of the Ordinary Shares on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (i.e. 12 May 2009), subject to various
conditions.

In view of the fulfillment of the conditions,the Company
redeemed 640,000 Redeemable Preference Shares at
the redemption amount of HK$50.00 per Redeemable
Preference Share on 28 November 2018, redeemed 520,000
Redeemable Preference Shares at the redemption amount
of HK$50.00 per Redeemable Preference Share on 27 June
2019, redeemed 400,000 Redeemable Preference Shares
at the redemption amount of HK$50.00 per Redeemable
Preference Share on 10 June 2020, and redeemed
1,000,000 Redeemable Preference Shares at the redemption
amount of HK$50.00 per Redeemable Preference Share on
11 June 2021. Details of the above redemptions are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 19 November
2018, 26 June 2019, 10 June 2020 and 11 June 2021.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021
including particulars of the above redemption of Redeemable
Preference Shares are set out in[Note 29]to the financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which impose
an obligation on the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to the Shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in and Note
to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no reserves available for cash distribution
and/or distribution in specie as calculated under the
Companies Act of Bermuda as at 31 December 2021 (as at
31 December 2020: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company had adopted a new share option scheme at
13 January 2021, details of which are set out in the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” of this report. Save as
disclosed above, no other equity-linked agreements were
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2021 or
subsisted at the end of the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made
no charitable donations or other donations (for year ended
31 December 2020: Nil).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the special general meeting of the Company held on
13 January 2021, the holders of ordinary shares of the
Company (the "Shareholders") approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “2021 Scheme”) in place of
the previous share option scheme which had expired.

The purpose of the 2021 Scheme are to (1) further improve
the governance structure of the Company, and establishing
a sound and modern corporate system; (2) promote more
focus of the management team and key employees on
the Company’s operating performance and establishing
a benefit sharing and risk sharing mechanism among the
Shareholders, the Company and strategic investors; and (3)
establish a long-term and effective incentive mechanism to
attract and retain key talents and motivating the corporate
vitality to support the Company in achieving its strategic
objectives.

Participants of the 2021 Scheme include the Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Directors), the senior
management personnel, and core technical personnel
and key management personnel of the Company and its
subsidiaries who have a direct impact on the Company’s
overall operating performance and sustainable development.
The 2021 Scheme became effective on 13 January 2021
and, unless otherwise terminated in advance under the
relevant requirements of the scheme, will remain in force
until 12 January 2031.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the 2021
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the 2021
Scheme. Unless approved by a special resolution at a
general meeting, the shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the share options granted to each participant
(including exercised or outstanding share options) under
the 2021 Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total Ordinary
Shares in issue of the Company as at the date when the
scheme was approved at a general meeting
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The restriction period for which an option granted under
the 2021 Scheme must be held before it can be exercised
commences from the grant date of the share options and
lasts for twenty-four months. No fee shall be payable by a
participant of the 2021 Scheme on the application for or
acceptance of the grant of share options.

The exercise price of the share options of the 2021 Scheme
shall be determined in accordance with the fair market
price principle. The exercise price shall be the higher of the
three following prices: (i) the closing price of the Ordinary
Shares on the grant date; (ii) the average closing price of the
Ordinary Shares on the five trading days prior to the grant
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary Shares on
the grant date.

Pursuant to the 2021 Scheme, on 13 January 2021 the
Company granted 27,040,503 share options with a fair value
on the grant date of approximately HK$9,804,000 to the
Directors (excluding independent non-executive Directors),
the senior management personnel, and core technical
personnel and key management personnel of the Company
and its subsidiaries who have a direct impact on the
Company’s overall operating performance and sustainable
development. The exercise price of such options is HK$1.32
per Ordinary Share. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date of grant of such options
was HK$1.28. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
2,641,818 share options had lapsed.

Accordingly, the maximum number of Ordinary Shares to
be issued upon exercise of share options which had been
granted under the 2021 Scheme is 24,398,685, representing
approximately 1.80% of the total issued Ordinary Shares as
at the date of this Annual Report.

2021 FR R S TR TR BT
R LA BRGNP EREHRERT
BHEe —+m{E A - 2021 FREZ R
2 EABEB R FRIE B E DR
BT XA EER

2021 FIREHAE B IR R 2 1T
EBRZRATMHEERRAETE - 17
BRATI-ZHEENESSE ()BT
BE@RBRWME: WK THAIRERS
AE@EROFHKRTE: RiiETHEE
AIRTAE -

K15 2021 FREHERTE - XAFIRZ
T —FE—-A+=ZHRAARBNEKB
NEESE (BUFRATESRIN  ak
ERABUREANGBREBEEERENL
BRERRBEEREFVENZODBEMAT R
B8 B 8% 27,040,503 17 I = HAdE -
ZERZHERRTANAAEBENS
9,804,000 7L - BEARZHEITEE
WESEREKRMN1.328T - AARIK
NEEEEEREREX TEHKME
A1 T-BE_ZET-_—%+_A
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Details of share options held by the Directors and employees &Z_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIEFE
of the Group pursuant to the 2021 Scheme and the changes N * N AR E = KA S E & B k& 2021
of which during the year ended 31 December 2021 were as FREHETE AR Z R L HE
follows: B BT

ADiector 1312021 Vesting date® 132 NA 1,174,143 - 1174143 0.09%
-fEE —12.1.208 il
;@E«m
—12.12028
Employes  13.1.2021  Vesting date* 132 NA 25,866,360 2,641,818 23,204.540 172%
[E8 —12.1.208 il
;@E«m
— 1212028
Tota NA 27,040,503 2641618 24,398,685 180%
A% TER

Note: Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions for vesting as A/t © #2021 F IR ZERMERT S TR E ML

provided under the 2021 Scheme, the share options granted RFERE  BERTZREERIZ

shall be vested in batches as follows: AT AR BEER

()~ From the grant date until the second year anniversary () BEFAERL m_FAF (24
(24-month) of the grant date, 40% of the total number A) ERTRESREEZHNI0%
of share options granted shall be vested,; AR

(i)  From the grant date until the third year anniversary i) BEETHRL m=FF (36
(36-month) of the grant date, 30% of the total number A ERETHREHELHEN
of share options granted shall be vested (excluding the 0% EH (TEEEEBHRE
share options which have already been vested); and HRE) « &

(i)  From the grant date until the fourth year anniversary iy BETHR BUESF (481
(48-month) of the grant date, 30% of the total number A ERETFTHREHELHEN
of share options granted shall be vested (excluding the 0% ER (TEEEEMMKE
share options which have already been vested). HAfE) o
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The vesting period for the share options granted under the
2021 Scheme is seven years commencing from the grant
date, upon the expiry of which the outstanding share options
granted shall lapse automatically.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2021. The total number of Ordinary Shares
available for issue upon exercise of all the share options
granted and to be granted under the 2021 Scheme is
135,202,513, representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of this
report.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 is calculated according to the
binomial option pricing model. The fair value and the main
parameters of the model are as follows:

BB 2021 FIREMEEE - ER TR
SHEMNTEEXHABRTREN L
F - ERRHATENEREREHE
1B BRR o

BEMEEN BE_T-_—F+_A
=t+t—HLEFER - WEREHERKR
F oo 17(E - FEEHER K o IRIR 2021 F A%
SHEEEETRABRTHMBERE
HRE T LAITER AT PRITHE AR MR
#5135,202,513% * LG AFKEHE
BITEBRMOBEN10% °

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HBLFE
NETHRZNE 2 AREBERKR - XE
HErTEENAE  BRAABERZ
BRAHEZL2HOT ¢

FirstTranche ~ 13/1/2021 121112028 0.3610~0,3703 el 72) 1.8
ERif
Second Tranche  13/1/2021 121112004 0.3570~0.3656# %) 13
EHR
Third Tranche -~ 13/1/2021 12112025 0.3480~0 355472 1.3
ER

132 44.94% 5.81% 0.54%
132 44.94% 5.81% 0.04%
132 44.94% 581% 0.54%

Note: The parameters such as the expected turnover rate
(consecutive) after the vesting period of different levels of
employees are different, resulting in the difference in the
corresponding fair value per option within the same tranche.

Wiz - TRGR 8 TH1THA BRI BE
B CEE) E28E6MTR - §HF
—HARPEHENEHEZHENL
REEFEEZE -
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The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on the best estimate
of the Directors. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Changes in the
subjective assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Zhiyong (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Zhi Min (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Gao Liang (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Gang
Mr. Shen Hong Liang
Mr. Yu Ke Xiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.
Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. WANG Gang (non-executive Director) and
Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin and Professor Japhet Sebastian
LAW (both independent non-executive Directors), who are
longest in office since their previous re-election, will retire by
rotation and will be eligible for re-election at the AGM of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Independent non-executive Directors have a term of office of
two years and non-executive Directors have a term of office
of three years, both subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Group which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the contracts between the Group and TEDA
and its subsidiaries as disclosed in the section headed
“CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” of this
report, there were no material contracts between the Group
and its controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

BHE EmARRSFR R AR MAIE87(1)
B BERETRANIALEE (EH
TEE) RBBELEMEEHE (B
REBUIENITES) ARAR A ERER
RAFAS LHEHTIRBAERER
BT

EE2RBEN

BYFATESTHRAME  FATE
EEHR=F  ARAEAR TW%E@K
g EREBEAFTAGRESRIRER

TETARNEEAFAS LERET
CEFHEARRBRARIE—FATA
EATRE OEERERIN) BOBERTH
IEZ BRIEEH) ©

HEEZERRRZ2EH

— 5 R
AFTZA

BRARSE [HEEERS ]
ZAREERFERENE A

W BE-_E-_—F+-_HA=+—8H
HEFEE- KEIMﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HEMBA TREBEREH -
EEEH
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BeHREARATNERCEERITRE
Bza# -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

No Director had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the
Group as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party which
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021
or at any time during the period.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out inand
to the consolidated financial statement to this report.
More particulars are also set out in the section headed
“REMUNERATION COMMITTEE” in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT”.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS'
INFORMATION

Mr. WANG Gang has been appointed as the chairman
and an executive director of Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (Stock Code 882)) since 7 January 2022.
Mr. YU Ke Xiang has been appointed as a director of Tianjin
Lisheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (the shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code
002393)) since 25 February 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report,
the Company is not aware of any change in the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-Laws of the Company provides that for the time
being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company,
every director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which
may be brought against the directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES,
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

(a) Interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executives in the share capital of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which were required to
be: (a) recorded in the register kept by the Company

BEFHREEX
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pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) notified to BT ITMBTAESETESRS
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange PRI (MFE2ESFRI]) PRt mA R
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions A MBS o R SOR BT ¢

by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Mr. GAQ Liang ~ Beneficial owner - - - - 1,174,143 1,174,143 0.09%
AR EREAA

o

Professor Japhet  Beneficial owner 100,000 - - 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
Sehestian LAW EHEE A
RS
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Director’s rights to acquire shares or debentures

Pursuant to the 2021 Scheme, the Company granted
options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares to a Director,
the details of which are as follows:

ESRBROIEER ZER

R 2021 REMIEE B - ARRET—
LEFRWAD A EBRERG 2 RFH
R

Mr. GAO Liang 13.1.2021 Viesting date (Note) 1.32
ERfd - 12.12028

ERE (W)

—12.1.2028

N/A 1174143 0.09%
iyl

Note: Details of the conditions for vesting and vesting period
of the share options granted during the year under the
2021 Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were rights to acquire
benefit by means of the acquisition of any class of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire such right in any other body corporate.
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(b)

Binhai Investment Company Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
there were no other interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (as defined
under Part XV of the SFO) entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the share
capital of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the persons (not being
a Director or chief executive of the Company) or
companies who or which had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO are
listed as follows:
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TEDA (Note 1) Long Interest of controlled - - 534,113,306 - 534,113,300 39.5%
RE (MY i corporafion
SBHAF RS
China Long Interest of confralled - - 406,472,357 - 400472331 20.99%
Petrochemical i corporation
Corporation RESNE R
(Note 2)
MERAIEE
BRAA
2
Sinopec (Nofe 3 Long Interest of controlled - - 405,472,337 - 405,472,337 2.99%
wRE By # corporafion
GG VL, 3

Notes: st -

1. TEDA HK, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of TEDA, 1. ZEBB(FENEEEE
beneficially owned 479,022,505 Ordinary Shares of the MEBRAR ExEEAEARA
Company. Santa Resources Limited (“Santa Resources”) 479,022,505 & @ & IR 7 -
and Learder Top Investments Limited (“Learder Top”), Santa Resources Limited([ Santa
being indirect subsidiaries of TEDA, beneficially owned Resources]) K Learder Top
49,618,800 and 5,472,000 Ordinary Shares of the Investments Limited ([ Learder
Company respectively. TEDA is deemed to be interested Topl) (AFEMBERB AT
in the same number of Ordinary Shares of the Company D AIE =R AR R 49,618,800
held by TEDA HK, Santa Resources and Learder Top f% %% 5,472,000 % & @R A5 ©
pursuant to the SFO BIBFFESREBEGRD - REFER

BHNZEER S + Santa Resources
I Learder Top AT B AN A RIAE A
HEMLBRBRDPHES =

2. China Petrochemical Corporation is the controlling 2, HMEAHIELIEEERAAAD
shareholder of Sinopec. China Petrochemical AR IERR AR R - RIBEE 5 & H
Corporation was deemed to be interested in all the B FEABEISEBEER
Ordinary Shares held by Sinopec pursuant to the SFO. NEEE BRR AL ERET

BEBEBROPHEEEZ -
3. Great Wall Energy Investment (Hong Kong) Limited, a 3. EREBMREE (FE) BRAA

wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec, beneficially owned
405,472,337 Ordinary Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN NON-COMPETING GAS
SUPPLY BUSINESSES

The Group disposed of its interests in thirty subsidiaries
(“Disposed Subsidiaries”) to Cavalier Asia Limited to hold
on behalf of TEDA HK pursuant to an agreement (the “2008
Disposal Agreement”) dated 28 May 2008 (as amended)
between Cavalier Asia Limited and a subsidiary of the
Company. The 2008 Disposal Agreement was deemed
completed in May 2009. Since then, the Group has
repurchased interests in six of the Disposed Subsidiaries
from TEDA HK, TEDA HK has disposed of interests in
eighteen of the Disposed Subsidiaries to independent third
parties, and three of the Disposed Subsidiaries were de-
registered. As at 31 December 2021, TEDA HK held no
interests in the Disposed Subsidiaries.

Apart from the Disposed Subsidiary as mentioned above,
TEDA owns a 51% of the equity interest in TEDA Gas and
a minority interest in Tianjin Eco-City Energy Investment
Construction Company Limited (“Tianjin Eco-City”) which are
engaged in the supply of gas to end users.
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TEDA Gas mainly serves the purpose of supplying natural
gas to the Tianjin Economic and Technological Development
Area at preferential rates in order to enhance the appeal
of such area to investors and is not a purely commercial
enterprise. The Group supplies gas to TEDA Gas on a
market basis and accordingly earns profit. The Group does
not have the operating right granted by the government of
the Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area
to supply gas to the local end users in such area. Besides,
the Company does not consider it commercially desirable for
the Group to supply gas to the local end users in such area.

Tianjin Eco-City is directly owned as to 51% equity interest
by Tianjin Eco-City Investment Development Company
Limited (directly and indirectly owned by TEDA as to 20%
equity interest), a company established under a national-
grade cooperation project between the PRC government
and the Singapore Government that manages and operates
a particular district in the Binhai New Area. Tianjin Eco-City
purchases gas from the Group for its own use and to satisfy
the demand of end users in such district in accordance with
the intention of the local government, and does not carry out
the business of sale of gas to customers. The Group does
not have the operating right granted by the government of
such district to supply gas to the local end users.

As the businesses of TEDA Gas and Tianjin Eco-City are
differentiated from the business of the Group by target
customers, the Directors consider that there is no business
competition between the Group and the TEDA Group. Save
for TEDA’s interest in TEDA Gas and Tianjin Eco-City, none
of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates had any interest in a business
which may compete with the business of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

As at the date of this report, TEDA through its subsidiaries
holds approximately 39.5% of the total issued ordinary
shares of the Company and is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. TEDA and its subsidiaries and associates
are connected persons of the Company. Great Wall Energy
through its wholly- owned subsidiary holds approximately
29.99% of the total issued ordinary shares of the Company
and is the substantial shareholder of the Company. Since
Great Wall Energy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec,
Sinopec is a connected person of the Company. Since
Sinopec Gas is a branch company of Sinopec, Sinopec
Gas and its subsidiaries and associates are also connected
persons of the Company. Since Sinopec exercises or
controls the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at
the general meeting of Sinopec Binhai Investment (Tianjin)
Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd. (“SBI”), SBI is an associate
of Sinopec and is thus a connected person of the Company

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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During the year, the Group’s continuing connected
transactions with the above connected persons were as

follows:

(a) Master gas supply agreement

Date of the agreement:

Duration:

Parties:

Transaction involved:

Annual cap for the period
from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021:

Actual transaction amount
in the period from 1
January 2021 to 31
December 2021:

19 November 2018

From 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021

TEDA

The Company

The Group sold natural
gas to TEDA Group
pursuant to the
agreements of supply of
natural gas entered into
from time to time.

RMB550,270,000

RMB87,564,640

RER - AEESR R ARBAEALR
HBRAETZRBRERZMT

(a) MRHBER SR
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(b) Master gas supply connection agreement

Date of the agreement:

Duration:

Parties:

Transaction involved:

Annual cap for the period
from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021 (as
revised and approved
by ordinary resolution
passed at a special
general meeting of the
Company held on 24
October 2019):

Actual transaction amount
in the period from 1
January 2021 to 31
December 2021:

Binhai Investment Company Limited

19 November 2018

From 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021

TEDA

the Company

The Group provided

gas supply pipeline
connection services to
TEDA Group pursuant
to the agreements of
construction of gas
connection facilities
construction entered
into from time to time.

RMB27,776,000

RMB11,964,390

BEREGRAR

(b) MBHEREBIER S E

e gRa] HE - —N\FE+—A
+hH
FH H-ZE—NFE—A
ol = I
F+-A=1+—
H
A RiE
iN/N
R REERE T
SRR R R R
am S Eos
EEEREHRMR
R B AR TS o
BE-Z-—%—HF ARW¥27776,0007TC
—HE-ET-—
F+-_A=+—
HIEFEER
(BARQNRIP =
E-NE+A
—“tHHETZ

BEHBIARY
ERRBEET
RiiE)

B-T——

—HEZZZ
F+ZRA=+—
AILEERR S
CEE

F—A

AR 11,964,390 7T



Directors’ Report

EETHE

(c)

Master gas supply agreement with Sinopec Gas

Date of the agreement:

Duration:

Parties:

Transaction involved:

Annual cap for the period
from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021:

Actual transaction amount
in the period from
1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021:

23 April 2020

From 24 September 2020
to 31 December 2039
(both days inclusive)

Sinopec Gas

Binhai Investment (Tianjin)

Company Limited
(“Binhai Tianjin”)

Binhai Tianjin Group

purchased natural

gas from Sinopec Gas
Group according to
signed agreements,

from time to time.

RMB1,339,181,000

RMB943,171,170

(c)
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(d) Gas supply agreement with SBI (d) BEFRALERITIAREETZ
Date of the agreement: 9 November 2020 WEFITES: —E-TE+-—A
NA
Duration: From 9 November 2020 FH H-E_EF+-—
to 31 December 2021 ANBREZT
(ooth days inclusive) ——&%+=A
=+—H (p#E
EEEGES)
Parties: SBI R RARLER
Tianjin Clean Energy REBRER
Transaction involved: Tianjin Clean Energy 5 REBRBERTE
sold natural gas to RBERA(LER
SBI according to the T TRV EREER] B
purchase orders placed AR AR
by SBI, from time to ERAR, °
time.
Annual cap for the period RMB48,970,920 H-E-—F— ARK489709207TC
from 1 January 2021 to A—HE&E—
31 December 2021: Z-—%+=H
=+—BFEL
bR -
Actual transaction amount  RMB21,128,040 B —F— ARE21,1280407T
in the period from A—BREZ
1 January 2021 to T-—%+=H
31 December 2021: —t+—HHHE
B
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(e) Gas transmission agreement with SBI

Date of the agreement:

Duration:

Parties:

Transaction involved:

Annual cap for the period
from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021:

Actual transaction amount
in the period from
1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021:

9 November 2020

From 9 November 2020
to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive)

SBI

Tianjin Clean Energy

Tianjin Clean Energy
provided natural gas
transmission services
to SBI using Tianjin
Clean Energy’s pipeline
network.

RMB2,190,000

RMB591,400

(e)
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(f) Gas supply agreement with Hebei Luyuan

Tangshan

Date of the agreement:

Duration:

Parties:

Transaction involved:

Annual cap for the period
from 1 November 2021
to 31 December 2021:

Actual transaction amount
in the period from
1 November 2021 to
31 December 2021:

Binhai Investment Company Limited

29 October 2021

From 1 November 2021
to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive)

Hebei Luyuan Thermal
Power Development
Co., Ltd. Tangshan Lutai
Economic Development
Branch (“Hebei Luyuan

Tangshan”)

Tangshan Binhai Gas
Co., Ltd. (“Tangshan

Company”)

Tangshan Company sold
natural gas to Hebei

Luyuan Tangshan

according to the term

of the Gas Supply
Agreement.

RMB2,747,600

RMB248,640
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Details on related party transactions for the year are set
out into the consolidated financial statements.
Details of any related party transaction which also constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
not exempted under rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules
are disclosed above. The Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practic@ “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group disclosed on pages 143 and 148
of the Annual Report in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions referred to above for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and confirm that these
transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no event after the reporting period which would
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for 16% (for year
ended 31 December 2020: 18%) of the total revenue from
sales of goods and service, and revenue from sales to the
largest customer (Tangshan Lanxin Glass Company Limited)
included therein accounted for 5% (for year ended 31
December 2020: 5% (The largest customer was TEDA Gas).

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 51% (for year ended 31 December 2020:
49%) of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December
2021 and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for 22% (for year ended 31 December
2020: 16%).

Among the five largest customers of the Group, there was
no connected person of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of or any
of their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital) had any beneficial
interest in any of the five largest customers and suppliers of
the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s other
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of
not less than 25% of the total issued Ordinary Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who are due to retire and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditor of the
Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was an external auditor of the
Company for the financial year of 2018 and resigned as the
external auditor of the Company with effect from 20

June 2019.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external
auditor of the Company at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 12 July 2019, and was re-appointed
at the annual general meetings of the Company held on 15

May 2020 and 14 May 2021.

On behalf of the Board
Binhai Investment Company Limited

Gao Liang
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 March 2022
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BY X BENRE

&

pwc

To the Shareholders of Binhai Investment Company
Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Binhai Investment
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 166 to 339, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
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BY X BENRE

OPINION (continued)
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment.

FAREFITSEE

FRETSHERBERMANFTRHE -
RSB AHPAEHPBRERNEARRE
EMEIH - BEFHELAERMEBTESR
EHBBERRLLAERGETERE
Mo M AW ELEREREFBNE
8

EPERFTRAOBRBAFERST
BE - BB MRIEAEZRERE o

Impairment assessment of property, We performed the following procedures to address
plant and equipment the key audit matter:

HAHE - BERRKEZWMETHE BT T A TR AR IR ST =8 -

Refer t and [1§]to the (1) Understood, evaluated and validated the
consolidated financial statements. Group’s internal controls over the impairment
5%5/%7/5\9‘?’/57%%%‘ o assessment of property, plant and equipment

and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias

or fraud;

T FELAAEEEETDE BEMERE
B RHE A BRI S - BBE B AE N RE MR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FSEETEE (&)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying (2) Understood and evaluated the management’s

amount of the Group’s property, plant and processes in identifying impairment indicators;
equipment was approximately HK$5,893.2 THRITEEEBEREDTRBINEEN

million, representing total costs of
approximately HK$7,162.8 million less (3) Evaluated the outcome of prior period

accumulated depreciation of approximately assessment of impairment of property, plant
HK$1,053.8 million and accumulated and equipment to assess the effectiveness of
impairment loss provision of approximately management’s estimation process;

HK$215.8 million. The impairment loss AHELART M E R B HABE - WE RRERME
as recognised during the year ended 31 REWEBZANTGHER  UIEEBEEHEHG
December 2021 amounted to approximately HPRREA AU

HK$9.8 million.

R-ZT-—F+-_A=+—H A&EELH
E BEMIBHFESBEAHS88 2885
T HERESEANT1628BEET &
T ESBEAKN1,053.8E8 BT R RE
HEECHERN2I58EEBEBTL _ S -—FF
BROREBRASEALNISAEBIT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FEEENEE (&)

The property, plant and equipment directly as
held by certain loss-making subsidiaries of
the Company were identified for impairment
assessment (collectively the “Assets with
Impairment Indicators”) and their recoverable
amounts have been determined based on
the higher of their value-in-use and fair value
less costs of disposal. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of the Assets
with Impairment Indicators amounted to
approximately HK$98.3 million.
BERETRBINTEE  BRFE RRBFERED
RATHEHREFEREFRNEE]) FE
EITRERE - FREREFRNEER A YD
BEREABEEAABEREZREEK R ZE
REBE R_ZE-_—F+-A=+—H &
ERETRNEENFESERLNIBIEE
AT o

(4)

For the Assets with Impairment Indicators,
examined the management’s value-in-use
calculations as follows:
HEFERENRNEE O THHREER
BrEREEHE :

° Engaged our internal valuation experts
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
methodology and pre-tax discount rate as
adopted by management;
ERNFBEEZREFHHT - FHEEEE
ERAMF AN AR EN G2 M

° Assessed the reasonableness of the key

assumptions as adopted by management
in the value-in-use calculations by (i)
comparing the estimated growth rates of
business volume and gross margin with
historical actual information, management’s
approved budget and relevant market
and industry data; and (i) comparing the
pre-tax discount rate used with those as
adopted by comparable companies in
similar industry;
il () BAEFHHEERENEMNREFESL
B BREHENTRENBMETISRITE
BIBETTHE K (i) SR AR EHERETT
AILE A RIERA R B AT IR FEITEER - 7114
ERETETEERABERRKAMERRNE
B

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

157



7
/!
% s

158

Binhai Investment Company Limited

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Management of the Company
(“management”) has therefore performed
impairment assessment to determine the
recoverable amounts of these Assets with
Impairment Indicators based on value-in-
use calculations (which is higher than the
estimated fair value less costs of disposal
of the related assets). Key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flows for
the value-in-use calculations included the
estimates of the growth rates of business
volume, gross margin and the pre-tax
discount rate.

AAmERE ([BERE]) RAERAEENS
E(BREREEAABEREREXNNNE
B) $FERETFRAOEENAIREEEETT
WAERHE - EARRESREFRATERAHEE
BRBEHEERE - ENEMBATFTIREK -

BEREAR AT
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FAEFETEE (&)

Evaluated management’s sensitivity
analysis around key assumptions for
growth rates of business volume, gross
margin and pre-tax discount rate, to
ascertain the extent to which adverse
changes will affect the outcome of the
impairment assessment of the Assets with
Impairment Indicators; and
AEEEELHHEEERE - ENEMBAT
REZWRBROGBEDHNT - AT TF
BBEZARE LREFHERETFRNE
ERENENER AR

Checked the mathematical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations and checked, on
a sample basis, the underlying data used
in the calculations against the relevant
underlying supporting document.
mECAEBEEAZPAERRNER - A
NARBRRZ A HERinE 28 -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FEEENEE (&)

In addition to the aforesaid Assets with
Impairment Indicators, management has
also performed a separate impairment
assessment on a property under construction
as owned by a loss-making subsidiary,
with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$68.2 million (representing total costs
of approximately HK$114.2 million less
accumulated impairment loss provision of
approximately HK$46.0 million) as at 31
December 2021 (the “PUD”).

B EFERETRNEEIN  EREEY —
REBEFRAEENERYEET T EBOR
BiL BE_T_—F+-_A=+—H "1k
HFERERNEB2EEET (HERERHE
RONM42BEETR B HEERREESR
REI4B.0BEETT) °

Management has assessed the fair value less
costs of disposal of the PUD by using the
residual value method with the assistance
from an external valuer. Based on the results
of the impairment assessments for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
recognised a further provision for impairment
loss of approximately HK$9.8 million.
FESMERRT ARV I BN T - B IR B ER B Rk A 2%
FERMAERMENRABERERERAE - 1R
BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HLFENR
BEBEER AEBEE - SHRAREEER
HHOI.8AEBIT °

In connection with the impairment assessment on the
PUD, we have performed the following procedures:

HEERMERMEE - BAMITTATRERF

(1) Evaluated the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity;

AT 4 SN B L RS AR ) B (EBE D B ERE

(2) Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology used by the management and the
external valuer, with the assistance from our
internal valuation expert;
ERABEEEREEOBHY T - SHEEREEMIN
ERTE DR (A A S B

(3) Tested key inputs adopted by the management
and the external valuer against the relevant
supporting information as described below:
RIBERBAXIEEN - HEREMINLRT (4T ER
R ERETI AR

° Compared the estimated selling price to
the recent market transactions by making
reference to the prevailing market price
of the comparable properties with similar
type, size and location;

SBBUERE  HENCENATLEMENR
TMIHER - HRGHHEER TSR
SEREITHLR
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We focused on auditing the impairment of
property, plant and equipment because the
estimation of recoverable amounts is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
is considered significant due to subjectivity
of significant assumptions and estimates
used.
HRAIKRE BN EET AR EE T HET T -
IERPESFFTPERBITIBE - BB IR
WAERE - PTERANEZRRMNGET T RERE
B XHEHE - TBE - BERKERETG
WEBRRENK -

BEREAR AT

Independent Auditor’s Report
R 3 TS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FEEENEE (&)

° The selling expenses was estimated as
a percentage of the related estimated
selling price of the properties. Assessed
if the estimated percentage fall within a
reasonable range which is in line with the
prevailing property valuation practice in
Ching;
HEBREEBYERTHEERNADL
mHE - FHETEHHE B RN EBY XA iH
BB OIS P BERTYETEED
NEEE[A

U Compared the anticipated completion
costs to the completion costs information
or data for similar type of properties as
obtained from our research; and
REEMER T IRBEAHZE LKA
AR TE TR BRI REITER © AR

° Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the valuation calculations and checked, on
a sample basis, the underlying data used
in the calculations against the relevant
underlying supporting document.
BEFERE P ERRAERN - ARR
BHEEFAX FmERE28 -

Based on the above, we considered that the
significant judgments and estimates made by
management in relation to the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment were supportable
by the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
EREABER  BRMRARERERTIE - BE LK
18 Y RUE FT il P 1F 89 B K 21 B A0 ik 51 BE #0482 S BUS
B BMEMITHEZFIHE -
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BY X BENRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

HfsR

ERPEFAHHEMERAR - AM(E
EEERFHRANMBES  ETBEE
PEA TS R MR ML BB s

BMEAHYBREANELL NREE
iEE  BRATTHZEEMEEEX
TR ANER S o

BEBRMEAHYBRRNOER - B
METRMBELMEE  FibBaRF
EZEEMEESTHAHPHRRIRK
PESRABETATENBELFEEX
BN EUFFEERERBANER -

ERBMERITHIIE  mREMABR
HMESFHEERERRL - RAFT2
BEZFEE - -GEETH - BREEM
WE -

EENESEEERGOH
BHRRBAXKENSEE

BERFEZARERETESHMAE
B (BB B REEL) REB(A
ARG MBEERTREREMT S W
BHMBERE  THERBRES G
BHREROEE N FEARKFFRERM
BHMERERELF A EES &

=
=5 ©°
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BY X BENRE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @

EENESEEERGHH
BHRRAEXRENEE (F)

ERBAHVBRERE  EFAENDG
EREREKLENREN  YEERBR
TRERSELEEENEE  URE
AHBELERSTER KRIEEAE
HESEBRNIIFILE  HAIEHEM
ERMERTSR -

BERAENLREQAEAEEES
M HmEBIE -

B EFT S B ®RE
BWEME

i

iy

BHWERE  RYSHUBHRRERR
BTN FEARMFFRBERMEBMMNEAXN
HREADRSAERE  YHABRER
PMERNZEERS - RMAERRAR
ZE-NN—F(RFNE) 90 EmET
(TEREER) RERMNER - itz /b
AHEREEMB L - RATSHARK
ENARAEFAEMBALTE ESAEE
MEE - aBRBELERKTHRE B
TREREZR (CEABTTEL) ETTNFE
it BERX-BRERBAFERARESR
3 o 8RR IR AT A B R Sk B AR 5 AR
MRAERHMEMEFIEMERA G
TEAHYBBMREMREKRBES HIB
WARPTIELREERE - RIARAEER
BRAL FT AR EE K ©



Independent Auditor’s Report

BY X BENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors, use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

R E S A B EREK
AENSE (&)

EiRE (BB BEHER) B TR B
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BY X BENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee of the Company with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee
of the Company, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R 3 TS

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEXRB I ZBEMBENEAEEESE

independent auditor’s report is Chong Heng Hon. ARHETRE -
PricewaterhouseCoopers BEORKBEETELFT
Certified Public Accountants HEBEED

Hong Kong, 17 March 2022 BE - F=A++tH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A = A2

= ﬁ B 43,%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

166

Revenue from contracts with KEEZEA MR A
customers - = 4,842,926 3,653,866
Cost of sales and services SHEE T AR TS Ak AN (3,987,485) (3,050,451)
Gross profit EF 855,441 603,415
Other income =R PN 29,492 20,214
Administrative expenses THRAX A (305,918) (279,783)
Net impairment (losses)/reversal on £ &N & £ &ERRE
financial and contract assets (E18) /# % (25,226) 42,377
Other gains — net H A F)15 % 58 el 33,884 148,978
Operating profit RERE 587,673 535,201
Finance income A& s 13 3,744 1,660
Finance costs B & A AR 13 (104,624) (104,879)
Finance costs — net BB KA FEE 13 (100,880) (103,219)
Sharg of net profit of an assoccijafte E{RBt S N R e &
and joint ventures accounted for k| (i E AL
using the equity method TR (A AR) 8,496 7,201
Profit before income tax R B 15 %4 B R 495,289 439,183
Income tax expense Fr{SFi 8 A (85,264) (78,324)
Profit for the year F A FIE 410,025 360,859
Profit for the year attributable LTTATEAERFE :
to:
— Owners of the Company — RRFHEEB A 399,659 354,904
— Non-controlling interests — FEIEHIE R 10,366 5,955
410,025 360,859
HK$ cents HK$ cents
B JBN
Earnings per share attributable ZR2QT]#E AEWL
to owners of the Company: SRS
—Basic earnings per share — BREARKE 20.6 29.0
— Diluted earnings per share — BR®mEKR 29.5 29.0

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Profit for the year FAFE 410,025 360,859

Other comprehensive income Hib4RE W
Items that will not be reclassified to & T2 &E# 7 B2 Bz h

profit or loss EH
— Exchange differences on — ARBHBHREFTE
translation of financial Z
statements of the Company 18,515 31,631

Items that may be reclassified to A& EH 7 E 2B s /Y

profit or loss EH
— Exchange differences on — MEIRINER R E K,
translation of foreign Z
operations 47,589 71,371
66,104 103,002
Total comprehensive income for FREALZE N
the year 476,129 463,861
Total comprehensive income for AT AT ERFEARNELGES
the year is attributable to: W -
— Owners of the Company — RNRQRHEAE A 463,668 453,557
— Non-controlling interests — FEFER MR R 12,461 10,304
476,129 463,861

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  _E it & 6 2 T Uk 25 7= & B3B8 Bt B 52 — OF
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. BI7E -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O AR T AR

As at 31 December 2021
R-F-——F+=-H=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using

the equity method
Prepayments
Long-term receivables
Deferred income tax assets
Restricted cash

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Notes receivable

Contract assets

Prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

— Ordinary shares

— Redeemable preferences
shares

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BE

kRBEE

THE - BER&H 4
FREEE
"EYE 20l
EREE b2l
BEREAENEE

FE FOA b3
REFFE MR Da(d]
FEIEFTISE E
SZRHES
REBEE

e
JFE LA BR 5R K L i IR
R EE el
BREE [vd]
TE A 22

MR EENEARED
STAEHBENEHE
E 0)

ZREIE R

RekREFEY

BRI

HEE

HERaE
e
&7 29)
— @R
— A BRI LR
AR 19 5518
H i 4
pedlies

RIE=

RREGEAR AEEHER
IR M

miEn

5,893,191 5,246,835
196,584 179,458
7,073 7,120
47,607 43,054
85,646 74,790
29,470 138,702
29,999 25,142
46,550 24,224
142,841 1,439
6,478,961 5,740,764
144,313 146,591
327,760 312,381
17,529 16,555
37,280 32,892
419,362 239,954
- 182,029
12,239 15,955
742,181 407,743
1,700,664 1,354,100
8,179,625 7,094,864
437,203 487,203
135,203 135,203
302,000 352,000
175,305 282,115
56,297 (59,603)
1,583,546 1,232,109
2,252,351 1,941,824
70,436 57,951
2,322,787 1,999,775

Binhai Investment Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

BOHHBMRAER (&)

As at 31 December 2021

R-F-—Ff+-H=4+—H

Liabilities afE

Non-current liabilities *kRBAE
Borrowings B

Deferred income EFEW 2=

Lease liabilities MEAaRE

Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSHRARE

Trade and other payables JE AT AR R % L A B - 3R
Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables JE A~ BR SR % B AN 3R
Contract liabilities aHBE

Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS R BB
Borrowings R

Lease liabilities HE&E

Total liabilities mas

Total equity and liabilities HERREE

(23] 2,238,984 1,055,498
144,458 111,608
10,020 8,288
23] 34,700 21,702
B3 28,382 64,440
2,456,544 1,261,536

(34 1,494,076 1,575,940
V| 965,386 912,385
44,225 28,242

B3 885,765 1,308,508
il 10,842 8,478

3,400,294 3,833,553

5,856,838 5,095,089

8,179,625 7,094,864

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 166 to 339
were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2022
and were signed on its behalf.

bt A F B 5 K00 5% E B PR PR 5 — BF

F166E30EMAE MU KEHRRERE
EeRN_E-_—F=-A++B0HE I
HUTEERRESTEERSE -

Wang Zhiyong
IEBE
Director

EF

Gao Liang
a5
Director

EBEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S ERBER

For the year ended 31 December

. EmE-T-—s+-A=+—dL

2021
FE

Balance at 1 January 2020  R=E=Z5-A-F
e 489,435 104,676 (176,180 895,129 1,313,060 46,966 1,360,026
Profit for the year ERFE - - — 354904 354,904 595 360,859
Other comprehensive income B ftifr 4 Mz - - 98,653 - 98,653 4,349 103,002
Total comprehensive income  @&41E - - 98653 354904 453557 10,304 463,861
Transactions with owners, ~ EFHAETHRS -
recognised directly in ERNERARR
equity
Contribution from a new RAMRENTE
shareholder of the Company 17768 218541 - — 236,309 - 236,309
Lapse of employee share BAmRERRE
options b - — B0y 8084 - - -
Dividends provided for and EARDEINRE
oéid - Wi - - i) - i)
Dividends paid to non- BRI ERER
controlling interests BiRe - - - - - 1801)  (21,801)
Redemption of preferences EOEER
shares B oo - - — (0000 )
Appropriation of statutory REVEERE
feserves [ - - 26008 (26008 - - -
Contribution from non- SRR ERNTE
controling interests - - - - - 22,482 22,482
(2,232) 177,439 17,924 (17,924) 175,207 681 175,888
Balance at 31 December g5 2 g
2020 =t-BhEs 487,203 282,115 (69,603 1,282,109 1,941,824 57,951 1,999,775
170 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

SBHtEEZEHXR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Balance at 1 January 2021  W-B--%-F-A

s 487203 282,115  (50,603) 1,232,100 1,941,824 57,951 1,999,775
Profit for the year ERFAE - - - 399650 399,659 10,366 410,025
Other comprehensive income  E 54 1% - - 64,009 - 64,009 2,095 66,104
Total comprehensive income %5 A % - - 64009 399,650 463,668 12461 476,129

Transactions with owners, ~ EEEAETNTS
recognised directly in EBRERAER

equity
Grant of employee share RYEERZHE

options [l - - 3,669 - 3,669 24 3,693
Dividends provided for and EARTEINRE

oaid i - [106810) - - [106810) — (106,810)
Redemption of preferences BB

shares (50,000) - - - (50000) - (50,000
Appropriation of statutory REVEERE

resenves - - 48222  (48,222) - - -

(50,000) (106810) 51,891  (48.222) ({53,141) 2 (153,117)

Balance at 31 December RZBZ-E+ZF
2021 =+-AMEH 437,208 175,305 56,297 1,583,546 2,252,351 70,436 2,322,787

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity | #lt & G4 25 & B) 3K FE B2 55 P B 5 — 6F
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. BE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating BETHHNRESRE

activities
Cash generated from operations KEEBEENRS 561,873 864,050
Interest received RSN 3,744 1,660
Income tax paid BAFTSH (79,464) (93,414)
Net cash inflow from operating R EZBHELNTRS

activities BA 486,153 772,296
Cash flows from investing RETHNEESRE

activities
Grants received for construction ERIE B WERIMFEED

projects 24,362 53,687
Payments for property, plant and B - BE L REOR

equipment = (690,914) (869,378)
Payments for land use rights 3 R RE AV R (13,982) (2,411)
Payments for intangible assets B EENNR (6,033) (5,063)
Proceeds from disposal of BETEE - WENM&HE

property, plant and equipment BT8R IE 9,427 22,256
Proceeds from disposal of land use [RE + i {F AREMESRIE

rights - 2,200
Government grant received W B BT 4R B 6,893 805
Withdrawal of restricted cash IR HIIR e 16,190 6,866
Placement of restricted cash FATRSIIR S (151,339) (16,595)
Payments for investments in wealth 3%& MW IBE 8 E RN 3

management products - (517,573)
Proceed from redemption of wealth & B 18 81 2= R &I P15 3018

management products 180,875 345,060
Wealth management products BRI E R E W

income received 11,134 7,801
Net cash outflow from investing REFZTHELANERSE

activities psioles] (613,387) (972,345)

172 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

EHEERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Cash flows from financing
activities

METHNRERE

Proceeds from borrowings BERFREZRIE 2,076,769 2,275,432
Repayment of borrowings BEBER (1,366,176) (2,468,901)
Principal elements of lease MENFEEHBD

payments (9,286) (11,196)
Interests paid [RENEAES) (99,674) (106,429)
Contribution from non-controlling JEIE | REZ TR

interests - 22,482
Dividends paid to Company’s BERNARERRRE

shareholders (106,810) (41,102)
Contribution from a new RRAR—HREEE

shareholder of the Company - 236,309
Redemption of redeemable HE [3] 7] fE [0 & S ik

preferences shares [29(D) (50,000) (20,000)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from FREZHELENTERS

financing activities RA GRE) 444,823 (113,409)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BERBEZEEYE

and cash equivalents #in, GRd) 317,589 (313,454)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHeRREEFEY

beginning of year 407,743 699,998
Effects of exchange rate difference [EXR=FHFE 16,849 21,199
Cash and cash equivalents at EXRBERREEEY

end of year 742,181 407,743

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be Ll & HFIR € 7 2 5K FE E2 58 I B 5 — 0F
read in conjunction with the accompany notes. BiE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Br T —Ff+ - HA=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Binhai Investment Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 October 1999. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
The Company and its subsidiaries are hereafter
together referred to as the Group.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) regard
TEDA Hong Kong Property Company Limited (“TEDA
HK”) (a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong)
and Great Wall Energy Investment (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Great Wall Energy HK”) (a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong) as being the two largest
shareholders of the Company, holding approximately
35.43% and 29.99% of the total ordinary shares of the
Company in issue respectively.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is Renminbi (“RMB”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

() Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("“HKFRS”) and disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622
(“HKCO”).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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(i)

(iii)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets that are measured at fair
values.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$1,699,630,000. The Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern largely
depends on the sufficiency of financial resources
available to the Group. The Directors are of the
view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the next twelve months
from 31 December 2021, based on the following
considerations:

o The Group is expected to remain profitable
and continue to generate operating cash
inflows from its future business operations;

° The Group has access to undrawn bank
borrowing facilities of RMB231,551,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$283,382,000)
as at 31 December 2021, which can be drawn
at any point of time during the year ending 31
December 2022 subject to the continuance of
satisfactory credit ratings;

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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o The Group has secured a financing facility
from a reputable financial leasing company
(which is controlled by a state-owned
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange) in December 2021 upon execution
of which, the Group can draw down 3-year
term borrowings of up to RMB500 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$612 million)
from the aforesaid financial leasing company
during the first half of the year ending 31
December 2022; and

° The Group has further obtained a banking
facility from a reputable commercial bank
(which is dual listed on both the Main Board
of HKEx and the Shanghai Stock Exchange)
in March 2022 pursuant to which, the
Group can draw down a 1-year term bank
borrowing of RMB150 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$184 million) from the
aforesaid commercial bank at any time
before 9 March 2023.

In view of the above, the Directors are confident
that there will be sufficient financial resources
available to the Group to enable it to continue
as a going concern and hence have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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(ivy New and amended standards adopted by the (iv) AEEEFTERA R HTET REERT

Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing on 1 January 2021:

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020 Cycle,

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction —
amendments to HKAS 12, and

° COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021.

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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(v) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2021 reporting periods and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards, amendments or interpretations are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Effect of interbank offered rate (“IBOR”) reform

The Group has adopted amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 -
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 from 1
January 2021.

In December 2020, ICE Benchmark Administration
(“IBA”), London interbank offered rate (“LIBOR”)’s
administrator, issued a consultation on its intention
to cease the publication of GBP, EUR, JPY and CHF
LIBOR, as well as one-week and two-month tenors of
USD LIBOR after 31 December 2021. IBA expects to
publish the remaining tenors of USD LIBOR until 30
June 2023 and cease publication thereafter.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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The Group currently has a long-term borrowing
contract which reference USD LIBOR, a substantial
portion of it will be repayable beyond 2021 .
As the USD LIBOR will be published until 30 June
2023, the Group has not yet commenced the transition
to an alternative benchmark interest rate and thus the
adoption of this amendment did not have any impact
on the Group’s financial performance for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the opening balance of
its equity at 1 January 2021.

SIGNIFIACNT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for business combinations

by the Group .
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(i)

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (iv) below),
after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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(iiij) Joint arrangements

(iv)

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investments.

When the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

(v)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
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When the Group ceases to consolidate
or equity account for an investment
because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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4.2 Business combinations 4.2 EKEHt

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business,

° equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could
be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or as a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.3

4.4

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the
Company (the “Executive Directors”) that makes
strategic decisions.
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4.5 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the group entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS$,
and the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or
loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable
to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit or loss
on a net basis within “Other gains — net”.

4.5 SNEBE

()

(i)
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(iii)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position,

o income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions), and
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o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit
or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment (if any). Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
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4.7

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Gas pipelines 30 years
Buidlings and infrastructures 30 years
Machinery and equipment 20 years
Office equipment and motor 5 years

vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount {Note 4.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are office buildings held
for long-term rental yields and are not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.
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4.8

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

The estimated useful lives of the investment
properties are 30 years.

Intangible assets

(i) Operating rights

Separately acquired operating rights of piped
natural gas sales are shown at historical
cost. Operating rights of piped natural gas
sales acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Operating rights are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of operation
rights as stated in the respective industry
licenses ranging from 25 to 30 years.

(ii) Software

Acquired computer software programmes
are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised
over the estimated useful lives of 5 to 10
years on a straight-line basis.

4.8
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(iii) Goodwill (iii) BEE

Goodwill is measured as described in Note
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.
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4.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

4.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) or
through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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(i)

The classification depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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(iii) Measurement (iii) &

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.
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FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OClI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.
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Currently, the Group does not have any
equity instrument carried at fair value.
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(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables and
contract assets, see for further
details.

4.11 Inventories

Inventories mainly comprising pipeline and other
materials for construction and gas pipeline
installation service and gases, are stated at the
lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost, being
cost of purchase, is determined on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

4.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.
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Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade and other
receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

4.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

4.14 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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4.15 Borrowings 4.15 f& X

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss
as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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4.16 Borrowing costs 4.16 AR

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

4.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes
in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.
The Group measures its tax balances either based
on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred income tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current income
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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4.18 Employee benefits

()

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the statement of
financial position.

Retirement benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the ‘PRC’),
the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are
required to make monthly contributions to
these plans calculated as a percentage of
the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
PRC based employees’ payable under the
plans described above. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the PRC government. The
Group also provide an commercial annuity
insurance for its employees from 2020.
Other than the monthly contributions and
the commercial contributions, the Group
has no further obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of its employees.

4,18 EEEA

()

(i)
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4.19 Share-based payments 4.19 IR AERN I

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(e.g. the entity’s share price)

° excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period), and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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4.20 Provisions

4.21

Provisions for legal claims and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activities. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below.

(i) Sales of piped natural gas

Revenue from the sale of piped natural gas is
recognised at the point of time when control
of the piped natual gas has been transferred
to the customer (which generally coincides
with the time when the gas is delivered
to and used by customers and title has
passed), and when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group.

4.20 &5

4.21
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(i)

Construction and gas pipeline
installation service

Revenue in respect of construction and gas
pipeline installation service is recognised
over time, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction using input method
which recognises revenue using costs
incurred relative to total estimated costs to
determine the extent of progress toward
completion. The Group recognises revenue
over time only if it can reasonably measure
its progress toward complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation. However,
if the Group cannot reasonably measure
the outcome but expects to recover the
costs incurred in satisfying the performance
obligation, then it recognises revenue to the
extent of the costs incurred.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of
progress toward completion are revised
if circumstances change. Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenue
or costs are reflected in profit or loss in
the period which the circumstances that
give rise to the revision become known by
management.

The customers are required to pay in
advance for certain contract amount based
on a payment schedule. If the services
rendered by the Group exceed the payment,
a contract asset is recognised. If the
payment exceed the services rendered, a
contract liability is recognised.
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(iii) Gas passing through service

Gas passing through service income is
recognised at a point in time when natural
gas has been passed through the Group’s
gas pipelines in providing the related
services.

(iv) Sales of bottled natural gas

Revenue is recognised when control of
goods has transferred, being at a point in
time when the customers purchase the
goods.

4.22 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares,

° by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year.

(iii) XA/ E BB

RARRE BRBFBAR
REXARBBAEE
RARRE B R RS

R RR o

(iv) ERERHE
WAREmZEHEEE
BER(EFBEEEH
Z ) HER e

4.22 SR
(i) EFREFWKz

BRERNEDmOAET
R

o BARRAEAARE
EAE(FEREE
378 P DA S ) A 1] AR
FE R AR AR)

. BUBBRFERE
1T b 2 BB 19
CRZC[E SR
A B D AT
B AR PO AT IR 55
TR -

Annual Report 2021 —ZT - —F 4%

207



208

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
ECE =1 —HIFE

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and

° the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

4.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.
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Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments (if applicable):

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable,

° variable lease payments that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date,

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees,

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.
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The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third-party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the Group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less without a purchase option.
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Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
|_2_Q‘. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the statement of financial position
based on their nature.

4.24 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

4.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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4.26 Interest income 4.26 FE W

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on
these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note
[[3lbelow. Any other interest income is included in
other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. As at 31
December 2021, the Group do not use any derivative
financial instruments to hedge against its financial risk
exposures.

The Group’s risk management is predominantly
controlled by the Group’s financial department (Group
Treasury) under policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”). Group Treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and
non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.

5.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E o E =1 —HIFE

The operations and customers of the
Group’s subsidiaries are located in the
PRC with most of the assets/liabilities
and transactions denominated and
settled in Renminbi.

Certain bank balances and borrowings
are denominated in HK$ and US$
which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 10% (2020:
10%) against the USD with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$105,416,000 higher/
lower (2020: HK$1,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of USD
denominated borrowings (2020: on
translation of USD denominated cash
and cash equivalents).

REBFRANE
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B RBOEE/
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RETERESR -
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HE EAKEE
W SMNE BB o ANER
= B A 36 & S E B
K e AT E
HE g ERIMER
B WEESER
Z R M EARIMNE
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— T F10%)
i BT A H fth A = 4
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E_E it A=+ —HILFE

(1)

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 10% (2020:
10%) against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$113,000 lower/
higher (2020: HK$91,080,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation
of HK$ denominated cash and cash
equivalents (2020: on translation of
HK$ denominated borrowings).

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from deposits and borrowings which
are obtained at fixed rates and other
borrowings with variable rates, which
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The deposits interest rate
risk is considered as not material. The
Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate
bank and other borrowings.

Management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other
necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

The tables below set out the Group’s TRINTAEER
fixed rate borrowings and floating rate T F) E & 5 A
borrowings which expose the Group to FEINEER - E
fair value interest rate risks and cash EAREE S R HE R
flow interest rate risk respectively: N AABE R @ R

MBS REFER

B

At 31 December 2020 RZE-BE

+ZA=1+-H
Current ik}
Bank borrowings RITER 309,518 26,065 335,583
Other borrowings Hifas 942,852 - 942,852
Current portion of long- EHEMERHNRELH
term other borrowings - 30,073 30,073
1,252,370 56,138 1,308,508
Non-current FRE
Bank borrowings BITER 26,934 279,901 306,835
Other borrowings H A& - 748,663 748,663
26,934 1,028,564 1,055,498
Total borrowings Ep 1,279,304 1,084,702 2,364,006
At 31 December 2021 3
+=A=+-H
Current ik}
Syndicate borrowing REER - 93,214 93,214
Bank borrowings RITER 669,638 122,913 792,551
669,638 216,127 885,765
Non-current ERB
Syndicate borrowing REMER - 993,061 993,061
Bank borrowings RITER 272,876 238,742 511,618
Other borrowings Hiofas - 734,305 734,305
272,876 1,966,108 2,238,984
Total borrowings Ep 942,514 2,182,235 3,124,749
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E_E it A=+ —HILFE

As at 31 December 2021, if interest
rates on floating rate borrowings
had been 1% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have
been lower/higher by approximately
HK$17,765,000 (2020: HK$8,588,000)
due to the higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Syndicate
borrowring which reference 6-month
USD LIBOR as benchmark interest
rate are subject to IBOR reform and
the Group has not yet commence the
transition to an alternative benchmark
interest rate [Note 3).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

)~ —

g4 —

Fo—FtH=1—HIFE

(b) Credit risk

(1)

Risk management

Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash,
contract assets, notes receivable
and trade and other receivables. The
carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at
the end of the reporting period. The
credit risk for deposits with banks and
financial institutions is limited because
the majority of the Group’s deposits
are placed in reputable banks in Hong
Kong and top tier state-owned/listed
banks and financial institutions in the
PRC with high credit rating. For trade
and other receivables and contract
assets, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. The
Group assesses the credit quality of
the customers, taking into account
their financial position, past settlement
history and trading relationships. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.

(b) EEREE
(i) EREZE
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E_E it A=+ —HILFE

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial
assets that are subject to HKFRS 9
expected credit loss model:

e trade receivables,

e contract assets, and

e other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and notes receivable
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and contract assets.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract
assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based
on the payment profiles of sales over
a period of 36 months before 31
December 2021 or 1 January 2021
respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced
within these periods. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified
the Consumer Price Index, currency
supply, Product Price Index, Value
Added of Industry, gross investment in
fixed assets and Purchasing Managers
Index to be the most relevant factors
and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes
in these factors.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

On that basis, the loss allowance as RILE®E  K&EH
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was RZZEZ—FK
determined as follows for both trade —ETTF+ZH
receivables and contract assets: =+—HREKE
RREHNEERER

BEEHET
— Construction and gas pipeline — IEEIEX
installation service NREBLR

%

31 December 2021 —E--F+ZH
=t+-A

Trade receivables JE B
Expected loss rate BEBRE 9.44%  10.02%  56.21%
Gross carrying amount REEE (FET)

(HK$°000) 81,787 41,091 163,681 286,560
Loss allowance EERE (FET)

(HK$’000) 1,721 4,116 91,999 103,836
Contract assets ENEE
Expected loss rate EHFEX 10.18% - -
Gross carrying amount RERE(FET)

(HK$'000) 41,504 - - 41,504
Loss allowance BERE (FET)

(HK$000) 4,224 - - 4,224

11,945 4,116 91,999 108,060
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

31 December 2020 “E-ZE+-R
=t+-H

Trade receivables JE BB %
Expected loss rate EHERR 9.16% 969%  54.20%
Gross carrying amount REGE(FET)

(HK$°000) 70,975 50,182 120,697 241,854
Loss allowance EERE (FET)

(HK$’000) 6,499 4,863 65,415 176,777
Contract assets ENEE
Expected loss rate kil p e 10.31% - -
Gross carrying amount REGE(FET)

(HK8'000) 36,675 - — 36675
Loss allowance EiERE (FET)

(HK$000) 3,783 - ~ 378

10,282 4,863 65,415 80,660
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

R T —Ff+ - A=1—HIFFZF

—  Sales of piped natural gas

31 December 2021 —E-_-5+ZHA
=+-H

Trade receivables EBERR

Expected loss rate b i) p R

Gross carrying amount  BREI4A(E (F£7T)
(HK$'000)

Loss allowance EBREE (FET)
(HK$°000)

31 December 2020 —E-EF+-R
=t-8

Trade receivables FEWERR

Expected loss rate EHEEX

Gross carrying amount  BREIE(E (FET)
(HK$'000)

Loss allowance BERE (FET)
(HK$°000)

BRARH

]
&

10.35% 10.18%  95.63%

76,960 658 19,825 97,443
7,962 67 18,959 26,988

10.03% 10.31% 92.99%

18,197 2,115 21,416 41,728
1,826 218 19,915 21,959
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

—  Gas passing through service — RAREHR
%

31 December 2021 —E--5+ZHA
=+-A
Trade receivables EBERR
Expected loss rate BHBBEX 10.17% - -
Gross carrying amount  BREI4A(E (F£7T)
(HK$000) 8,787 - - 8,787
Loss allowance EBREE (FET)
(HK$°000) 894 - - 894
31 December 2020 —E-EF+-R
=+-A1
Trade receivables FEWERR
Expected loss rate BHEEE 10.45%  10.38% -
Gross carrying amount  BREIE(E (FET)
(HK$'000) 220 530 - 750
Loss allowance BERE (FET)
(HK$°000) 23 55 - 78
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B R+ HA=+—HIFE

The loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets as at 31 December
reconcile to the opening loss allowances
as follows:

As at 1 January ®-A—H

Net impairment losses/ & RPN B NHE
(reversal) recognised REAE
in profit or loss B/ (8E)
during the year ikt

Receivables written off R4 A &%
during the year as e [o] ) W 50 0E

uncollectible
Currency translation EHBREER
difference

As at 31 December R+=-A=+-H

98,814

29,754

(242)

3,392

131,718

154,229

(46,776)

(16,787)

8,148

98,814

EWERR A HE
ERtTZRA=+—
H &) B3 18 # i B
) 185 18 7 s HT BR 40
B

3,783 2,929
323 638
118 216

4,224 3,783
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E o E =1 —HIFE

Trade receivables and contract assets
are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where loans or receivables have
been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.
Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on contract assets
and trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Other receivables

Other receivables such as deposits
paid are considered to have low credit
risk and the loss allowance recognised
during the period was therefore
limited to 12 months expected losses.
Management consider ‘low credit
risk’ for financial instruments when
they have a low risk of default and the
issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

The loss allowance for other receivables Hih W HR+=

as at 31 December reconciles to the BA=+—H®EIE

opening loss allowance as follows: BiEmRE Y EEE
WEERNT -

As at 1 January w—H—H 7,987 3,845

Net impairment (reversal)/ 4 AR 18z AR
losses recognised in RRE (8E)
profit or loss during the ~ [E518 % %8

year (4,851) 3,761
Currency translation BE¥MmEER
difference 165 381
As at 31 December RNt+—_HA=+—H 3,301 7,987
(c) Liquidity risk (c) nEBELEME
In the management of the liquidity risk, REEBERDE R R
the Group monitors and maintains a level B AEEERRER
of cash and cash equivalents deemed RekBeEFEMEE
adequate by the management to finance the BERRRUMAAEHE
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects FEERME S WRE
of fluctuations in cash flows. ReRERKEBTEHNK

72 o
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet obligations when due
and to close out market positions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group held bank
deposits at call of HK$742,181,000 (2020:
HK$407,743,000) that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, Group treasury
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve (comprising the
undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows. This is generally
carried out at local level in the operating
companies of the Group, in accordance with
practice and limits set by the Group. These
limits vary by location to take into account
the liquidity of the market in which the entity
operates. In addition, the Group’s liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash
flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets necessary to meet
these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity
ratios against internal and external regulatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing
plans.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

The Directors take the ultimate responsibility
for liquidity risk management, which has built
an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long term funding
and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. When necessary, the
Group will seek for financial support from
the major shareholders to finance its funding
needs (if any).

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group’s financial department
maintains flexibility in funding by its ability to
move cash and cash equivalents between
different entities through related parties
borrowing arrangements.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on their contractual
maturities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bz —FfZH=F—HIFE

The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

At 31 December 2021

Borrowings[[Note 39]
Trade and other payables
(excluding other tax
payables and payroll

payebles) [Note 35]
Lease liabilities|(Note 19

At 31 December 2020

Borrowings
Trade and other payables
(excluding other tax
payables and payroll
payables] Note 35]

Lease liabilities [ Note 19)

sl

ERRAR LR
(MEREEERHEN
EHTE)IE2]

HEAHITET

e [
BHERREREHA
(FasAuBRRLH
a 18

RERRL

RARBENSBEREL
Eﬁﬁgiﬁ.iﬁﬁlllbi" Z2DN
MBEHNFELTEKR
B 128 A MBI HI R0 45
FRELH R AEERIES -

1,004,519 993,261 1,258,806 146,185 3,402,771 3,124,749
1,485,293 6,43 22,855 - 1,514,561 1,511,594

10,696 6,984 3,061 4,164 24895 20,862
2,500,508 1,006,658 1,284,712 150,349 4,942,227 4,657,205
1,369,474 156,629 919475 81,606 2,527,184 2,364,006
1670012 85417 12,744 - 1,638,173 1,630,674

8,887 4,902 3,463 308 20337 16,766
2948373 216948 935682 84,691 4,185,694 4,011,446
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

b —

g4 —

Fo—FtH=1—HIFE

5.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to:

° safeguard their ability to continue as a
going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, and

° maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings
and lease liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated by adding
total equity and net debt.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

AEBR T -_—FR-_T—
TE+-_A=+—HBNELXE
BHERMT :

Total borrowings fEEmEa 3,124,749 2,364,006
Add: Lease liabilities HEBE (Mt 19)

Note 19] 20,862 16,766
Less: Cash and cash g IReENREE

equivalents (Note 28} & (724 (742,181) (407,743)
Net debt ERFE 2,403,430 1,973,029
Add: Total equity B 2,322,787 1,999,775
Total capital B sEEE 4,726,217 3,972,804
Gearing ratio BAREFLE 51% 50%

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained earnings.

AEBEREERNARRAE
BARERSERIBEL
2 RSB ESNEE
ZPEIE IR B - NEE
EERmE EF o

AEBEAGEBEER LA
RAERAEEED (BB
BIIRA - FEREBFRE)
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The Directors review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and new share issuance.

Loan Covenants
Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities,

the Group is required to comply with the following
financial covenants:

The consolidated total equity shall not at all
times be less than HK$ 1,000,000,000;

° The ratio of consolidated net debts to
consolidated total equity shall not for any
relevant period exceed 1.95:1;

o The consolidated EBITDA to the consolidated
total interest expense shall not for any
relevant period be less than 3:1;

° The consolidated total assets which are
subject to any security shall not at all times
exceed 40% of the consolidated total assets.

The Group has complied with these covenants
throughout the reporting period.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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5.3 Fair value estimation

Financial assets and liabilities

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are recognised and
measured at fair value in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of
the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Group has classified its financial instruments into
the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standards.

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
analysed into the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

5.3

D AEEMGE
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Level 2:

Level 3:

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

Fair value of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
recurring basis:

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level

ERAEATABREABIE

(£3/8) HAA(EEE -

TREVWNEHE_ZE-_—FR=

3 items for the periods ended 31 December 2021 Z_FHE+_A=1t—HLH
BME3EEE &

and 2020:

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

() WAREEHEARE
BHA S AR 2B
B

As at 1 January w—A—H 182,029 —
Acquisitions BEE - 517,573
Disposals fEM (192,009) (352,861)
Gains recognised in other REM TG — FE

gains — net iR R R 7,302 11,455
Currency translation BEHmEER

differences 2,678 5,862
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

[Note 26) (F7Z24) — 182,029

Annual Report 2021 —Z - —FFiR

237



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E; e e A )

(i) Notes receivable (i) JEWE

As at 1 January R—H—H 16,555 20,556
Increase during the year F &N 71,584 77,746
Decrease during the year F AR (71,112) (82,942)
Currency translation EmE =R

differences 502 1,195

238

As at 31 December

Wt=A=+—H

17,529 16,555

In respect of these notes receivable, the
Group’s business model is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
of these assets (through the endorsement
of bank acceptance notes to suppliers as
settlement of payable balances). Therefore,
these notes receivable have been classified
as financial assets at FVOCI. Considering the
short maturities of these notes receivables
and their principal amounts will not normally
be changed much, the changes in the fair
values of these instruments are minimal.
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6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 6 RSt {hstRHAE

AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

() Impairment assessment of the long-term
assets

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
possible impairments whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. If impairment indicators
exist, the recoverable amount is determined at the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal.

Determination as to whether and how much an
asset is impaired involves management estimates
and judgements such as growth rates of business
volume, gross margin and the pre-tax discount
rate for value in use and estimated selling price,
estimated costs to completion and selling
expenses for fair value less costs of disposal.
Judgement is required by the Board to determine
key assumptions adopted and changes to key
assumptions can significantly affect the results of
the impairment reviews.

Details of the recoverable amount calculations are

disclosed in[Note 1§.

AP B MRBER ST - B
2RE - GIHEELSRERG
R BEBNTARBARENE T
BRI o

AEBEREN GG R - &
AERAHE DERBELR K EME
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ENRREHARNREBIFR TR
REENARREFHTELR) FH -

() RUEEEMNRERA

TEE - BB RBREREMFX
BRE BN REER LA
[B] &5 5t &= & R BE R B 1F th A2
A o MIFFERETR @ ATKRE
TRIREREERAEER
HERATNESEETE

BEEERDRENBENS
By NEE M ihEt R
PIansEMEEMN S SXEHE
MR R « ERER LRI
W& - MR ARBER L EK
ARIBEFTEE - [AET R
ARHERS - EFRAFH
HETAEFRRANEZR
& MEBRKREB A LHIRE
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==

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income taxes not recognised

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred
income tax asset is recognised in respect of
deductible temporary differences amounting
to HK$242,657,000 (2020: HK$254,310,000)
and tax losses amounting to HK$153,200,000
(2020: HK$263,615,000) due to the uncertainties
on whether these temporary difference and
tax losses can be utilised in the future (Note
23]. The recognition of the deferred income
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future assessable profits
generated are more than expected, a recognition
of deferred income tax asset may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the period in which
such recognition takes place.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 5.1(b)

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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7 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources of the Group. The Executive Directors have
determined the operating segments based on these
internal reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
Group'’s following operating segments:

° Sales of piped natural gas

° Construction and gas pipeline installation service

o Gas passing through service
° Sales of bottled natural gas

The Executive Directors assess the performance of
the operating segments based on segment results.
Segment results are measured as gross profit of each
segment.

7 ERE #

HITEFBHAEBONHBREN
FHARENRRARHBEAR -
FEEDREZLNBREBTL

B -
NITEET AR EEATIEE D
GESE

. BERARHE

e IRBIRRAREBLER
5

s  RARE®BRE
o HRMRHEE
HTESFERNDBEREFEHEED

WERR - HHBEENEH BT
Flit g -
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The segment results are as follows: DEFEENT -

Total segment revenue from external - RENNSEEN P BERA

customers 4,011,902 742,880 60,167 21,977 4,842,926

Recognised at a point in time FEBEET 4,011,902 - 60,167 21971 4,100,046

Recognised over time R-BBERET - 742,880 - - 742,880
Segment results THEE 361,944 436,347 50,168 6,982 855,441
Other income A 29,492
Administrative expenses AR (305,918)
Other gains — net HithE%E 33,884
Net impairment losses on financial and ~ 2B KA N EERHESEFE

contract assets (25,226)
Finance income BESE 3,744
Finance costs RERK (104,624)
Share of net profit of associates and ~ E(REEE A FI RAL R AT

joint ventures accounted for using (REZEAR)

the equity method 8,496
Profit before income tax BHEHATE 495,289
Other segment information EhAHER
Depreciation (included in cost of sales 7 (BEEHERREKAAR)

and services) 89,525 22,809 8,311 12 120,657
Depreciation (included in administrative 7 (BREAHERS)

expenses) 67,015

187,672

Impairment loss on property under AREEMFISFEPHERT

construction included in other BOHERSE

gains-net 9,754

242 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7
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Total segment revenue from external - RENFREMNHEPRIA

customers 2,935,616 626,300 70,991 20,959 3,663,806

Recognised at a point in time REESET 2,935,616 - 70,991 20,959 3,027,506

Recognised over time K-BBERER - 626,300 - - 626,300
Segment results PH%E 170,464 366,660 58,406 7,885 603,415
Other income A 20,214
Administrative expenses TBREY (279,783)
Other gains — net HpHEEE 148,078
Netimpairment reversal on financil ~ £BRANEERNFHEELFE

and contract assets 42,317
Finance income Bl 1,660
Finance costs BERK (104,879)
Share of net profit of associates and ~ EIEEEEAEIRAGLELT

joint ventures accounted for using (REZEAE)

the equity method 7,201
Profit before income tax RASH AR 439,183
Other segment information RteAHEs
Depreciation (included in cost of sales 7 (AHEHERREKAAR)

and services) 105,465 8,875 7424 17 121,781
Depreciation (included in administrative 7% (B ETHFXS)

expenses) 47,661

169,442

Impairment loss on goodwill IEEEINGERE 10,741 2,561 - - 13,302

Impaiment loss on property, plantand A7 HE RREKATHTE
equipment included in cost of sales & - RERRENHESSE
and services 9,803 - - - 9,803
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The Executive Directors have not make reference
to any geographical information for assessing the
Group’s performance and allocating resources as
all of the Group’s operations are conducted in the
PRC.

The Group has recognised the following assets
and liabilities related to contracts with customers:

RRARBH A XK R H EE
17 AR ITEERBELEEMM
AR ARHE AR B R AL DB

AEBCDHEANTEEFPEHNEH
MWEEMEIE

Contract assets B8 EE
Contract assets relating BT 325 T K KA
to construction and gas REBLEA
pipeline installation e NEE 41,504 36,675
Less: loss allowance J SRR (4,224) (3,783)
Total contract assets BEXEE 37,280 32,892
Contract liabilities eHaE
Receipts in advance from BHEIATN A EMERERN
customers relating to: FEEWBINE P
Wik
— Sales of piped natural — BEERAR
gas HE 686,020 621,453
— Construction and gas — IR &K
pipeline installation AREBLER
service AR 7 271,732 283,079
— Others — Hith 7,634 7,853
Total contract liabilities weak 965,386 912,385
Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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(@) The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised in the current reporting
period relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities:

Revenue recognised R F R E AT
that was included in BIEZE#R
the contract liability WA

balance at the
beginning of the year
Sales of piped natural EEARRIEE

gas

Construction and gas TiEBEIK
pipeline installation RAREE
service &R AR

Others Hfth

(@ TFRINRRANHREHHE
BROBRAR SSRGS
BRRENTHE

609,934 445,888
234,461 208,069

3,258 1,063
847,653 655,020

(b) The contract assets primarily relate to the
Group’s rights to consideration for works
completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on the Group’s future
performance.

The Group classifies these contract assets
as current because the Group expects to
realise them in its normal operating cycle.

) AHEETZEHMAS
ERDREREIRER
BRAVERNTEN
REREN DRZSE
A EUR 7 7R 5 [ 1 oK 2R
=& -

AEERZEENEE
REXNBEIBEARD
BE  DEAXAEEEH
AREEEZBHARK
HER -

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

245



246

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E_E it A=+ —HILFE

(c) Contract liabilities are expected to be settled
within the Group’s normal operating cycle
and classified as current liabilities.

Typical payment terms of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

—  Sales of piped natural gas

When the Group receives an advance
payment from a customer before gas
sales, this will give rise to contract
liabilities and the balance will be
reducing by the amounts of revenue
as recognised by the Group for related
sales of gas.

— Construction and gas pipeline
installation service

When the Group receives a deposit
from a customer before the construction
activity commences this will give rise
to contract liabilities and the balance
will be reducing by the amounts of
revenue as recognised by the Group
for the provision of related construction
and gas pipeline installation services.
For most of its customers, the Group
typically receives a 30% to 50% of total
contract sum upon the commencement
of the construction and installation
works.
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8 OTHER INCOME

Assembling services income
Government grants
Rental income

LR RIEIEA

B #4 Bh
HEW S

8 HflrA

16,175 12,163
11,855 6,918

1,462 1,133
29,492 20,214

9 OTHER GAINS — NET

9 HMFERE

Net gains from compensation — EIEXARE EH B
for damaged gas stations and B EEE (1)
gas pipelines (i) 7,432 183,491
Net losses on disposal of HETHE - BE&
property, plant and equipment R &8 EIE AR (536) (2,063)
Net gains on disposal of land & T b AR R F
use rights sk — 1,299
Net gains on disposal of raw & R R 8 F W s
materials 4,824 4,000
Impairment loss on goodwill EERREERE
[(Note 27) (#fiz21] - (13,302)
Impairment loss on property ERIRFEEL
under construction [Note 79) ([(EEZE), (9,754) —
Realised fair value gains on BVERNEERA
wealth management products A {BEYK 7,302 7,801
Net unrealised fair value gains ~ LAAAEEEEHH
on financial assets at FVPL PEEABRNSRE
BENARERAAE
(ERERE - 3,654
Net foreign exchange gains (i) I 74,4825 (i) 24,589 135,769
Others Hith 27 (1,671)
33,884 148,978
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(i)

——FtZA=F—HIFE

In 2021, four subsidiaries (2020: four subsidiaies)
have relocated their gas stations or gas
pipelines in accordance with the road repair
and construction requirements of the municipal
government of Deqging county, Nanjing city and
Tianjin city (2020: Fengxian county, Gaoan city,
Deqging county and Tianjin city). The compensation
amounts in excess of the carrying amounts of the
pipelines being relocated have been recognised
as net gains from compensation for damaged gas
pipelines for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

The net foreign exchange gain for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was primarily foreign
exchange gain of HK$23,487,000 as arised
from the full settlement of a HK$-denominated
borrowing in 2021. The net foreign exchange
gain for the year ended 31 December 2020
primarily comprised of the net exchange gain of
HK$128,193,000 arisen from the full settlement of
the US$ bond in November 2020.

10 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/
(REVERSAL) ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

(i

RZZTZ—%F - MEMEQF]
(ZZ=Z=F : IHKBAR)
BEREH% BRmERZE
m(ZEZZF 8% 5%
e BEBERREN) 7
fT8EE e R EETIRFRE M
BBEHRXARGHSIRARE
BOHEZ-—FR-TC
TFEFA=F+—HILFE -
HADREE BREERNMEE
CHOERBIBERAREE
B BEE N 25 F 5 -

HE-T-_—F+=-A=1+—
AIEFEMNFELRREE
BRZIZEZ—FXHEES
TLETE & SRPTE £ K IE H Ik
#%23,487,0008 L > H &= =
TEFF+A=+—HIEF
EHNFELAKRSEERRER=
T_TEF+-—ABEEEE
TCIE 5 P EE A 89 )F BB s
128,193,000 & JT °

10 SRR ENEENRE

R (BE)F8E

Impairment losses/(reversal) on 5t & U BR 7% 1% B b JiE
trade and other receivables WK HERH R E
&8, (EE) 24,903 (43,019)
Impairment losses on contract  FLA #)& E R HIR
assets BEE 323 638
25,226 (42,377)
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11 EXPENSES BY NATURE 11 BMEBESMWEHR

Cost of gas purchased 1R SRER BB Ak X 3,403,733 2,455,417
Employee benefit expense EERNEHR
[Note 12] 294,753 258,491
Costs of pipelines and other REEE R E MR
materials purchased D% 174,435 218,380
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & 2 ¢4 190,788 172,937
— Property, plant and — I "BE  BFE
equipment N & 172,751 155,411
— Right-of-use assets — FEEEE 14,921 14,031
— Intangible assets — mEAE 2,861 3,268
— Investment properties — B 255 227
Subcontractor and other costs 987 [z H b i 4 122,535 124,412
Changes in inventories of EEREMMEER
pipelines and other materials #1L, 8,653 (28,907)
Repair expenses HEIEFRX 24,990 27,026
Other professional fees HEtmHEBH 14,087 19,234
Impairment loss on property, TABE - BB &&
plant and equipment ERERHREEE — 9,803
Expenses relating to short term 42 HAFAE A BN E A
leases 9,334 5,492
Auditor’s remuneration Z 2RI N & 3,798 3,220
Others Hi 46,297 64,729
Total cost of sales and services  #5% & IRIGHK AN 4258
and administrative expenses RiITHRAS 4,293,403 3,330,234
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12 RERFNER

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

250

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE -  HeMmiEs 210,470 207,966
Social security and housing HRMFEEAES
fund 68,919 40,624
Share-based payment DXt E R
expenses 3,693 —
Other benefits HE7| 11,671 9,901
294,753 258,491

The Group’s employees participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans as organised
by the PRC government (the “defined contribution
schemes”). Other than the Group’s monthly
contributions to these defined contribution schemes,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of any retirement benefits of its employees. As the
assets of these retirement benefit plans are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the PRC government,
there will never a situation for the existence of any
forfeited contributions which could be offset the
Group’s contributions under these defined contribution
schemes.
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Five highest paid individuals TEEEHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the FRNAEEREZESTMALEIE
highest in the Group for the year included one (2020: —H(ZEZTF: —R)ES-
one) director whose emoluments are reflected in the HM & RHEANA R TP R
analysis shown in. The emoluments to the o FRNBTEEZ (ZEFF
remaining four (2020: four) individuals during the year m&) ALBEMIT -

are as follows:

Wages, salaries and bonuses

Discretionary bonuses

Share-based payment
expenses

Employer’s contribution to a

T%  HemEs 2,412 3,019
BIETEAL 696 1,598
RiEZ &R

329 —

B EFRIREFIE S

retirement benefit scheme EH R 177 13
Other social security H R TR
contributions 914 594
4,528 5,224
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BHAMENFLATEHE :

HK$1,000,000 —

HK$ 1,500,000

1,000,000 BLE
1,500,000 /% 7T 4 4
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Br T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

13 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

13 BE WS KR

Finance income: RE Uz
— Interest income on bank — RITF TN B
deposits Wz 3,744 1,660
Finance costs: BEKA :
— Interest expenses — FMEEH (133,423) (126,394)
Less: Amounts capitalised o BREE
as construction in TEIRE
progress (i) B2 H () 28,799 21,515
(104,624) (104,879)
(100,880) (103,219)

()  The capitalisation rate used to determine the
amount of the interests incurred eligible for
capitalisation in 2021 was 4.27% (2020: 4.46%)

per annum.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R CE - —FF A=+ —HIFFE

14 SUBSIDIARIES 14 ¥ F
The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December NFRR B —F+A=+—
2021: BREEFRARNE :

Winstar Venture Limited British Virgin Islands US$200 US$200 100% 100% - - Investment holding,

ordinary ordinary Brish Virgin Islands
shares shares

RERNES LRk LR vl

20055t 200%7T ABRNES

Binhai Investment Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 100% 100% - - Investment holding,

Hong Kong Company ordinary ordinary Hong Kong
Limited shares shares

BERATBERAA & LRk LR REER FE
2ET 28T

Binhai Investment (Tianjin) PRC  USD235 USD235 100% 100% - - Investment holding,

Company Limited million million PRC

(“Binhai Tianjin")

BERERZERAA E 235,000,000 235,000,000 RERR - R
(N&BxE]) e N

Zibo Jin Bin Gas PRC HKS HKS 100% 100% - - Construction and gas

Company Limited 25,000,000 25,000,000 pipeling installation

service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

EERERAARAT hE 25000000 25,000,000 TEEIRAREEE

BT BT ZERBREERAR

HE ®
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

| BE-F— g+ A= —AUEE

Tianjin TEDA Binhai PRC  USD185 USD250 100% 100% - Construction and gas
Clean Energy Group million million pipeling installation
Company (formerly service and sales of
known as “Tianjin Binda piped natural gas, PRC
(as Enterprise
Company Limited”)

(“Tianjin Clean Energy’)

REFERBRRNR wE 185,000,000 250,000,000 IREIRAARER
SEERAA e e ZERBREERAR
(MBRZEEMAER HE A
BRAR)(R2EZ
7))

Binzhou TEDA Gas PRC RMB RMB 100% 100% —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 22,500,000 22,500,000 pipeline installation

service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

BNRERRARLA Gl AEE ARE TEEIRAREEE

22,500,000 22,500,000 RERBREBRNR
HE -

Zhaoyuan TEDA Gas PRC - RMB 100% 100% - Construction and gas

Company Limited 35,000,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

REREMAARAA ki - ARH IEBEIRARREE

35,000,000 RERBREERRA
HE o

Zhaoyuan Binhai Gas PRC HKS HKS 100% 100% - Construction and gas
Company Limited 31,160,000 31,160,000 pipeling installation
(“Zhaoyuan BH") service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

RRESMARRAR HE 31,160,000 81,160,000 IBREIRARRER
(IRzEE]) o BT ZERBREERAT

HE w
254 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F1_A=+—HiItFE

Deging Binhai Ges PRC HK$ HKS 90% 90% 10% 10%  Construction and gas
Company Limited 20,000,000 20,000,000 pipeling installation
(Deqging BH") service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

EERENRERAT ME 20,000,000 20,000,000 TREIRRARER
(IegEs]) iy BT RERBREBRAR

HE

Zhuozhou Binhai Gas PRC RMB RMB 85% 85% 15% 15%  Construction and gas
Company Limited 100,000,000 100,000,000 pipeline installation
(“Zhuozhou BH') service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

FNBEMRERAT ik N ARE IBHIRARREE
(TFMEE]) 100,000,000 100,000,000 ZERBREERRA

HE

Nanjing Binhai Gas PRC Us$ US$ 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 1,260,000 1,260,000 pipeline installation
(“Lishui BH') service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BREERABRAR H 1,260,000 1,260,000 IEBEIRARREE
(NEKEs)) e e RERBREERLA

HE w

Yizheng TEDA Gas PRC Us$ US$ 100% 100% - - Construction and gas

Company Limited 1,324,406 1,324,406 pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

BTZERTERLA HE 1,324,406 1,324,406 IBEIRARRER

ey e RERBREBRAR
HE w

Annual Report 2021 —&ZF — —F 5
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-F-—Ff A=+ —AILFE

Qinhuangdao TEDA Gas PRC Us$ US$ 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 1,210,000 1,210,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

ESEFENRARAR ME 1,210000 1,210,000 TREIRRARER

ey e RERBREBRAR
HE

Qingdao TEDA Gas PRC US$ US$ 80% 80% 20% 20%  Construction and gas
Company Limited ( 1,349,000 1,349,000 pipeline installation
Formerly known as service and sales of
“Qingdao Jiaonan Wah piped natural gas, PRC
Sang Gas Company
Limited")

EERERRERAA HE 1,349,000 1,349,000 IBBIRKAREE
(RRIERBHEL E e RERBREERAA
REERRA) HE PE

Sanhe TEDA Gas PRC RvB RMB 90% 90% 10% 10%  Construction and gas
Company Limited 7,602,100 7,602,100 pipeling installation

service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

SRERRARAT el ARH AE® TEEIRARREE

7,602,100 7,602,100 RERBREBRRR
HE w

Changle TEDA Gas PRC US$ US$ 100% 100% - — Construction and gas

Company Limited 1,393,400 1,393,400 pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

EEFENRERAR Gl 1,393,400 1,393,400 IERIRARRER

%7 e TRRBREERAR
HE ®

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F1_A=+—HiItFE

Dezhou Binhai Gas PRC RVB RMB 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 10,000,000 10,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

EHESRRERAA e ARH ARE TREIRRARER
10,000,000 10,000,000 ZERBREERAR

HE @

Qingdao Jiaozhou Binhai PRC RMB RMB 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Gas Company Limited 14,000,000 14,000,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

EERMERRE ik N ARH IRBEIRARREE
BERAR 14,000,000 14,000,000 RERBREERLR
HE A

Jingjiang Wah Sang Gas PRC Us$ US$ 99% 99% 1% 1%  Construction and gas
Company Limited 302,290 2,000,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BIELRARRAT RE 30220 2,000,000 IEEIRARREE
e e RERBREBRAR

HE

Funing TEDA Gas PRC HK$ HK$ 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 7,000,000 7,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BERERRARLA ME 7,000,000 7,000,000 TEEIRARREE
BT BT RERBREBRRR

HE @
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-F-—Ff A=+ —AILFE

Yishui Binhai Gas PRC HK$ HKS 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 12,600,000 12,600,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

TKEEREERAT ME 12,600,000 12,600,000 TREIRRARER
iy BT ZERBREERAR

HE

Rizhao Binhai Gas PRC HKS HKS 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 12,600,000 12,600,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

RRESMAERAT ME 12,600,000 12,600,000 IRBIRKARES
& o ZERBREERRA

HE 9

Haiyan Tian Tai Gas PRC HKS HKS 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 25,000,000 25,000,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BEXFRRERAR HE 25000000 25,000,000 IEBEIRARREE
A B RERBREERAA

HE ®

Beijing Airport Wah Sang PRC HK$ HK$ 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Gas Company Limited 12,000,000 12,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

FRERELIRR FE 12,000,000 12,000,000 IBEIRARRER
ARAR BT BT ZERBREERAR
HE w

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F1_A=+—HiItFE

Haiyang Wah Sang Gas PRC HK$ HKS 100% 100% - - Construction and gas

Company Limited 1,785,000 11,900,000 pipeling installation

service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BBELMTARLA ME 1,785,000 11,900,000 TREIRRARER

iy BT RERBREBRAR

HE

Tianjin Binhai Xinda Real PRC - US$ 100% 100% - —  Real estate investment,

Estate Company 20,000,000 PRC

Limited

REREERDE i - 20,000,000 RHERE -
ARAR e

Yizheng Jin Bin Gas PRC Us$ US$ 100% 100% - - Construction and gas

Company Limited 1,463,000 1,463,000 pipeline installation

service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BERERRARAR B 1463000 1,463,000 IEEIRARREE

e e RERBREERIA

HE ®

Tangshan Binhai Gas PRC RvB RMB 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas

Company Limited 19,810,000 19,810,000 pipeling installation

service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BIESHRERAT Gk ARH AE® TEEIRARREE

19,810,000 19,810,000 ZERBREERAR

HE w
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-F-—Ff A=+ —AILFE

Tianjin HuaTai Xinda Gas PRC RVB RMB 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 5,000,000 5,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

REZEREEMT e ARE ARE TEEIRAREEE
BRAG 5,000,000 5,000,000 ZERBREERAR
HE

Tangshan TEDA Gas PRC RMB RMB 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 37,869,400 37,869,400 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

BURERRERAT ik N ARH IRBEIRARREE
37,869,400 37,869,400 RERBREERLR

HE A

Jizhou Binhai Gas PRC HKS HKS 98% 98% 2% 2%  Construction and gas
Company Limited 10,500,000 10,500,000 pipeline installation
(“Jizhou BH") service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

ENEBRAARAR HE 10,500,000 10,500,000 IEBEIRARREE
(r#nzsl) A B RERBREBRAR
HE

Anxin TEDA Gas PRC RvB RMB 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 5,000,000 5,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

THRENRAARAR el ARE AE® TEEIRARREE
5,000,000 5,000,000 ZERBREERAR

HE w

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F1_A=+—HiItFE

Qingyuan Binhai Gas PRC HK$ HKS 99.82% 99.82% 0.18% 0.18%  Construction and gas
Company Limited 10,000,000 10,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

EREENRERAT ME 10,000,000 10,000,000 TREIRRARER
iy BT RERBREBRAR

HE

Liuyang Binhai Gas PRC RMB RMB 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 15,000,000 15,000,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

AGEERAARAT ik N ARH IREIRAARER
15,000,000 15,000,000 RERBREERLR

HE

Fengxian Binhai Gas PRC HK$ HKS 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 14,000,000 14,000,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of

piped natural gas, PRC

LERRNABRRAR HE 14,000,000 14,000,000 IEBEIRARREE
AT B RERBREERAA

HE ®

Gaoan TEDA Gas PRC HK$ HK$ 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 50,000,000 50,000,000 pipeling installation
(‘Gaoan TEDA GAS") service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC

SRRERRERAT #E 50,000,000 50,000,000 IBEIRARRER
(BzFEns) BT BT RERBREERRA
HE w

Annual Report 2021 —&ZF — —F 5

261



262

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-F-—Ff A=+ —AILFE

Tianjin Taigang Gas PRC RMB RMB
Company Limited 13,000,000 13,000,000
RERBMAARAT RE  ARE ARE
13,000,000 13,000,000
Tianjin BinMing Gas PRC RMB RMB
Company Limited 3,000,000 10,000,000
REEARRARAA i N:S ARH
3,000,000 10,000,000
Tianjin BinNing Gas PRC RMB RMB
Company Limited 3,000,000 10,000,000
REEEMRARAT el AEH ARH
3,000,000 10,000,000
Tianjin Tairan Technology PRC - RMB
Company Limited 63,230,000
REFIRHBRAT G - NG
63,230,000

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @

100%

100% - - Construction and gas
pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
IBBIRRARE
BRERBREEX
REHE - T
80% 80% 20% 20%  Construction and gas
pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
TREIRARRE
BRERBREER
ARHE - T
100% 100% - - Construction and gas
pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
IBBIRRARE
BRERBREEX
REHE - T
100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
TRIEIRARRE
BRERBREER
RRHE - TE



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Hainan Teda New Energy PRC - RMB 100% 100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited 10,000,000 pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC
BRRERNRERAT e - ARE TEEIRAREEE
10,000,000 ZERBREEXAR
HE
Tianjin Tairan New Energy PRC - US$ 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Technology Company 10,000,000 pipeline installation
Limited service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC
RERIS SRR ME - 10,000,000 IBBIRKARER
BRAR e ZERBREERRR
HE A
Nanjing Lvyuan Gas PRC RMB RMB 100% 100% - —  Construction and gas
Company Limited 6,600,000 6,600,000 pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas, PRC
BRERRAARAR e ARE AR IEBEIRARREE
6,600,000 6,600,000 RERBREBRLR
HE 9
Tianjin Taine Heating PRC RMB RMB 51% 51% 49% 49% Heating supply
Company Limited 71,000,000 100,000,000 services, PRC
(‘Taine Heating’)
RERRBNERLA ik AEH AR® B AR - o
([&A27]) 71,000,000 100,000,000
As at 31 December 2021, the Directors considered RZFEZ_—F+=—A=+—H " &
that none of the subsidiaries with non-controlling RSB KNI AR AR SR 25 9 B
shareholders are material to the Group. BAR] -

Annual Report 2021 —&ZF — —F 5
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E | } BE-—F-—Ft=A=t—AUFE

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 15 REREARNKRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement REHIBRRAEKRFERN SN

N

_|

of financial position are set out below:

Investment in joint ventures NELDPENIRE 26,925 25,794
Investment in an associate P—EEE N FR

K& 58,721 48,996

85,646 74,790

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement REHBRRANBRNSENT -

of profit or loss are as follows:

Share of profits/(losses) of joint  fE(E& & DEFE

ventures (E18) 355 (73)
Share of profits of an associate  FE{5 & A 7] 7)) 8,141 7,274
8,496 7,201

264 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Interests in an associate and joint ventures

Set out below are the associate and joint ventures of
the Group as at 31 December 2021. The proportion
of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of
voting rights held.

REBERRAREELXNES

W_ZE-_—F+-A=+—H" K
SEMNBEQRMEERENT -
FT A #ERE s R L () B 45 3 RORIE R
EEBIARR o

Sinopec Binhal Investment
(Tianjin) Natural Gas

Utilization Co., Ltd. 40,000 50% 50%  Joint venture 208 (189) 15,379 14,58
hRlER (R2) RARAR

BRAA) aElLE
Tianjin Airport Economic Area

Gas Co., Ltd. (‘Tianjin

Airport Gas') 30,000 40% 40%  Joint venture 147 116 11,546 11,209
REEERRERAA (K2

ZERR) aELE
Qinhuangdao Taixing Gas Co.,

Ltd. 30,000 45% 45% Associate 8,14 7,014 58,721 48,996
ZEETRARRRARLA BELT

8,496 7,201 85,646 4790

()  The Group and a joint venturer has joint control
over Tianjin Airport Gas in accordance with the
articles of incorporation of the joint venture.

() AKBERAECEREAED
XN RRERHREEBMR
A LRSI
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E! & ;"5»

16 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

16 FISHEH

Current income tax BUHAFTIS 7 94,381 67,627

Deferred income tax (credit)/ RIEFTER (8E)
charge g ( (9,117) 10,697
85,264 78,324

BAETERATFHEIZEANEHEE
BAENHREAENATE ZED
RN ¢

Reconciliation between profit before income tax and
the aggregate tax at the rates applicable to profits in
the respective entities concerned is set out below:

266

Binhai Investment Company Limited

Profit before income tax B P45 35t BT A 495,289 439,183
Tax calculated at the statutory A FE TSR

corporate income tax rate of K 25% 5T

25% 123,822 109,796
Tax effect of preferential tax ETHB AR WS

rates on income of certain REBHENHBE

subsidiaries & (19,338) (27,648)
Tax effect of additional income M B A FIHIHEEE A

tax deduction granted RSN ET S B HIBR

to subsidiaries for their LB E

research and development

expenditures (9,984) (7,758)
Tax effect of share of results of  JE(EEFZ A TINE &

associate and joint ventures EMNBOBBZE (2,124) (1,801)
Tax effect of expenses not NATH0% & A AR 75

deductible for the tax purpose £ 13,228 11,386

BEREAR AT



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Tax effect of income not taxable 78R Ei U z5 BT 7%

for the tax purpose o

Tax effect of deductible AR AN
temporary difference not EENBBTE
recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not RIERIRIEE 1B/
recognised MG E

Utilisation of tax losses and i AR AR R
deductible temporary THIAES 18 K& AT K40
differences previously =R
unrecognised

Recognition of previously R R ARERA A
unrecognised deductible tax WAEER
losses

Recognition of previously RERI AR ]
unrecognised deductible NG R E5E

temporary differences
Deferred income tax liabilities B AT ARDHED

on undistributed profits of A EERLEFTISH
PRC subsidiaries afE
Income tax expenses Fr5H 2

(6,785) (26,212)
564 7,660
537 4,514

(12,849) (2,094)

(11,268) —

(2,707) (200)

12,168 10,681

85,264 78,324

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7)
Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on
28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

N—ZE-NF=A=-+—B &
BUEERB S —HEBE (&
D) (B75) BHER ([EXR]) -
SIAMARGFIGHE - ZERNZ
E-NF=ZAZF+N\BEEEXAE
R URBATIERR - RIBEM
BHFERE  FEREERERS
2,000,000 7 7T ¥ 8 # 2 8.25% &Y
FEEH - M 2,000,000% 7T
R FE 512 16.5% B FL R 515 - T~
FEBRBIEMABIF SRR
RS 4 B 12 16.5% BI S8 — B R 51
i o

Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4

267



268

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
ECE =1 —HIFE

No Hong Kong profit tax has been provided as the
Group does not have any estimated assessable profit
as derived in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau
of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Corporate Income Tax”, New
and High Technical Enterprise was subject to income
tax at a preferential tax rate of 15%. The following two
subsidiaries are recognised as New and High Technical
Enterprises in accordance with the applicable Law of
Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT Law”) of the People’s
Republic of China and hence eligible to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for the respective years:

()  Tianjin Clean Energy was recognised as a New
and High Technical Enterprises on 28 November
2019 for 3 years and is subject to the preferential
tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021.

(i) Zhuozhou BH was recognised as a New and High
Technical Enterprises on 2 December 2019 for 3
years and is subject to the preferential tax rate of
15% from 2019 to 2021.

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject
to income tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 25%).

The Company was established in Bermuda, which is a
tax free country.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @

HRAEBREBE T —F K=
ToEFTA=+—HLEFEL
BAMNEERBEBNEF - Q&
VEL B AR TIRME -

BRI BEBERBRBFRBDEAR D
EMBEHETEEBRROAEM)
TR B E AL 16% B ERE
BFTSH o LA T/ {E M B2 RR
BERTEARKMBEEEMREHR
AT RRAERE]D BERERS
i - RitAERNERE
B2 15% BB R AT EH -
BT

) MZT-AF+—-A=+N
B REBRERERERD
MBRMEEIF  RZF—1
FE_T - —FHRRIEHH
BEREGRTER

iy RZE—NLF+ZA=H X
NOB G B RTE R = i
X3F R-FT-NFE-F
T FARISNMERBE
BMPRISTH -

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H1t
FE - EMRAPBKZEHERF
BE26% (ZZE T F : 25%) H)
EEMEBMNAEE o

ARRBNBRERL > MZBERR
BB e
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

17 EARNINGS PER SHARE 17 BRWEH
() Basic earnings per share (i) BREARWKZE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing BRERKE DIZARRHEE
the profit attributable to owners of the Company ABEFERAFANE BITE
by the weighted-average number of ordinary BRI REGHE -

shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners KA F#HEAB AJE(L

of the Company (HK$'000)  Fi8 (F&7T) 399,659 354,904
Weighted-average number SEEREARWZ
of ordinary shares for B AR AN AE T
basic earnings per share HIRE (FAR)
(thousand) 1,352,025 1,222,054
Basic earnings per share FRERK
(HK$ cents) CENlY) 29.6 29.0
(ii) Diluted earnings per share (i) ERFHERE
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures ERWENSAERNEES
used in the determination of basic earnings per RERKZHESEE - A5t RN
share to take into account the weighted average BREFTEMEBLE LT BIRER
number of additional ordinary shares that would BEBRT - MARITEREEIN
have been outstanding assuming the conversion TRAR e INRE T RRER -

of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Profit attributable to owners of XA FES AFE(L

the Company (HK$’000) wm A (FET) 399,659 354,904
Weighted-average number st ESRHEBIZE

of ordinary shares for B AR NAE T

diluted earnings per HIRE (FR)

share (thousand) 1,355,677 1,222,054

Diluted earnings per share (SR
(HK$ cents) (AL ) 29.5 29.0
Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
. BR TS A= HUFE

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

18 TBE - MENRKRE

At 1 January 2020 RZ2-%%-A-A

Cost s 3,803,649 259,265 223,920 61,812 783,078 5,152,604
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (502,157) (58,719) (59,497) (38,218) - (658,591)
Accumulated impairment 2ithE (51,547) (24,069) (50,901) (1,097) (48,627 (176,241)
Net book amount EOFE 3,269,945 176,477 113,522 22,497 735,351 4,317,792
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZE-F-EF1-A

Z+-BLEE
1 January 2020 “5-%ZF-f-H 3,269,945 176,477 113,522 22,497 735,351 4,317,792
Additions AE 9 5] 4,618 9,615 778,594 792,929
Transfer E 411,200 19,696 25,271 2,837 (459,004) -
Disposals it (1,126) (2,089) (2,551) (179 - (6,545)
Depreciation charges RERX (130,767) (8,651) (9,800) (6,193) - (155,411)
Impairment losses REEE (8.484) - (1,214 - (108) (9,803)
Currency tranglation differences ~ EHHEEE 207,550 13,315 7,832 1,585 57,591 307,873
31 December 2020 “ZEE+ZR=T-H 3,768,327 198,841 137,678 29,562 1,112,427 5,246,835
At 31 December 2020 R-B-%F
tZR=t-A
Cost FiA 4501177 294,013 262,935 76,208 1,165,984 6,300,317
Accumulated depreciation 2HAE (670,236) (69,449) (70,078) (44,838) - (854,601)
Accumulated impairment 2itEE (62,614) (25,723) (65,179) (1,808) (53,557) (198,881)
Net book amount BEEE 3,768,327 198,841 137,678 29,562 1,112,427 5,246,835
270 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F1_A=+—HiItFE

Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ-F--F+-§

ST-ALEE
1 January 2021 “5--%#-f-H 3,768,327 198,841 137,678 29,562 1,112,427 5,246,835
Additions AE 213 8 1,476 10,118 655,211 667,086
Transfer 1 370,883 50,356 11,724 709 (433,672 -
Disposels e (486) - (161) (@70 - (1,117)
Depreciation charges RERX (142,339) (11,29) (9,964) (9,152) - (172,751)
Impairment losses HEER - - - - (9,754) (9,754)
Currency tranglation differences ~ EHHEEE 114,332 7,002 4,064 857 36,547 162,892
31 December 2021 “E--E+-f=1-H 4,110,990 245,001 144817 31,624 1,360,759 5,893,191
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-F

tZA=1-A
Cost A 5,011,150 354,222 284,143 87,931 1,425,319 7,162,765
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (834,250) (82,706) (82,693) (54,159) - (1,053,808)
Accumulated impairment ZHHE 65,910) (26,51) (56,633) (2,148) (64,560) (215,766)
Net book amount EO%E 4,110,990 245,001 144817 31,624 1,360,759 5,893,191
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

(i)

(i

(i)

Depreciation expenses of HK$119,436,000 (2020:
HK$119,873,000) and HK$53,315,000 (2020:
HK$35,538,000) have been charged to “Cost of
sales and services” and “Administrative expenses”
respectively.

The Group is in the process of applying for the
ownership title certificates of certain buildings
and constructions which are with net carrying
amounts of approximately HK$132,243,000 as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$135,621,000).
The Directors believe that the ownership title
certificates will be obtained in due course without
any significant additional costs.

The Group reviewed the recoverable amounts of
its property, plant and equipment to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss or have a
potential reversal of impairment allowance
previously made. The property, plant and
equipment directly held by the loss-making
subsidiaries of the Company, with net carrying
amount of HK$98,253,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$99,505,000), were identified for
impairment loss assessment.

— Assessment using value-in-use method

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment except a property under
construction is determined based on the
value-in-use calculations which involve the
use of discounted cash flow method and
is assessed at the cash generating units
(“CGUSs”") level. Management regards each
subsidiary as an individual CGU.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

The key assumptions for the calculation
included the growth rates of business
volume, gross margin and the pre-tax
discount rate. The Group expected no
revenue will be derived from CGUs with no
business operations and used a growth
rate of business volume ranging from 2%
to 10% (2020: 5% to 16%) for those CGUs
with normal business operations which are
consistent with the historical performance of
the respective CGUs.

For the CGUs under assessment, the
assumed gross margin for sales of piped
natural gas is 2% — 32% (2020: 3% —
20%) and the assumed gross margin for
construction and gas pipeline installation
service is 43% to 56% (2020: 43% to
60%). The Group used a pre-tax discount
rates ranging from 12.00% to 15.59%
(2020: 11.69% to 14.63%) to discount the
estimated future cash flows from the relevant
CGUs. The Group performed sensitivity
analysis around the above key assumptions
without material variances identified. Based
on the management’s assessment on the
impairment of property, plant and equipment,
no impairment has been recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020:HK$9,803,000).

AEMEEREBERE
BEMERE . ERX
K Br BRI IR Ko K
SEEHEXKBEED
BeELEEUBITEE
AN MREBELER
XBEENRESELE
BAAEAN F2%=E
10%(ZT_FF 5%
£16%) NEBEL R
X ZHEEBReES
BB R -

HREXFTHNRSE
EEBEMN - BEMEBEX
ARBEENENX AR
2% ERN2%( = FE = F
F 3% E20%) 0 &
BROTEBIRRXAR
BEELERBHERNE

BA3%E56%( —F —
T F 43%E60%) °
REBFERANTF12.00%
£1559%( = F = &
% 1 11.69% & 14.63%)
BIBRTLATITIR X - DAY
RABABRSEEEND
HEtAKRBEHRE - K
SEEHLAFERR
EITHEES B
BHENEEAZR R
BEBREHTHE KW
B & E R R AR

BEez-_ZT-_—49+=-A
—t+—RLFEEDHE
REBEEE(ZZE=F
4 1 9,803,000/87T) °
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Notes to the consolidated financial

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
ECE =1 —HIFE

Assessment using residual value method

The management reviewed the carrying
amount of a property under construction
with reference to a valuation carried out on
31 December 2021, with the assistance from
external valuer. The residual value method
used in valuing properties under development
by establishing the market value on the
premise that the properties will be developed
and completed in accordance with its latest
development plan. The residual values of
the properties can be expressed as the
market value deducts the estimated costs
to complete and developers’ profit to reflect
the total value of the partially completed
development. The key assumptions included
the estimated selling price, estimated
costs to completion and selling expenses.
Based on the results of the impairment
assessments, a further provision for
impairment of HK$9,754,000 for impairment
on the property under construction with
total costs of HK$114,215,000 (2020:
HK$110,904,000) has been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021
and the accumulated impairment losses as
of that date amounted to HK$46,016,000
(2020: HK$35,069,000).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

(v) Movements of the impairment allowance of (iv) TENE - BB RERBEHRER
property, plant and equipment are set out below: HEBWT -

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 198,881 176,241
Impairment loss recognised G A HERHYREE

in the year igis! 9,754 9,803
Currency translation EHER

differences 7,131 12,837
At 31 December Rn+—A=+—H 215,766 198,881
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Br T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

19 LEASES 19 #HE

() Amounts recognised in the statement of (i)
financial position

The statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

REsBRARABRNE
|

BHMBAORNRER NS
B EAARE -

Right-of-use assets CREEE
— Land use rights — b {E A AE 178,880 164,220
— Leased buildings — HEMEF 17,704 15,238
196,584 179,458
Lease liabilities HEAaE
— Current — RE 10,842 8,478
— Non-current — ERH 10,020 8,288
20,862 16,766

The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid
lease payments for land located in the PRC which
are with lease terms from 30 to 50 years.

The Group also leases various offices and
warehouses and the related rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 5 years
without extension options.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E o E =1 —HIFE

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Additions to land use rights and leased buildings
during the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to HK$13,982,000 and HK$13,905,000
(2020: HK$2,411,000 and HK$5,213,000)
respectively. No disposals of land use rights
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$901,000).

Write off of leased buildings and lease liabilities
due to extended rent-free period amounted to
HK$1,450,000 and HK$1,450,000 respectively
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

The Group is in the process of applying for the
ownership title certificates of certain land use
rights with carrying amounts of HK$39,194,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$46,996,000).
The Directors believe that the ownership title
certificates will be obtained in due course without
any significant costs.

MEGRIREREERR - X
BE BB RIER R -
B 19 0 B B (] 2255 - I
HEAFREEEEMERE
mERIN - HEBENSRER
KR -

Hz_Z2-_—F+ = A
=+—HLEFE  THEA
BMBEEEREMHAES A
13,982,000/ 7L 13,905,000
BL(ZEZZFF: 2,411,000
B ITH1 5,213,000/ 7T) - BE
—E—F+ZA=+—H1t
FEARETHWERAE(ZT
—=4: 901,000/ 7T)

REBEE-ZET=-—F+=H
“T+—HLEFE BERR
HEmMMEREEFREE
& & 9 511,450,0007% 7T &
1,450,000 L (Z T = &
F:8|)o

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
H A&EEEHREEENA
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEr_—F

(i)

Binhai Investment Company Limited

——FtZA=F—HIFE

Amounts recognised in the statement of

profit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

REHBEERABINEHE

ABHBERRBR T 2BEER
SRR

Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets

— Land use rights

— Leased buildings

Interest expense (included in
finance costs)

Expense relating to short-
term leases (included in
cost of sales and services
and administrative
expenses)

ERREENTE
R

T AR

HEMET

MEEM GEAR
BRA)

HEHEEFHN
BR GIABHER
PR PR AR B ATIR
FIs)

4,332 3,983
10,589 10,048
14,921 14,031

758 1,070

9,334 5,492

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was
HK$19,378,000 (2020: HK$16,688,000).

BEREAR AT

RZZE-—F HEMNERS
TR /19,378,000 7T (=&
—Z4F 16,688,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R CE - —FF A=+ —HIFFE

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20 REWHE

At 1 January n—HA—H 7,120 6,896
Depreciation charge for the year FRITER X (255) (227)
Currency translation differences [E X Z=%3 208 451
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 7,073 7,120
The carrying values of the investment properties KREMERN L AEBEEAREEME

approximated their fair values.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

= oo

HIEMENEEAERN SRR
T

Rental income HEW= 784 748
Direct operating expenses from & gEATHEWEH

property that generated rental  ¥ZENBEZELLHAXT

income (255) (227)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E | } B E—T—— = A= — AR

21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 B EE

At 1 January 2020 R-ZBE-EHF

—HA—H
Cost DN 42,812 12,887 3,604 59,303
Accumulated amortisation ~ Z &t (6,525) - (1,360) (7,885)
Net book amount RMERE 36,287 12,887 2,244 51,418

Year ended 31 December #HE-ZZE_-EHF

2020 +=H=+—H
LHEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 36,287 12,887 2,244 51,418
Additions NE — — 5,063 5,063
Impairment losses NIREREES — (13,302) — (13,302)
Amortisation charge 5ol (1,809) — (1,459) (3,268)
Currency translation fE 5 =%
differences 2,297 415 431 3,148
Closing net book amount FREE®ESE 36,775 — 6,279 43,054
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2F
+ZHB=+—H
Cost DR 45,794 13,745 9,556 69,095
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZEH#EsE (9,019) - (3,277) (12,296)
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE - (13,745) - (13,745)
Net book amount REFE 36,775 — 6,279 43,054
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December ®HBZ_-_ZT—-—%

2021 +=B=+—H
LEE
Opening net book amount FYREEFE 36,775 - 6,279 43,054
Additions NE - - 6,033 6,033
Amortisation charge 5ok (1,425) - (1,436) (2,861)
Currency translation 5 =%
differences 1,052 - 329 1,381
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 36,402 - 11,205 47,607
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—-F%
+t=A=+-H
Cost A R 47,221 14,155 16,181 77,557
Accumulated amortisation B (10,819) - (4,976) (15,795)
Accumulated impairment 2iHRE = (14,155) - (14,155)
Net book amount FEFE 36,402 - 11,205 47,607
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

Notes:

(i) The goodwill is arisen from the Group’s acquisition of
100% equity interest in Nanjing Lvyuan Gas Company
Limited (“Najing Lvyuan”) in March 2019. The acquisition
is strategic for the Group to expand its business
operations in the Nanjing area and management
considers Nanjing Lvyuan is a separate cash generating
unit (the “Nanjing Lvyuan CGU”) and review its business
performance on a regular basis.

(i) Impairment tests for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance and
monitors the goodwill on individual CGU basis.

The impairment charge on goodwill of HK$13,302,000
as recognised in 2020 is due to the slowdown of
the Nanjing Lvyuan CGU’s business expansion and
the bankruptcy or shutdown of some of its potential
customers caused by the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic (collectively the “Business Slowdown”).
The Group has also reassessed the depreciation
and amortisation policies of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
of Nanjing Lvyuan and concluded that estimated
useful lives of these assets will not be affected by the
Business Slowdown and none of these assets (other
than goodwill) are considered as impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

22 PREPAYMENTS 22 FEFFIE

Prepayments for natural gas HKIERARHIER K
purchases 15 379,740 251,492
Advance payment relating to a Bt EAEEE 8
construction project RATT R - 118,835
Prepayments for construction — fE3218 B F&{ KIB
projects 119,445 59,691
Prepayments for others HE MBS RIE 30,887 27,522
530,072 457,540
Less: Provision for impairment  J& : JFi{E & (81,240) (78,884)
448,832 378,656
Representing: Heh:
— Non-current portion — EmEE D 29,470 138,702
— Current portion — REE S 419,362 239,954
448,832 378,656
The non-current portion of prepayments represent AR RIEMNIERB B D IEASEE R
prepayments for the construction of the gas pipeline REMERTEMNTENIE -

network of the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bm T - A AL
23 EEFTBH

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a) EEFEHEE

(a) Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets: IRIEFTEFEE :

— to be recovered within — B 12@ AR
12 months U [ 22,435 10,899

— to be recovered after — B 121{8 B 14
more than 12 months 1z =] 24,115 13,325
46,550 24,224

284 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

The movement on deferred income tax assets FRELEMESREENEE N
during the year is set out below: ™

At 1 January 2020 RZZ-%F
—A-H 8,064 14,520 - - 22,584
(Charged)/credited to profitor - (3t A) /&3
l0ss 83 (04) (8,992) 9,070 - (16)
Currency translation EHpEEE
differences 0686 668 302 - 1,656
At 31 December 2020 .
TZA
=t+-H 8,656 6,196 9,372 - 24,224
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—%&
—A-H 8,656 6,196 9,372 - 24,224
Credited/(charged) to profit or - &2,/ (5t 1)
loss B 1,659 9,136 (1,678) 12,168 21,285
Currency translation AHAEER
differences 282 322 255 182 1,041
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
T2A
=t+-H 10,597 15,654 7,949 12,350 46,550
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

(i)

(i

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
for tax losses carry forwards to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$38,300,000 (2020:
HK$65,904,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to HK$153,200,000 (2020:
HK$263,615,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams of the respective
group entities.

The amount of unrecognised tax loss will
expire in the following years:

RE B S ER R A EE
MIEZERSHEE R
SEEBEMRBENZR
B REB B ARIRERM
wmF IR SR o
AEBEREBEER
ERBARKMNBE RO
Al FER M - R ES I8
153,200,000/8 7T (=&
— T4 : 263,615,000/
TL) MRELEMSHE
/£ 38,300,000/ 7T ( =
T =~ T F 165,904,000
BIT) °

AEARBBRSER
KA FE &

2021 —E-—%F
2022 T
2023 —Eo=F
2024 ZEAF
2025 —E-RF
2026 —ZE R

- 61,483

9,277 27,323
61,589 80,513
63,774 76,240
16,380 18,056
2,180 —
153,200 263,615

No deferred income tax asset is recognised
in respect of deductible temporary
differences amounting to HK$242,657,000
(2020: HK$254,310,000) due to the
unpredictable of the utilisation of these
temporary difference in the future.
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

The breakdown of unrecognised deductible RERATENEREZRE
temporary differences is set out below: BT -

Loss allowance of trade JFE I BR FORVE

receivables B 61,365 78,667
Loss allowance of other H fth & W SR IE
receivables ol (B B A 251 556
Loss allowance of AT RIERE
prepayments B 81,240 78,884
Impairment losses of THE BE&
property, plant and HERERE
equipment 96,543 85,307
Others Hib 3,258 10,896
242,657 254,310
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities (b) EZFEHEE

Deferred income tax BIEFSHARE
liabilities:
— to be recovered within — BR12@AR
12 months g @] 34,700 21,702
— to be recovered after — BN 12{@ A%
more than 12 months g ] = —

34,700 21,702
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

The movement on deferred income tax liabilities
during the year is set out below:

FRNRELEREHBENEZ 0
T

At 1 January Rn—H—H

Charged to profit or loss FrABE

Currency translation EmE =R
differences

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

21,702 10,000
12,168 10,681

830 1,021
34,700 21,702

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
the dividends as declared by PRC incorporated
subsidiaries to their foreign immediate holding
companies (incorporated out of Mainland China)
relating to the profits made subsequent to 1
January 2008 are subject to withholding income
tax (“WHT”) at the rate of 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to WHT on dividends to be
distributed from the unremitted earnings of the
PRC incorporated subsidiaries as accumulated
subsequent to 1 January 2008.

In order to support the continuous development
of the Group’s businesses in the PRC, the Group
has set up a dividend policy in 2021 that the
future dividend to be distributed out of the PRC
incorporated subsidiaries’ unremitted earnings as
of 31 December 2021 will not exceed an amount
of HK$121,682,000.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

24 INVENTORIES 24 78

Pipeline and other materials for T2k T N RAARE
construction and gas pipeline BLERBHNEE N

installation service E bkt 139,489 143,973
Gases %= 4,824 2,618
144,313 146,591
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and FEXRABRRERLT AHEE R
included in the cost of sales and services amounted to FR#E KA - £ %8 % 3,578,361,000
HK$3,578,361,000 (2020: HK$2,644,890,000). B (ZZEZFF : 2,644,890,000
BT e
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

NN S Eor Ly N

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 FEUWEBRA K H it WK

Trade receivables from third JEWEE =/ F0E
parties (Note a): (Htita) :
— Construction and gas — IEBEI KA
pipeline installation REBLER
service 7 281,171 240,150
— Sales of piped natural gas — BBRAREE 88,152 31,128
— Gas passing through — RARE®IRT
service 8,787 750
378,110 272,028
Less: provision for impairment  J& : JF{EE 1B R
loss allowance (124,405) (92,860)
253,705 179,168
Trade receivables from related  JEUK BaHS 75 3008
parties (Note a): (Kizta) :
— Sales of piped natural gas ~ — EERARMEE 9,291 10,600
— Construction and gas — IEBEITRRA
pipeline installation REBLRER
service % 5,389 1,704
14,680 12,304
Less: provision for impairment  J& - J (B &5 18 B &
loss allowance (7,313) (5,954)
7,367 6,350
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

Other receivables H A e WK
— Value-added tax — AT EE(ER
recoverable 37,660 63,834
— Deposits (Note b) — RE= (#itb) 16,996 20,299
— Others — H1th 45,332 75,859
99,988 159,992
Less: provision for impairment  J& : JFi{EE B R
loss allowance (3,301) (7,987)
96,687 152,005
Total trade and other JE U B 3 Kz L Ath JIE Uk
receivables RAREE 357,759 337,523
Less: non-current portion of JB - FEUTER SR R EAh
trade and other receivables FEW R FER BN EB D
(Note d) (Htsd) (29,999) (25,142)
Current portion of trade and JE UK BR 30 K E A Uk
other receivables REREN D 327,760 312,381
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

The Group grants credit period of 90 days for
its customers of piped natural gas sales and
customers of gas passing through service,
whereas a longer credit period of 91-180 days
after the completion of relevant stage of contract
work is granted to customers of construction and
gas pipeline installation. A longer credit period
may granted on a discretionary basis to certain
selected customers with good repayment histories
or settled by bills.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the revenue recognition date is set out
below:

AEBREEBEBRARBER
FPRRARAREBRBEEFIRM
QOHMEER  HERTXKAE
A TIZERAME R 18 A [ T2 HE
IRRAREBRERBER
RHEINE1S0ENBEREE
Hi o ANEB AT BIB ME R G R
RFSAEBEERSE THE
EEFEERRMNEERS -

ERURARER B BIH B IR X
RBRE DT -

Within 90 days 90 BN

91 — 180 days 91 %180 H
181 — 365 days 1812365 H
Over 365 days B8 365 H

145,970 52,740
21,565 36,652
41,748 52,826
183,507 142,114
392,790 284,332

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and contract assets.

Note 5.1(b)] provides details about the calculation
of impairment loss allowance for trade and other
receivables.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
EoF—FT AT AUTFER

==

(b)

As at 31 December 2021, deposits primarily
comprise of performance deposits paid by the
Group for operating rights and purchase of gas of
HK$9,320,000 (2020: HK$8,674,000) and certain
pipeline construction projects of HK$5,263,000
(2020: HK$2,139,000). As at 31 December 2020,
deposits also included the deposits paid to a
financial leasing company of HK$8,200,000 which
were part of the securities for the collateralised
borrowings from that financial leasing company
and the borrowings were fully repaid in June
2021.

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of
HK$1,191,000 of Gaoan TEDA Gas are pledged

for its bank borrowings as mentioned in Note
3(b}.

The non-current portion of trade and other
receivables represent trade receivables due
from the Dabei Town local government of
HK$29,999,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$25,142,000) which is arisen from
the Dabei Town construction and gas pipeline
installation project. Due to the local government’s
funding arrangements, the Group has signed an
installment payment agreement with the local
government in September 2020. Pursuant to the
agreement, the local government will settle the
trade receivable balance by installments prior to
December 2023.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximated their fair values. As
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables were all denominated in RMB.

RN-—E-—_—F+-_F=+—
H RESETEREAEE
MEERLRBERRIND
B #11R &£ 9,320,000 /& JT
(ZZE=ZFF :8,674,000 /&
) R ETEERREE X
Y B 4R 3 & 5,263,000 7%
7T (ZZF =T 4 : 2,139,000
BIL) c RZEZFTF+=A
=+—R  RESTBEIMA
F-RHeREERARNRES
8,200,000/ 7T * fERBZ < &b
BE QR ERN—IHE
o ZEFREBR T —FX
REEBE -

RZFZ—F+ZA=+—
B &%L&EMSF1,191,000
BITHEKREREERIETT
& FHy 8 38 (1 HEE_33[) A
i) o

JREE L AR 5 B EL A B UK 9 FE T
FENER _E-_—F+_A
=+—HEKKRILEIEET
FXIH 29,999,000 T ( — =
T 125,142,000 7T)
ZHEEEXBEAILETRET
RRAREELZEIER - AR
EMBRNNESLTH  ~&
BET-_ZE-_=FNALEE
BNEZET BN EHE - R
Bazha  EHEEER_-Z
Z=F+ = AT B ER R &R
BEOH®HE -

JFEE UK B R R L i B MR SR O BR T
BEEAAEEES RN
Z—FkZZE_FF+H
=+—8 XEEERBERK
Hi U BEEmEEUAR
BEHE o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B R+ HA=+—HIFE

26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

(a) Financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include the following:

26 AR EEFEEHSE

SFABHESENERMEE

(a)

BEMUAAEETERHES
Bt AEHEZNEREER
FELLTIER

Wealth management B E M
products

- 182,029

The balance as at 31 December 2020 represented
the Group’s investment in the Fuli No. 6 Single
Fund Trust with the principal of HK$ 178,253,000
which was matured in August 2021.

(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following gains were
recognised in profit or loss:

(b)

RZEZTF+HA=+—H
WERBIEAEENEES HE
—BREEMEHNKRE (K
% %8 /178,253,000 7T )
HER-Z-_—F/\AFH -

RIEZAEINEE

RAFE - RERREREN
& NN

Realised fair value gains REMAE — F58
on wealth management FRIER AR E
products recognised in mMEBEBRANE
other gains — net ERE

Net unrealised fair value REM TG — F5E
gains on financial assets at FRERE AR
FVPL recognised in other EETEEEE
gains — net Bt ABENE

MEERRER
AAEBEFRE

(GET)

7,302 7,801
— 3,654
7,302 11,455
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

27 ZRFES

27 RESTRICTED CASH

Non-current portion: IERENEL D
Restricted bank deposits for IRITERMZRFIR
bank borrowings (Note 33(b)) 1T 425330)) 129,115 —
Restricted bank deposits for 4B Hb B9 PR 41| 8R
land restoration e 6,350 1,439
Restricted bank deposits for AR RHIRTIT
operating rights T 5,385 —
Restricted bank deposits for BEERBEBENSE
pipeline construction project HISRITER 1,991 —
142,841 1,439
Current portion: mehE sy
Restricted bank deposits for IR1TE KA S2BR HI5R
bank borrowings -2 XL, 12,239 _
Restricted bank deposits for EEERBEANXRE
pipeline construction project HIERI TR - 15,955
12,239 15,955
155,080 17,394
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
- BER_FE_—FF_A=F—HIFE

/

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28 RWERKREEEY

Cash at bank and in hand: RITREFRE :
— Denominated in RMB UARBEHAE 724,663 332,735
— Denominated in HK$ LB TTRHE 1,144 73,670
— Denominated in USD ETTFHE 16,374 1,338

742,181 407,743
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

29 R

29 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 per

EER

EE

FREECIETNE

share Ak 2,280,000 228,000 1,677,676 167,768
Fully paid: #r:
As at 1 January ®—A—H 1,352,025 135,203 1,174,349 117,435
Addition (Note a) i (fizta) - - 177,676 17,768
As at 31 December NMZ-A=1+—8” 1,352,025 135,203 1,352,025 135,203
Redeemable preference AEEE LR
shares
Redeemable preference shares B EE50.00/8 7T
of HK$50.00 each, issued MR EREER -
and fully paid BERE BTk
o 7,040 352,000 7,440 372,000
Redeemed during the year FENEE (ftb)
(Note b) (1,000) (50,000) (400) (20,000)
6,040 302,000 7,040 352,000
Total ey 437,203 487,203
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

(@)

In September 2020, Great Wall Energy HK has
acquired 29.99% equity interest in the Company
through (i) the subscription of 177,676,183 of
the Company’s newly issued ordinary shares at a
subscription price of HK$1.33 per share (resulting
in a share premium of HK$218,541,000 credited
to reserve [[Note 31)); and (i) the acquisition of
227,796,154 of the Company’s ordinary shares
as previously owned by TEDA HK at a transaction
price of HK$1.33 per share. Upon the completion
of the aforesaid shares issue and transfer, the fully
paid ordinary shares of the Company has been
increased to 1,325,025,000 shares.

The Company issued 8.6 million redeemable
preference shares on 4 May 2009 to Cavalier
Asia Limited, all of which were subsequently
transferred to the largest immediate shareholder
of the Company, TEDA HK, in August 2011. These
redeemable preference shares are:

° not entitled to dividend,

° non-voting,

° non-convertible and at zero coupon, and

° redeemable into their full nominal amount

after the fulfilment of certain redemption
conditions.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

30

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company exercised its discretion rights to redeem
from TEDA HK1,000,000 (2020: 400,000) preference
shares which amounted to HK$50,000,000 (2020:
HK$20,000,000) as the following redemption conditions
agreed on the Subscription Agreement signed on 28
May 2008 were satisfied:

o the Company has declared and paid final dividends
in respect of at least two consecutive financial
years since the Resumption Date,

e the aggregate principal amount of all redeemable
preference shares redeemed in a financial year
of the Company shall not exceed 50% of the
total amount of dividend declared and paid to
shareholders in that financial year of the Company.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 27 September 2010, the Company granted
share options (the “2010 Plan”) to the Directors and
certain employees to subscribe for a total 9,050,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the share of the
Company under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 20 August 2010, all of which are
immediately exercisable on date of grant. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the option in cash. The share options were all
lapsed as some employee resigned without exercising
their share options and the rest was all expired during
2020.

30

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
FE RZZEZNFREA=ZF+AN
HEGREBZENATERK
& ARBIITHEERBERZER

¥ B& [ & % 450,000,000 JT
(== TE 20,000,000 7T)
#1,000,000f% ( = & = T & :
400,000 %) 1B %R

s BEMBHRE ARRRIE
BMETHRFEE IR R
/H\HHJ-L/%\ ’

o ARARFHFEERL ZHAEA
BOEERESEENSEE
RRABRZIBFERRRE
& KA B 4R ER 2 50% ©

AR B B RS2 A

i ==—9@¢ﬂﬂ —ttB AR
ARBEER _T-ZTFNA-TH
?mﬂﬂﬂ@ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ%ﬂﬁé%&%?
fﬁéiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂg (T —FF5F
21) - AREEA 2£9,050,000 fx A
RAIRAFEREE0ABITHE
A - BT BN B HIRN AT
1718 - AEEWEERKMEE R
AR EEEERBBRE - i
RER D B T &5 & I R 17 2 BB X
# BERSBIRERZBRR - BT
BREDENR _Z_TFIH-
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

| BE-F— g+ A= —AUEE

300

On 13 January 2021, the Company granted 27,040,503
share options (the “2021 Scheme”) with a fair value
on the grant date of approximately HK$ 9,804,000 to
the Directors, the senior management personel, core
technical personel and key management personel of
the Company and its subsidiaries. The options are
exercisable upon certain vesting conditions and shall
be vested in proportions of 40%, 30%, 30% after the
second year anniversary, the third year anniversary
and the fourth year anniversary from the grant date
respectively. The exercise price of all options is HK$
1.32 per share. And the vesting period ends up after 7
years commencing from the grant date.

(@ Movements in the number of share option
outstanding and their related exercise prices of
the 2010 Plan are as follows:

RZZBZ—F—HA+=H "' ~RQH
MARABIREMNBARZES &
MEBABE ROUBWMATRE
1 & % ¥ 27,040,503 17 B A%
([ZZE=Z—F58]) RETEH
A EE 9,804,000/ 7T - B
T — M ERGYE TR 714 -
B & T AR E E & 840% - 30%
& 30% o Rl B T B im_#
F -ZEAFRMNBFER - 2
RiECITEEHARER1.32FT -
TRARSHERBE AR THRE
BREEEE

(@ —FT-TEHIBTEINEK
RHE LEABITEENES
LN

At 1 January n—H—H 5.6 2,800
Lapsed PN 5.6 (2,800)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H — —
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

(b) Details of share options pursuant to the 2021 (o) WE-ZZT=—FrEIMNERE
Scheme are as follows: BRARLAT -

ADirector 13 January 2021 12 January 2028 1.32 N/A 1,174,143 - 1,174,143
%52

Employees 13 January 2021 12 January 2028 1.3 NA 25866360  (2,641818) 23,224,542
€S

T0M0503 (2641818 24,398,685
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

NN S Eor Ly N

The fair value of the share option granted in the
2021 Scheme is calculated according to the

binomial option pricing model. The fair value and
the main parameters of the model are as follows:

TECFEERENEREND
BB TR = X B EER A
B EBAAABERZERHRE
E2H0T -

First Tranche 13 January 2021 12 January 2023 0.3610-0.3703

A1 kSt “EoCE

-At=R —-AtzA
Second Tranche 13 January 2021 12 January 2024 0.3570-0.3656
FZHR “E-F “EoME

-At=R —-AtzA
Third Tranche 13 January 2021 12 January 2025 0.3480-0.3554
F=HR Ik St e 2

-At+=R —-AtzR

1.32 1.32 44.94% 5.81% 0.54%
1.32 1.32 44.94% 5.81% 0.54%
1.32 1.32 44.94% 5.81% 0.54%

The expense arising from share-based payment
transaction recognised in 2021 as part of
employee benefit expense were HK$3,693,000.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bz —FfZH=F—HIFE

31 SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER
RESERVES

31

R EER A

Year ended 31 December HZE-F-Z&£+=f
2020 =t-HILEE
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-®E-F-7 {04676 (276566) 98558 8084  (6,256) (176,180)
Other comprehensive income  F R E 74 s
for the year - 98,653 - - - 98,653
Lapse of employees share 24 EBBRIE
options - - - (8,084) - (8,084)
Appropriation to statutory ~ REVEE H
reserves - - 26,008 - - 26,008
Dividends relating to 2019 —E-NFiEBRE
//fﬂz‘fsa (41,102) - - - - -
Contribution from a new 2E— HBERFE
shareholder of the Bt 290)
Compan:
Note 29(a 218,541 - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-TETZA
_+ A 082,115 (177,013 124,566 6256 (59,609)
Year ended 31 December EHZ-Z=--£+=R
2021 =+-HLEE
At 1 January 2021 WZ2-—-%-A-H 282,115 (177,913) 124,566 - (6,256)  (59,603)
Other comprehensive income ~ ERE M4 Wiz
for the year - 64,009 - - - 64,009
Grant of employees share BRTNESERE
options ‘
= - - 3660 - 3,669
Appropriation to statutory  REVAE
reserves - - 48,222 - - 48,222
Dividends relating t0 2020 ~ —ZE_FTF{AEMR S
[riote 361 [/f/f;?sj (106,810) - = - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-A
=t—H 175,305 (113,904) 172,788 3,669 (6,256) 56,297
Annual Report 2021 —ZE - —F 4 303



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B\ : BE2 T —Ff-_H=1+—HIFE

The exchange reserve arose upon translation of the X FEERE T S mER B
consolidated financial statements from the functional BEEBMEZ 2| EERESE

currency to the presentation currency.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the RFPEMEBAG - RATHAF
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are RIWFARARKETES L (B
required to transfer a certain percentage (as determined EFRAIEEEET) WEEEF
by the board of directors of each of the subsidiaries) of B(REBEFEARSFRAUNEBEE)
their profits after tax (as determined in accordance with (nB) BREEXTHRE - KHBE
the PRC generally accepted accounting principles), if EeffE%  ATERE D AKE
any, to the statutory reserves. The statutory reserves ZEBIEIIEMER - BrIE L
can be used to offset accumulated losses or to B+ ARIRE - DR BEETEH
increase capital upon approval by their respective HBIESIEDIRAR ©

board of directors. The statutory reserves are not
distributable unless the respective subsidiaries in the
PRC are dissolved.

32 RETAINED EARNINGS 32 BFEWsE

At 1 January nw—HA—H 1,232,109 895,129
Profit for the year attributable to ZNA & H AJEGE

owners of the Company A F) 399,659 354,904
Appropriation to statutory REVEERE

reserve (48,222) (26,008)

Transfer from employee share i =
reserve upon lapse of option EERMmFEEERE

share [Note 30%2] - 8,084
At 31 December wWt+—_A=+—H 1,583,546 1,232,109
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

33 f&ERK

33 BORROWINGS

Non-current IS E
Secured, BEA
— Syndicate borrowing — REIER
(Note a) (Htit a) 993,061 —
— Bank borrowings (Note b) — SRITIEFR (B1itb) 511,618 306,835
— Other borrowings — HAfER
(Notes c) (Htitce) 734,305 748,663
Total non-current borrowings IEREEREE 2,238,984 1,055,498
Current E
Secured, HiRH
— Syndicate borrowing — REER
(Note a) (Htit a) 93,214 —
— Bank borrowings (Note b) — RITBR (HaEb) 792,551 264,282
— Other borrowings (Note c) — HAbER (Hite) - 30,073
885,765 294,355
Unsecured, IR
— Bank borrowings (Note b) — RITER (HaEb) - 71,301
— Other borrowings (Note c) — HAER (Hitce) - 942,852
- 1,014,153
Total current borrowings mENEREET 885,765 1,308,508
Total borrowings B4 5E 3,124,749 2,364,006
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E=E

(a)

(b)

—FEFt - H=F—HIFE

Syndicate borrowing

As at 31 December 2021, syndicate borrowing
of approximately HK$1,086,275,000 (2020: Nil)
is guaranteed by TEDA. The borrowing bears
interests at the rate of 2.6% plus LIBOR per
interest period, (the average of which is around
2.76% in 2021). The borrowing will mature
on 11 June 2024, of which approximately
HK$93,214,000 will be repayable in 2022, and the
rest will be repayable by semiannual installments
prior to June 2024.

Bank borrowings

Details of the bank borrowings are summarised as
below:

a)

(b)

REE R
RZZTZ—F + = A
=t+t—B £#EEXRD

1,086,275,000 #7t ( —F =
TFE) BHREER - BX
RAFESEFNSHNF S
5 2.6% M1 LIBOR » R =&
T—FE TN E2.76% ° ZE
FER_Z-_mFEXA+—H
FIHf - H 493,214,000 /&
TR B —FEE H&
BOBR_E_MEXANE
FESHEE o

RITHER

TTERFHBHRLT -

Non-current bank SEMBIRITER
borrowings:
Secured (i) BRI 511,618 306,835
Current bank borrowings: MENIRITER
Secured (i) B 792,551 264,282
Unsecured EiiS Wi - 71,301
792,551 335,583
1,304,169 642,418
Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

(i)

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing of
HK$174,743,000 (2020: HK$113,452,000)
was secured by all income from the changing
coal to gas projects of Zhuozhou BH and
guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company,
Binhai Tianjin. The borrowing bears interests
at the rate calculated by over 5-year loan
prime rate (“LPR”) plus 24 basis points per
annum (the average of which is around
4.89% in 2021). Part of the borrowing of
HK$26,786,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022, and the rest will be repayable by
semiannual installments prior to January
2029.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing
of HK$36,152,000 (2020: HK$27,481,000)
was secured by all rights to the earnings on
sales of piped natural gas of Jizhou BH and
guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company,
Binhai Tianjin. The borrowing bears interests
at the fixed interest rate of 4.80% (2020:
4.80%) per annum. Part of the borrowing
of HK$3,086,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022, and the rest will be repayable by
monthly installments prior to July 2030.

AZE - —F+ =8
+—H8 BT 1El =
174,743,000 7T (= F
— =T 4 113,452,000
BT A NGB G KK
MRIEE WA W= E
KEEBEARRMNBA
BB REEER-
FERNEZAFH
LA ELPRI24 8 & %
(ZEZ—F¥HHO A
4.89%) 5T & o HHER
26,786,0007%8 7T # R =
SO _FRHEE M
BTEHDBN =T =N
F—RAIBEFHHE
B o

3

T —-F+= A
=+t—H RITEX
36,152,000 7t ( = &
— T4 127,481,000
L) BEMNEENAE
EBRARBEEWRERE
EERA K BEARR RN E
NAVEBEGRBIEER-
& A Bz B 7 A X
480%( ZF = F & :
4.80%) 51 & o *B’Vﬁ“*
3,086,000 B TR =F
T ZFEHEERE - M
TEHD R = 2_2%
+ ARIEEASHEER

/7
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing
of HK$73,430,000 (2020: HK$71,301,000)
of Zhuozhou BH was secured by all rights
to the earnings on sales of piped natural
gas of Zhuozhou BH and guaranteed by a
subsidiary of the Company, Binhai Tianjin.
The borrowing bears interests at the rate
calculated by over 1-year LPR plus 51 basis
points per annum (the average of which is
around 4.56% in 2021).The entire borrowing
of HK$73,430,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing of
HK$113,484,000 (2020: HK$121,213,000) of
Deqging BH was guaranteed by a subsidiary
of the Company, Tianjin Clean Energy.
The borrowing bears interests at the rate
calculated by over 5-year LPR plus 95 basis
per annum (the average of which is around
5.60% in 2021). Part of the borrowing of
HK$22,697,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022, and the rest will be repayable by
semiannual installments prior to December
2026.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing
of HK$122,384,000 (2020: Nil) of Zhuozhou
BH was guaranteed by a subsidiary of the
Company, Binhai Tianjin. The borrowing
bears interests at the fixed interest rate of
4.60% per annum. Part of the borrowing of
HK$2,448,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022, and the rest will be repayable by
semiannual installments prior to October
2024.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing of
HK$88,665,000 (2020: Nil) of Gaoan TEDA
Gas was secured by all rights to the earnings
and all accounts receivables on Yangxu
District of Gaoan TEDA Gas and guaranteed
by a subsidiary of the Company, Binhai
Tianjin. The borrowing bears interests at
the fixed interest rate of 5.00% per annum.
The entire borrowing will be repayable by
semiannual installments prior to November
2031.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing of
HK$34,879,000 (2020: Nil) of Lishui BH was
guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company,
Tianjin Clean Energy. The borrowing bears
interests at the fixed interest rate of 5.00%
per annum. Part of the borrowing of
HK$3,672,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022, and the rest will be repayable by
semiannual installments prior to October
2028.

R—ZETE-Z—F+=H
=t+—8 " ANEEHN
fE TT Fi *h122 384,000
AR B E R RES
REEER - EFFE

% & F F O 4. 6o%a+
H o Z D E302,448,000
BILTER = —FF|
HEE M T
R-ZE_NF+ A=
FEHHEE -

I

7

P2

R-ZE-_—F+=H
=t+—H SLZFERK
7 48 17 & 388,665,000
B (ZE_FF : &)

HRZIERRIG T R
Yezs m%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁw
BRAVEIEM AR AR

WE“ﬂEE%%##
R o &3 F BIRE E F 5
FE5.00%5tH o 2EERK
R —E=—F+— A
TAEFHHIEE -

RZZE=Z—F+=A
=+—H8 " BKESH
iR 17 f& 7 34,879,000 %
T(ZE=_ZF: &)
B AR KB R R X
BB RERIEER - &
;A B iR EE F AR
5.00% % & - HH B K
3,672,000 BTN =F
T RHER - Mk
THAHMRZZEZNF
TARNEFFHHEE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B T —Ff _H=+—HIFE

As at 31 December 2021, Tianjin Clean
Energy has three bank borrowings totaling
HK$367,152,000 (2020: Nil), each of
which borrowing of HK$122,384,000 were
guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company,
Binhai Tianjin. The borrowings bear interests
at the fixed interest rates ranging from 3.75%
to 4.80% per annum and will all be due for
repayment in 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, Tianjin Clean
Energy has two bank borrowings of
HK$73,430,000 and HK$85,669,000 which
were secured by all rights to the earnings on
gas passing through service of Tianjin Clean
Energy and guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Company, Binhai Tianjin. The borrowing
bears interests at the fixed interest rate of
4.50% and 4.25% per annum respectively
and will all be due for repayment in 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, Tianjin
Clean Energy has a bank borrowing of
HK$122,384,000 (2020: Nil) which was
secured by Binhai Tianjin’s bank deposits
of HK$129,115,000. The borrowing bears
interests at the fixed interest rate of 4.25%
per annum and will be due for repayment in
2022.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
R T _—Ff_H=+—HIFFE

(c)

As at 31 December 2021, Zhaoyuan BH has
a bank borrowing of HK$11,797,000 (2020:
Nil) which was secured by Binhai Tianjin’s
bank deposits of HK$12,239,000. The
borrowing bears interests at the fixed interest
rate of 3.70% per annum and will be due for
repayment in 2022.

Other borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, other borrowings of
RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to HK$734,305,000)
(2020: RMB630,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$748,663,000)) from a related
party, Sinopec Finance Company Limited, are
guaranteed by TEDA and the borrowings will be
wholly repayable in 2023. The borrowings bear
interests at the rate calculated by 1-year LPR plus
60 basis points announced in the latest month
on the withdraw date per annum (the average of
which is around 4.45% (2020: 4.45%) in 2021). As
approved by the special shareholder’s resolution
dated 8 February 2022, 100% of the issued share
capital of Tianjin Clean Energy and 85% of the
issued share capital of Zhuozhou BH have been
subsequently pledged as securities for these
borrowings.

The Group has repaid the unsecured borrowing
from a third party company of HK$942,852,000 in
2021. The borrowing bore interests at a fixed rate
of 6% per annum. The third party company had
right to request the Group to repay the payment
within 7 working days in advance and the Group
could choose to repay the borrowings at any time
before the maturity.

(c)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E } = — = A= — AL

(d) At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s (d)
borrowings were repayable as follows:

=+- $E.E']T
N .w.t-:: .

i s
+=
A

gy
Sz
-
&
o§ IO
)m]u

Within 1 year 1F R 885,765 1,308,508
1 to 2 years 1E 24 802,543 110,981
2 to 5 years 2E54F 1,302,550 883,538
Over 5 years 5% 133,891 60,979
3,124,749 2,364,006
(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings () AEEEFRHNEEMENATIE
are denominated in the following currencies: ¥EtE -

RMB AR 2,038,474 1,421,154
HKD B - 942,852
usbD = 1,086,275 —
3,124,749 2,364,006
The weighted-average effective interest rates for BE-_T-_—F+-A=+—
Syndicate borrowing, bank borrowings and other HIEFE - IREMER - R1TE
borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2021 REEMERNMETFEE
are 2.76%, 4.62% and 5.10% respectively. (2020: BFIR DRI E2.76% ~ 4.62%
The weighted-average effective interest rates for KB5A0%(ZZE_FF : E£T
US$ bond, bank borrowings and other borrowings & RITERREMER
were 4.62%, 4.85% and 4.21%). BMEFHERNES R R

4.62% * 4.85% N 4.21%) °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEr—=F

(f)

——FtZA=F—HIFE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings

approximated their fair values.

34 DEFERRED INCOME

Government grants (Note a)
Grants for construction projects (818 B w8y (f15b)

BUFHRE (Hfita)

(Note b)

(f)

AEEERNREERZEAR
BEMEE -

34 EiEW

62,603 56,135
81,855 55,473
144,458 111,608

As at 31 December 2021, government grants
received by certain subsidiaries of the Company
of HK$62,603,000 (2020: HK$56,135,000) are
all relating to certain gas pipeline construction
projects in improving energy use efficiency.
Accordingly, the government grants are classified
as deferred income and released to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the relevant gas pipelines assets of 30
years. For the years ended 31 December 2021,
deferred income totalling HK$2.17 million (2020:
HK$1.97 million) was recognised in profit or loss
as other income.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
EFFT AT AUTFER

==

(b)

Two subsidiaries of the Company have entered
into agreements with a third party investment
company in July and October 2019 respectively
(the “Agreements”) pursuant to which, the
subsidiaries will be responsible to build the gas
pipeline and heating supply connections to a new
developing region in the Tianjin city named the
“Future Technology City” (the “Utilities Supply
Infrastructure”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the
third party investment company will subsidise
the subsidiaries the total estimated budget
of construction costs of the Utilities Supply
Infrastructure for an amount of RMB975.99
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,194.46
million) and the ownership of the Utilities Supply
Infrastructure will still be retained by the Group.

As of 31 December 2021, the construction
works of the Utilities Supply Infrastructure have
been commenced and the accumulated subsidy
amounts as received by the Group amounted to
approximately RMB65.51 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$80.17 million) (2020: RMB46.68
million (equivalent to approximately HK$55.47
million)). The Group has recognsied the subsidy
amounts received as deferred income which
will be realised to profit or loss as other income
on a straight-line basis over the lives of the
respective assets comprising the Utilities Supply
Infrastructure starting from when the construction
works of the related assets completed and the
depreciation of which commence.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

35 BRI EMEMNRK

35 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (Note a) FERTERR (BYita) 795,197 780,558
Other payables H RS R
— Other payables for — TEE - KEM
property, plant and AR Y Ho At FE
equipment (NEN 463,458 583,590
— Advances from an — FEUEE & R R
associate (Note b) 18 (Katb) 36,715 36,028
— Other tax payables — HMEAT K 6,906 4,649
— Payroll payables — FETE 3,958 5,057
— Others — Hi 171,514 177,376
682,551 806,700
Accrued expenses JEFtE A 44,710 53,122
Total trade and other payables & BR 7k [ H b fE 1+
WA E 1,522,458 1,640,380
Less: non-current portion of Ja R EBRE R E A
trade and otherpayables R IER
(Note c) BEy (Matce) (28,382) (64,440)
Current portion RBE D 1,494,076 1,575,940
Annual Report 2021 —&ZF — —F 5 3jll5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
S —FfZH=F—HIFE

(@) As at 31 December 2021, the ageing of the trade
payables based on supliers’ invoice date is set
out below:

(a)

R-Z-——Ft+-A=+—
B BN EREN R E
BB AT T

Within 90 days 90HA 232,134 256,497
91-180 days 91&180H 104,004 91,354
181-365 days 1812365 H 116,744 135,858
Over 365 days iH#3® 365 H 342,315 296,849
795,197 780,558

As at 31 December 2021, trade payables of RZEZ—F+=ZRA=+—

HK$342,315,000 (2020: HK$296,849,000) were
aged over one year, which are mainly payables
in connection with the gas construction and
installation pipeline projects. The balances had
yet to be settled as those projects and their final
accounts have not yet been completed.

(b) The advances from the associate are unsecured,
bear interests at a fixed rate of 4.24% (2020:
4.24%) per annum and will be repayable in 2022.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

() As at 31 December 2021, trade payables of
HK$12,239,000 (2020: HK$28,412,000) are
related to the purchase of gas meters and
the supplier has agreed with the Group for a
settlement by installments arrangement over a
period of 3 - 5 years. The payables which will be
repayable after one year are classified as non-
current portion of trade and other payables.

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB AR
HK$ BT

R-_E-—F+-_fF=+—
H - R 312,239,000 &
T (ZEZFF 28,412,000
Br) BEENMARERER -
it fER 2 A K B E —18
SFEESFMHHNRELHE -
BN —FRERNERNZS
$E R FE 5 BR B N L A FE 5P R
FERENER S o

R G2 B AT B R B L A PR AR
MAREE T EREHE

1,517,967 1,627,838
4,491 12,642
1,522,458 1,640,380
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
ELE —FfZH=F—HIFE

36 DIVIDENDS 36 BRE

Final dividend for the year HE_Z_TF+—
ended 31 December 2020 of A=+—HBL&E
HK$0.079 (2019: HK$0.035) 2 BE IR &R R E

per ordinary share declared REREBRE B
and paid [Note 31) 0.0793 7T

(ZZ2—h%F:

0.035 #7t)

106,810 41,102
The final dividend for the year ended 31 December RZE-_EFAA+RBAERE
2019 of HK$41,102,000 as declared on 15 May 2020 2T -NF+ZA=F+—HLF
was distributed from the share premium account and ERAREIRR B 41,102,000 T E R
was fully paid in June 2020. —ETFRNAERMRED KR

BEHURTS -
The final dividend for the year ended 31 December RZZE-_—FRA+TWOBEMERE
2020 of HK$106,810,000 as declared on 14 May 2021 2T FTF+RA=F+—AHLF
was distributed from the share premium account and R R HIPIL & 106,810,00078 LB
was fully paid in June 2021. N_ZE_—FRNABRMEDHIK
NBEURST ©

On 17 March 2022, the Board of Directors resolved to RZTE_—_F=A++RH EFg
propose a final dividend amounted to approximately REEFRORBE_ZT-_—F+=
HK$121,682,000 for the year ended 31 December A=+ —HULEFEMNREBRELD
2021 (2020: HK$106,810,000), representing HK$9.0 121,682,000/ T ( —E - T :
cents (2020: HK$7.9 cents) per ordinary share. This 106,810,000/ 7T) * HE R SR
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend MRQ.OBNW (ZTEFF : 79
payable in these consolidated financial statements. i) - hIBRBEREALBRZEE

HHBHRERPARIERMKE

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 37 HEREER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEEENES

Profit before income taxes B PS5 3 B0 A1 495,289 439,183
Adjustments for: BT FEL AR
— Depreciation of property, — T&)ZE - FEM

plant and equipment RiEMITE 172,751 155,411
— Depreciation of right-of-  — {FFR#EEERT

use assets 3 14,921 14,031
— Amortisation of investment — $&& ¥ 5 &9 # £

properties 255 227
— Amortisation of intangible — — 2 & & H £

assets 2,861 3,268
— Amortisation of deferred  — R FE Uk 25 & #6 8

income (2,171) (1,967)
— Impairment loss on — AHE  BEM

property, plant and RERREE

equipment B 9,754 9,803
— Impairment loss on — EHENREBE

goodwill — 13,302
— Net gains from — BEXAREE

compensation for B (B W e F

damaged gas pipelines EE) (7,432) (13,491)
— Net gains on disposal of  — R & £ b {6 54

land use rights B F U E = (1,299)
— Net gains on disposal — BRETEE -

of property, plant and iR 5B A 2% 1 Y

equipment T 536 2,063
— Net impairment losses/ — SRMEANEE

(reversal) on financial B FRE

and contract assets 1Bk () 25,226 (42,377)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Blr T ——F+_HA=+—HIFE

— Share of net profits of — BIEEE AR R
an associate and joint BETEFHN
ventures ied] (8,496) (7,201)
— Finance costs — BB KA 104,624 104,879
— Net foreign exchange — FEH Y
gains (24,589) (135,769)
— Realised and unrealised  — B EREER
fair value gains on RRBRAR
wealth management BEKRZE
products (7,302) (11,459)
— Interest income B A (3,744) (1,660)
— Share based payments on — ERNE T RZH]
grant of share options ERRRH 3,693 -
Changes in operating EXEENEES
assets and liabilities: B :
— Inventories —FE 6,558 (21,492)
— Trade and other — R R E At
receivables FEUW K (44,526) 152,658
— Contract assets — BHEE (3,679) 23,372
— Contract liabilities — &REE 25,377 125,835
— Trade and other payables — & BR 3 &% E Ath
FES 3R (27,852) 175,313
— Notes receivables — EREE (472) 5,196
— Prepayments — FERERN (169,709) (123,780)
Cash generated from KEEENRS
operations 561,873 864,050
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

(b) Non-cash operating activities (b) FRELKEEH

Endorsement and HEKREEEER
assignment of notes HEETHERIA
receivable to suppliers B e RIS
for settlement of payable R
balances 50,117 58,608
(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) EBEXRFENEHER

ERF RN RO

The analysis of net debt is set out below:

Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 742,181 407,743
Borrowings — repayable BER — BR—FR
within one year BE (885,765) (1,308,508)
Borrowings — repayable after f£3 — BN —%F1%
one year EiE (2,238,984)  (1,055,498)
Lease liabilities HEAE (20,862) (16,766)
Net debt (EU (2,403,430) (1,973,029)
Cash and cash equivalents HERIHSEEY 742,181 407,743
Gross debt B BEE (3,145,611) (2,380,772)
Net debt (EU (2,403,430) (1,973,029)
Annual Report 2021 —&ZF — —F 5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E! & ;"5»

The movements in net debt for each of the ZEFRPRAMNES FEEFH
periods are presented as follows: RIATE

As at 1 January 2020 R-Z-Ef
—B—A#
BT 699,998  (2540,226)  (22,213)  (1,862,441)
Cash flows RehE (313,454) 193,469 11,196 (108,789)
Increase due to new leases ¥R EEHHIL N - - (6,282) (5,282)
Foreign exchange gain [ 5 % - 9,377 - 9,377
Currency translation EHHhEZR
differences 21,199 (27,489) 603 (5,687)
Other non-cash movements ~ E#13E38 4 78 - 863 (1,070) (207)

As at 31 December 2020 HZ-ZE-5#

+=B=+-H
WEKSE 407,743 (2,364,006) (16,766)  (1,973,029)
As at 1 January 2021 R-E-—-&
—B—BH
EXTE 407,743 (2,364,006) (16,766)  (1,973,029)
Cash flows Bene 317,589 (710,593) 10,044 (382,960)
Increase due to new leases T EEH AL N - - (13,905) (13,905)
Foreign exchange gain XA - 3,263 - 3,263
Currency translation ERHEZR
differences 16,849 (55,903) (927) (39,981)
Write off of lease liabilities ~ JI#AEAE - - 1,450 1,450
Other non-cash movements ~ E#13EIR 4 & - 2,490 (758) 1,732

As at 31 December 2021 HA-F—--—£
+=A=t+-H
WEHFE 742,181 (3,124,749) (20,862)  (2,403,430)
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

38 COMMITMENTS 38 A&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREE

Contracted but not provided B EJ4BREE —
for — Property, plant and TEE - BEX

equipment Bz 388,779 222,551
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (b) TAIHENKEHEE
Lessor HHEA
The investment properties are leased to tenants KREYEBRBGEHERETHE
under operating leases with rentals payable P HeBRAZN -
monthly.

Minimum lease payments REMEHRER &

receivable on leases of EEWBEENRK

investment properties are AR

as follows:
Within 1 year 1F R 706 830
Between 1 and 2 years 152246 408 685
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 408 396
Between 3 and 4 years 3E4F 408 396
Between 4 and 5 years 4B 54 408 396
Later than 5 years 5F 1% 3,324 3,623

5,662 6,326
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

b —

g4 —

39

Binhai Investment Company Limited

Fo—FtH=1—HIFE

Lessee

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retail
stores equipment and vehicles under non-cancellable
operating leases expiring within 6 months to 50 years.
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate parent of the Group’s largest shareholder,
TEDA HK, is TEDA, a state-owned enterprise under
supervision of the Tianjin State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission. The
ultimate parent of the Group’s second largest
shareholder, Great Wall Energy HK, is Sinopec, a state-
owned enterprise under supervision of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission.
TEDA and Sinopec are ultimately controlled by the PRC
government and the Group operates in an economic
environment currently predominated by entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the PRC government (the “government-related
entities”).

Accordingly, the Group is government-related entities
in accordance with HKAS 24. In addition to those
mentioned elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the followings are significant related party
transactions entered between the Group, its related
parties and other PRC government-related entities.

BEREGRAR

39

EBEA

AEBRENAREEEEHERR
BRMAE BRE TEERBR
"EHEMNFARAEAER T
FoREHEAREHGRR  FD
FRREEE BEERHSETD
B R

B X5

AEBERABRRFERTENRER
RAERETE  FERHEEREIXZ
THEEELREEEZEREEN
BAERE AEEE - KERREM
MREBNERBERARRPAL
TRER—REXBEEELEEE
BREREENEALR - FTER
AR BB &K
AEBEEPENKEERER A H
PEIBFES - KRZEHIRZES
AZEMER ((BRFHEER]

NN

85 -

At - RIEFB G ERIE 2455 -
AEBRBFHEBER - BRatti
BREMBOAEEN - AEEE
H A5 M E M B BT AR
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEr—=F

(a)

——FtZA=F—HIFE

The Company is controlled by the following
entities:

TEDA HK The largest
shareholder

RERE BRAKRE
TEDA The ultimate parent of
TEDA HK

TiE REBENRKE QT
Great Wall The second largest
Energy HK shareholder
MM REE FZRER
Sinopec The ultimate parent of
Great Wall Energy HK

PAalt RHMREBNZEE AT

(a)

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

Hong Kong

BB

PRC

B

ARTHNIEERES -

35.43% 35.43%
39.50% 35.43%
29.99% 29.99%
29.99% 29.99%

As Great Wall Energy HK become the second
largest shareholder of the Company in September
2020 , Sinopec, the ultimate parent
of Great Wall Energy HK, and its subsidiaries are
considered as related parties of the Group since
then.

TEDA acquired 100% shareholding interest
of Tsinlien Investment Holdings which hold
approximately 4.03% of the total ordinary shares
of the Company in April 2021. Following the
completion of these transactions, TEDA hold
approximately 39.50% of the total ordinary shares
of the Company.

Annual Report 2021

HRERBMRREBR=_Z=F
FNAKBARBE ZRRKRE
(29 - EHBRES
BB ARIR AL RENE
N A IR BN S E /) R B
jj—o

FEWETIEBRREZERN
100%FT AR AR
T —FHAFEARRTLN
4.03%BEBR - RNZERX
STEKIE - FEFEARRALN
39.50% 48 Ei@A% o

B —FFR
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Ny 5 = — = A= — AL

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEREEESETNRS

(i) Sales of piped natural gas () EEBEXARHE

Entities controlled by ZIEEHH
TEDA g5 89,284 236,680
Joint ventures BETE 23,547 16,325
Other related parties H b AR 16,340 24,091
Entities controlled by S A ESE
Sinopec THe 2,231 586
131,402 277,682
(i) Construction and gas pipeline (i) IERIRXAREE
installation service income ZTHERHENRA

Entities controlled by RIEPESI
TEDA g 14,412 10,277
Entities controlled by 2R AL
Sinopec B8 504 -
Other related parties H {th BA B 5 15 432
14,931 10,709

326 Binhai Investment Company Limited &5 & 5R A 7



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

(iii) Gas passing through income (i) XAREH KA

713 658

>
I
>
3

Joint ventures

(iv) Rental income (iv) HEHA

784 748

o)
I
v
M

Joint ventures

(v) Purchases of gas (v) XARHFE

Entities controlled by SR AL

Sinopec T 1,136,422 258,584
Joint ventures BEDE 888 1,083
Other related parties H A EEEE S - 30,995

1,137,310 290,662
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Br T -+ HA=+—HITFE

(vi) HRETHRAM

(vi) Purchases of gasoline and others

Entities controlled by S A SR
Sinopec B 1,036 198
Joint ventures BEMPE 1 36
1,037 234
(vii) ZEAHE

(vii) Sales of gas meters

Other related parties Hh BERE 5 — 551

(viii) 7.8 &

(viii) Interest expenses

Entities controlled by S AR
Sinopec THE 33,010 4,997
Associate i El/NE] 1,534 1,463
34,544 6,460

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/§18& B[R A @



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

(ix) Other service expenses (ix) EfR%EERH

Associate /N 6 106
Other related parties H th BAHE — 599
Entities controlled by X AREEHAY
TEDA g2 - 506
6 1,211
The Group’s pricing on sales of piped AEERBBSHEHEES
natural gas with related parties are based BRARHEETER
on the reference price stipulated by the EHBNMEMmH2E
local government. Other transactions were BREME - HMWZX 5
entered into at terms as agreed with the 15 B B B 5 15 0E O 1R K
related parties in the ordinary course of A B EBEEFHEST -
business.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
- BER_FE_—FF_A=F—HIFE

/

(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEREEET M&sR

(i) Trade and other receivables () FEREMRAMER

Entities controlled by X RETEHA
TEDA TEE 11,377 5,840
Other related parties H b RERE S 3,107 4,801
Joint ventures BEME 956 1,663
15,440 12,304
(i) Prepayments (i) RN

Entities controlled by S AL SR
Sinopec T 163,645 35,989
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

(iii) Trade and other payables (i) [EATER = R E (15

Associate iR/ 36,715 36,028
Joint ventures BETE 4,324 4,506
Entities controlled by X REEHRY
TEDA T 599 236
Entities controlled by S AL SR
Sinopec B8 20 —
Other related parties H b EEE S 6 751
41,664 41,521
(iv) Contract liabilities (iv) SHERE

Entities controlled by RIREEHIE

TEDA = 36,114 30,761
Other related parties HAbRAE 1,180 956
Entities controlled by S AL HIAY

Sinopec T 437 159

37,731 31,876
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E! & ;"5»

(v) Borrowings ) &z

Entities controlled by SR ALY
Sinopec B 734,305 748,663
(d) Transactions/balances with other state- (d) HFEHEHMEECENRS,

owned enterprises in the PRC 323
Apart from transactions with related parties as B P 5 39(b) AT 4 55 9 A Bk 75
disclosed in[Note 39(b], the Group also has RGHN  REBTEEMBEA
transactions with other state-controlled entities TRERBETRS - BEET
which include, but are not limited to, the following: R TEIA
— sales and purchases of piped natural gas; — EEBERAREE:
— construction and gas pipeline installation — IRBEIRRKARERE

service; LRRT
— lease of assets, purchase of pipe materials — EEHE - EBBMHBMNU

and property, plant and equipment; EABE  BERE#

R

—  placing deposits and obtaining finance; and — BFRREDR®RE &
—  use of public utilities — [FRAREERS
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business on terms
comparable to those with other entities that are
not state controlled. The Group has established
its procurement policies, pricing strategy and
approval process for purchases and sales of
products and services which do not depend on
whether the counterparties are state-controlled
entities or not.

(e) Compensation of key management personnel

Short-term employee REES RN
benefits

Share-based payments B9 A

Retirement benefits RIRET

(e)

ZERHNAEE R B ER
BIERAETT R ERRE I
FEEERERMETIHH
fFFAEE - AEBEEHIFIEmR
LRI EBNRBRE - EE
REE R /ERR R - Tt 0 ANER
RRZZGHFREEAIERE
B .

TEEEASHM

7,339 8,647
489 —
221 16

8,049 8,663
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E; S BE-T- A=t —ALFE

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 40 RRAFMEEEBRNGH
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B E
Balance sheet of the Company AATNEEABR

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NFABIHIRE 1,737,970 1,685,792
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEWF A B IE 331,461 325,656
2,069,431 2,011,448

Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBE2EEY 16,600 74,362
Total assets BmEE 2,086,031 2,085,810
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Share capital A% A 437,203 487,203
— Ordinary shares — TR 135,203 135,203
— Redeemable preferences — AJEEME LR

shares 302,000 352,000
Share premium f& 0% B (a) 175,305 282,115
Other reserves EmfEmE (a) (75,919) (98,127)
Accumulated losses EitEE (a) (73,986) (19,056)
Total equity AR 462,603 652,135
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

LIABILITIES =L

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings B

Current liabilities REaE

Trade and other payables JE A< BR SR M EL b FE A5 3Rk
Borrowings EEA

Total liabilities wneE

Total equity and liabilities HEZREE

1,505,087 478,795
25,127 12,028
93,214 942,852

118,341 954,880

1,623,428 1,433,675

2,086,031 2,085,810

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 17 March
2022 and was signed on its behalf:

Wang Zhiyong Gao Liang
IEEB a5
Director Director
BF EE

ARNFIMBEEBBERCEHARES
@R _E-__F=A++tHE"
THATEERREFTSEE
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO BRI

‘ _ For the year ended 31 December 2021

E: BE-F-——Ff A=t —AUFE

(@) F2FAWKRMDEE  HREE
RRFEEED

(@) Share premium, other reserves and
accumulated losses movements of the
Company

Year ended BE-Z2-%2f

31 December tZA=1-A

2020 LEE
At 1 January 2020 \"3°%

-A-H 104,676 (133,849) 8,084 4,091 (121,674) 23,079

Loss for the year EREER - - - - - (50,219)
Other comprehensive  Efi& AU

income - 31,631 - - 31,631 -
Contributionfroma ~~ ARR-HRETE

new shareholder

of the Company 218,541 - - - - -
Lapse of employees 2 AMER BRE

share options - - (8,084) - (8,084) 8,084
Dividends provided ~ EABRTRAEIRE

for and paid (41,102) - - - - -
At31December ~ R-E-BE

2020 +zp=1-A 282115 (102,218) - 4,001 08127)  [19.056)
Year ended BECEC--£

31 December tZA=t-A

2021 LEE
At 1 January 2021 \_E--F

-A-H 282,115 (102,218) - 4,091 (98,127) (19,056)

Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (54,930)
Other comprenensive  Eftiz A1z

income - 18,515 - - 18,515 -
Grantof employees B PEERRE

share options - - 3,693 - 3,693 -
Dividends provided 2 ABIEEREIRE

for and paid (106,810) - - - = =
At31December ~ R-F=--%

2021 +=f=1-R 175,305 (83,709) 3,693 4,091 (15919 (73,086)
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEr T ——F+_FA=+—HIFE

41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF M EEFARER (BEAQ
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES TEP (F622%F) $£383
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF % AR (REBEBEEFR
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ) 80l (5£622G E)
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES EEBALETRAKREED
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION Y% 58 )

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK
LISTING RULES)

(a) The Directors’ and senior management’s (a) EERSAEEENHESED
emoluments are set out below: mr

2021 —EC--F
Executives UiigEs
Mr. Wang Zhiyong (i)~ THEEE/) 400 - - - - 400
Mr. Zuo ZhiMin (i) - REREE) 400 - - - - 400
M Gaoling(y)  BEZEN 200 298 208 4 389 1,329
Sub-total et 1,000 398 298 44 389 2,129
Non-executive FHTES
Mr. Wang Gang THEE 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Shen Hong Liang Bt 555 )

0 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Yu Ke Xiang TrREkE 200 - - - - 200
Sub-total et 600 - - - - 600

Independentnon-  BUHTEE

executive
M. IPShing Hing P ERE LK a1 264 - - - - 264
Mr. Lau SiuKi, Kevin -~ B18& %4 264 - - - - 264
Professor Japhet BYEAR
Sebastian Law 264 - - - - 264
Sub-total et 792 - - - - 792
2,392 398 298 44 389 3,521
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SO BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

R FE - —fFAf A —HIFFEE

2020 ZRIRE

Executives #EZ

Mr. Wang Zniyong (i)~ FEE&4/)

Mr.Zuo ZhiMin (i) EEEEE)

Mr. ZhangBing Jun  RRE%E
(i

M. Gao Liang (1) BREN

Sub-total i)

Non-executive FuEs

M. Wang Gang THxE

Mr. Shen Hong Liang &£ 5 4 i
(i)

Mr. Yu Ke Xiang TrEkE

Ms.Cao HongMei  E4Ti§ %t
(vi)

Ms. Peng Bo (vii)  &E&L i)

Sub-total i)

Independentnon-  BUFHTES
executive

Mr.IP Shing Hing JP ~ ERER4EA P4

Mr. Lau SuKi Kevin 32554

Professor Japhet BYEHR
Sebastian Law

Sub-total i)

83 - - - 83
8 - - - 84
316 - - - 316
200 664 3 197 1,408
663 664 34 197 1,889
200 - - - 200
1 - - - 1
200 - - - 200
158 - - - 158
158 - - - 158
758 - - - 758
264 - - - 264
264 - - - 264
264 - - - 264
702 - - - 79
2,233 664 34 197 3,439
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Br —FE-—FF+ - HA=+—HIFE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vil)

(viii)

Certain Executive Directors are entitled
to bonus which is determined based on
a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustment.

Mr. Wang Zhiyong was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company on 17 October
2020.

Mr. Zuo Zhi Min was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company on 16 October
2020.

Mr. Zhang Bing Jun resigned as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company on 16 October
2020.

Mr. Gao Liang is also the chief executive of
the Company and his emolument as chief
executive is included in above.

Mr. Shen Hong Liang was appointed as non-
executive director of the Company on 16
October 2020.

Ms. Cao Hong Mei resigned as non-
executive director of the Company on 16
October 2020.

Ms. Peng Bo resigned as non-executive
director of the Company on 16 October
2020.

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(vil) %

ETHOTEFEAREAR
e EEERIORE
RERELE THABRE
AR B RRFE A5 B &Y
NAMERE °

ITEBRER_ZT_F
F+RA+LtREZER
RABEEEEFERHN
TES -

SREER-_ZT-F
¢+H+AE%§E%
ARREFTERER*
HITEE o

RREEANR-_ZT-F
F+RA+TRABEAR
RAEFEERRATE
=

=R EENBARA
TRTRAER BEER

ZITHA B2 75
EBRELRESENA -

EE//\JL:?EIEE ig
¢+H+AEE§E%
ARRIFFMITES ©

BEAMZEITNR-_ZTE-F
¢+Hﬁv\aﬁﬁ$
AIEMTTESE -

CHRTN T _TF
+H +/\E|§¥T'I‘$ F'
IEMITESE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFMBRE

The following table summarized the results, assets and &I AEEHBE T -_—F+-A4
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December =T —HILRAEFEZX¥E  EEREA
2021, & -

Revenue WA 4,842,926 3,653,866 3,557,529 3,308,032 2,745,687

Profit attributable to owners ~ FIEEER
of the Company ARAMEE 399,659 354,904 81,111 104,049 201,421

Total assets BEE 8,179,625 7,094,864 6,108,222 6,018,141 7,875,998

s

Total liabilities BaE 5,856,838 5,095,089 4743196 4,653,277 6,414,158

Equity attributable to owner ~ RAFFEH

of the Company fElbigs 9,952,351 1,941,824 1,313,080 1,334,988 1,428,606
Non-controlling interest kg i 70,436 57,951 46,966 29,876 33,234
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